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The speedometer signifies the Bank's
swift revamp from the negative
impact  nrought about by the
Pandemic. The green arrow rising
fast towards 2022 symbalizes victary
over the challenges encountered in
the past vears - making the Bank
more resilient and flexible to the
changing needs of its clientele. The

. Bank is revving up towards itS new
- strategic direction - gaining wider

market coveraoe at a cost-efficient
approach geared on the road 1o a
brighter future.

“To De a top-of mind Savings Bank In personal loans and
(eposits that serve that changing needs of the Filipino.”

1 o

“To provide the best value and service to our customers by
DeIng a cost efficient operator in our chosen market

segment.”

e

“Alded by technology and a tech-driven cultu
consistently give the best value to our custom

the least cost operator in the teacher’s loan

'8, We aim 10
Brs by being
market. ™
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2021 was the year the bank pivoted into a new
strategic direction. As Covid-19 continued to
threaten the country’s economy, management
embarked on a new ftrajectory - to be a leading
institution catering teacher’s loan nationwide. The
timing to pivot was perfect as both the BSP and
DepEd now allow cross selling of said product in
affiliate banks. That means, LSB c¢an gain
immediate nationwide coverage by leveraging on
RBank’s branches all over the country,

We started the year feeling optimistic amidst the
pandemic. As of May 2021, the Bank managed to
post a net income of P5.7 Million. However, with the
resurgence of lockdowns during the first half of the
year, our microfinance clientele was greatly affected
resulting in a drop in Bank's portfolio quality. As
such, we booked additional provisions of P28.71
Million which further dragged the Bank's bottom
line. It was in this light that management resolved
to be a one-product institution focusing on DepEd
Automatic Payroll Deduction System (APDS) loans
anly.

Along with this move was the proposed transfer of
selected consumer loans and licenses of 10 regular
branches and 2 branch-lite units o RBank. Because
of the confluence of favorable regulation, the Bank
need not maintain a lot of branches and can now
operate at the least cost possible. This move will
allow us to give back more value to our teacher-
borrowers and better compete in the market. Thus,
on Ociober 21, 2021, the Board approved the plan
to sell selected assefs and liabilities subject to
regulatory approval. The subject assets of P757.49
Million, of which P281.39 Million are loans and
liabilities of P837.9 Million, of which P817.42 Million
are deposits, were reclassified by the Bank as Held
for Sale. A move to sell our remaining microfinance
portfolio also went underway.

Prior to the reclassification of selected Assets and
Liabilities, the Bank's Gross loans increased by
18% or by P322 Million brought about by the

increase in APDS loans. Despite the pandemic,
Non-Performing Loans increased by only 2% or by
P4 Million. The Bank’s liquid assets dropped by
12.83% or by P84.17 Millon as these were
converted into earning assets. Total assels grew
slightly by 4.96% or by P139.98 Million. Deposit
liabilities likewise increased by only 6.26% or by
P128.88 Million. During the year, the Bank’s equity
had a marginal increase of 0.12%.

HEADGOUNT

2021 2020
Officers 16 8
staf 219 304
Total 345 382

SELEGTED RATIOS

22.05%

0.32%

-1.35%

RETURN ON ASSETS

RETURN ON EQUITY

The total net interest income declined by 14.24% or
by P49.62 Million as a result of the decrease in the
accretion of interest income relative to the
Bayanihan 1 & 2 reliefs. While the Bank was reeling
from the effects of the pandemic, it slill managed a
modest income of P2 Million from last year's net
loss of P51 Million. No dividend was declared during
the year.

Other significant ratios and information are as
follows:

CET 1 GAPITAL RATIO

22.059% kA
®- —@
o .
18.27% 18.27% w5
2020
TIER 1_I]M]{TM RATIO GAPITAL EIIQUM‘!’ RATID B



Amidst the challenges encounterad, we were able to
open nine (9) Branch Lite Units in the following
regions:

Region | - llocos Region Binmaley, Pangasinan
Region Il — Cagayan Valley Santiago,lsabela
Region |l - Central Luzon San Jose, Nueva Ecija
Region IV-A Calabarzon Sto. Tomas, Batangas
Lipa,Batangas

» Region [V-B Mimaropa Puerto Princesa, Palawan
» Calapan, Oriental Mindoro

+ Region VI — Western Visayas Jaro, lloilo

» Kabankalan, Negros Occidental

PROFITABILITY an pup mittions)

24850

142 30 r3iﬁ.54_

29000

3445

| IS | .

6028

TOTAL NET INTEREST  TOTAL NON-INTEREST

INGOME INCOME EXPENSES

W02

TOTAL NON-INTEREST

This expansion is part of the overall strategic plan to
offer APDS loans nationwide.

As the year 2021 ends, we are revved up for a
brighter tomomrow. The Bank's angoing digifization
process is already resulting in more customer
volume. As we endeavor to be the least cost opera-
tor in this space, we shall be the leading institution
in this market. The future is bright indeed!
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PRE-PROVISION PROFIT ~ ALLOWANGE FOR NET INCOME

(INCLUSIVE OF LML NET
OF ACCRETION]

CREDIT LOSSES

m207?
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1871 39

183041
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65618
156,35
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1,368.08
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TOTAL EQUITY
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FINANGIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL ASSETS DEPOSIT LEVELS
(In PHP Millions] (In PHP Millions)
2019 2020 200 2019 2020 2021
OPERATING EXPENSES NET INCOME

[n PHP Millions] (In PHP Millions)

[
3w
2020 2

2019 2090 2001 2019 . 2091

CAPITAL FUNDS

(In PHP Millions]

668

2019

GROSS LOAN PORTFOLIO

(n PHP MillTons]

18

336

oy

2019

1,580

2019

GROSS INGOME

[In PHP Millians]

LOANS & OTHER REGEIVABLES

[In PHP Millians]



FINANGIAL HIGHLIGHTS

NON-PERFORMING LOAN

(In PHP Willions)
303

2019 2020 2021

NON-PERFORMING LOAN
GOVERAGE

79 140/ 80.84%

| 50.18%

2019 2020 2021

24.64%

22 9000
s\‘\1g‘nﬁﬂ/ﬁ

2019

GAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2020

2021

10



RETAIL BANKING GROUP

The Extensive Growth of Simplé $avings Product

In perennial response to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)'s
advocacy in promoting financial inclusion, Legazpi Savings
Bank able to reach out continuocusly the unbanked
individuals and low-income earners and encouraging them
the importance of saving money amidst pandemic.

Since its official development last 2020, Simple’ Savings
Account product is one of most growing product of the Bank
because of its wvery affordable initial deposit, zero

maintaining balance and simple requirements.

With the humble engagements and eftorts of the Bank's
personnel, L3B generates 2,436 accounts with deposit
balance of P5.0 million in the year-end of 2021.

Legazpi Savings Bank Cross Selling of Robinsens Bank
Credit Card Acquisition Program

Credit cards are becoming less of a source of credit and
more of 2 transactional platform. Many credit card users are
switching from being credit seekers to regular users of credit
cards in place of cash. More users are using credit cards as
a transactional medium due to convenience.

Credit cards provide greater convenience since users do not
need to carry large bundles of cash to make purchases.
Nowadays, the vast majority of credit card users regularly
use credit cards to make online transactions.

Legazpi Savings Bank with 18 Branches, located in the Bicol
region, Quezon Province, Pampanga, Cainta and Das-
marifias around 50,000 depositors will be offered with Robin-
sons Bank's Credit Card. Robinsons Bank Credit Card as
Mast Innovative product that will be a great addition to offer

to LSB Depositors and future clients.

As an initial process submission and processing will be
based on LSB branch referrals with the aim of increasing
cardholders from LSB client database particularly those with
ADB of Php10, 000.00 and up and deposit tenure of six
months.

As a subsidiary of Robinsons Bank, the objectives of this
program are to capitalize JG ecosystem by tapping LSB
existing and future depositorsfclients, to help increase the
card base of Cards Business Group of Robinsons Bank, and
to provide convenient application processing to LSB
branches and a customer friendly process.

In March 15, 2021, Legazpi Savings Bank officially launched
its cross selling program of Robinsons Bank Credit Card and
will be an ongoing program of the Bank. After the initial
launch up to year-end of 2021, LSB already referred 237
accounts with a high percentage of approval rate.

Robinsons Bank Credit Card

LSB Cross Selling
Branch Depositor Program

Starting March 15, 2021
Refer and Be Rewarded!

LEGAZPISAVINGS. ROBINSONSOANK

Customer Experience Department

Year 2021 was a year of coping with the new normal as we
continue to fight with the spread of COVID-18 and observe
the protocols implemented. Lots of changes were
experienced from work arrangements may it be on-site or
wark from home down to dealing with clients so to speak. It
was a tough year for the Bank but still it managed to have 2
smooth and stable banking operations.

Customer Experience Department (GED) had its major role
in handling bank's client’s concerns, queries, requests and
the like coming from bank's differant platforms — C3 E-mail,
Facebook Page Messenger and IP Phone. It continued to be
the medium in addressing and connecting clients to the
concerned Branches, Branch-lite Units, Departments, and
Units. It has also given its service to its internal clients as
well by catering the necessary requests like letter

correspondence and job advertisement posts to name some.

The QR Code that was launched last 2020 made a great
impact and served as a good avenue for clients. With this
platfarm, clients were able to have their loan application in
an easy and faster way in the comforts of their home using
their cellphone, laptop, tablet or deskiop computer.

APPLY
SIMPLY SCAN CHLINE
THIS QR CODE
OR VISIT THE
LINK BELOW,

hitps:/fapds.online legazpibank.com.ph

Al

CED was able to made several product advertisements
posts, flyers, text blast and e-mail blast thereby encouraging
clients to have new loans, loan renewal and buy-outs. Bank
advisories were also made as a guide to its clients on the

banking schedule and operations.

CED was agsain tapped to make the final layout of Annual
Report 2020.

—
IEGAZAE LI l

ANNUAL
REPORT
2020

Towards the last quarter of 2021, CED bids goodbye to
Ms. Maria Socorro 5. Liganor (right), Vice-President - Retail
Banking Group Head, as she reached her retirement with Le-
gazpi Savings, and says hello to Ms. Rean A. Apdua (left),

Senior Manager, her successor.




LENDING GROUP

L5B's lending group provides services to its customers in
ling with its vision of becoming a selling organization and
bringing the financial product and services to customers with
trump competition. The Bank continues to expand its
products and services using mobile and internet platforms.

GO! Teacher's Loan

GO! Teacher's Loan portfolic grew by 25.41% in 2021 to
P1.35Billion from P1.00Billion in 2020 and P868.0 Millian in
2019, While past due is well managed and went down 1o
3.28% in 2021 from 4.11% in 2020 and 4.18% in 2019. While
bulk of the booking came from Region 5, the Bank sees an
upward trend in its loan booking in NCR, Region 4A & 4B as
well as North Luzon. The continued increase in its loan
partfolio was primarily driven by intensified marketing effort
through personalized service, increasing area of coverage
and digital marketing. With the rising competition on Go
Techer’s loan, the bank will soon roll out its online
application that will help expand its market nationwidea.

APDS Loan
H2021

| 20X

1349.45

1006.52 0 2019

B67.90

Micro Finance (Go Micro Regular, Go Micro Plus, Go
Micro SME, Power-up)

Faced by the challenges brought by the pandemic for the
past two years, LSB’s Micro Finance loan saw its portfolio
further deteriorated to P134.99 Million in 2021, from
P232.78Million in 2020. Micro finance continued to manage
loan level, where it focuses on lending to essential

businesses. However, past due still went up by 44.50%
during the current year. Due to the adverse impact of the
pandemic to this product, a change in its business model is
being planned to make the bank more formidable and
sustainable in the coming year. Thus, this is one of the
praducts that will be discontinued.

Micro Finance
w2021

23278 23261 @ 200

2 r019

Housing Loan / Small Business Loan

LSB’s housing loan portfalio continue to increase in 2021 to
P146.52 Million or by 43.09% from PB3.38 Million in 2020
and P50.41 Million in 2019. The increase is primarily driven
by active solicitation of new client, referrals from agents /
brokers and Branches. On the other hand, Small Business {
SME Loan portfolio slightly expanded by 2.26% in 2021 to
P73.34 Million from P71.68 Milion in 2020. Auto loan is
being continuously wind down in 2021 as loan portfolio fur-
ther declined to P92.72 Million from P120.21 Million in 2020.
With the changes in the bank business model in the coming
year, housing, auto and SBL/SME loan will be transferred to
mother Bank so that LSB can focus more on its core product,
which is APDS.

Housing Loan B

w2020

l4p.52

mEgla

5041
Auto Loan
=201
- Brlardel
132.37 L3014

120.21

Legazpi Savings expand its GOl Teacher’s Loan in
Vigayas and Mindanao

Legazpi Savings Bank (LSB) expanded its GQO! Teacher's
Loan business in Visayas and Mindanao. The Department of
Education granted the authority to the Bank to utilize Go
Teachers Loan facility in Kabankalan, Negros Occidental,
Province of Antique, Davao Del Sur, General Santos City in
South Cotabato, and Butuan, Agusan Del Norte. With the
new authority, the Bank will be able to service its loan
customers from DepEd (teaching and non-teaching
personnel) in the area as well as increase its market share.

SBL / SME

| 2021

126.70 LS
12010

73.34 71.68
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Leqgazpi Savings Bank aims to provids rstail financial
products and servicaes that promotss financial inclusion,

sustainability, and value for all its stakeholders.

Risk Management Culture and Philosophy

Legazpi Savings Bank aims to provide retail financial
products and services that promotes financial inclusion,
sustainability, and value for all its stakeholders. As the bank
take this journey, risk management will be an important
aspect of its business. The Bank's philosophy includes the
following:

1. Risk standards aligned with internationally-accepted

principles, practices and regulations in the Bank's
day-to-day administration of performance and risk
management;

2. Proactive exposure management using prudent
risk-taking activities which serves as its foundation of

sustainable growth, sound capitalization and profitability

J. Commitment to create a risk-awareness culture within
the organization by instituting and upholding the highest

standards of professionalism, work ethics and integrity
among its employees, highlighting the utmost value of risk
process, establishing a solid internal control framework and
promoting the effective utilization of its capital investments.

The Bank's risk management is headed by a Chief Risk
Officer responsible for overseeing the risk management
function and is complemented by a team of risk management
personnel assigned for each risk areas. The team ensures
that risk governance and control framework. policies and
practices are in place. The CRO directly reports to the Risk
Oversight Committee for guidance and direction.

The responsibility of risk management rests upon the
respective Senior Management and Board Level commitizes
authorized by the Board of Directors to establish the Bank's
risk management strategy.

Risk Appetite Statement

“To contribute @ Return on Equity acceptable to the
shareholders and at par with the industry by generating
earning assets, deposits and fee-based transactions,
expanding Bank’s reached to other regions, improving
profitability and asset quality through prudent deployment of
capital while consistently complying with regulatory
reguirements”

CREDIT RISK

As LSB continues to build its portfolio, it still takes utmost im-
portance to credit quality, capital preservation and
profitability. LSB’s focus is on highly retail loans mostly
catering to the countryside and market not captured by the
Parent Bank. Ultimately, every loan or investment decision is
driven by its culture of prudence, conservatism, active

management, excellent due diligence process, which was

instilled by its Parent Bank. LSB's strategies which impacts
credit risk management are as follows:

1. Lending or investing on stable and seasoned companies
that are owned or managed by professionals and
entrepreneurs;

2. Ensuring that every loan will provide optimal return for
the stakeholders;

3. Focusing on banner products such as DepEd loans,
Microfinance loans and Housing Loans;

4. Preserving asset or capital through low risk, adequate
collateral or securities loans;

5. Expanding reach through deliberate but steady organic
growth of the loans; and

6. Seeking for excellent cpportunities for loan portfolio
growth by not hesitating to take advantage of acquiring other
banks or financial institutions (FI's).

The Bank's approach to credit or investment is generally
straightfarward, that there is no substitute for a sound credit
due diligence. Loans and/or investmeants shall be pursued
not based solely on the yield but rather on the viability and
stability of a borrower's cash flows. Finally, LSB's credit
philosophy of asset growth and capital preservation and its
credit culture of prudence and conservatism instituied
through the strong oversight of its Parent Bank which stems
from the long banking experience of its shareholders.

The Board of Directors, Risk Oversight Commiites, EXCOM,
Credit Committee, Consumer Credif Commiltee, Credit Cycle
Department, Financial Reporting Dapartment, Risk Management
Unit are the stakeholders who have refevani roles in the

implementation of credit risk management of the Bank.

Credit Risk Mitigation, Control and Reporting
The responsibility of credit management rests upon the
following:

The Bank employs the following credit risk mitigation
practices:

» Employing risk acceptance criteria that will serve as
guide in granting loan applications.

« Limit setting for the amount of credit risk taking activities
and exposures are monitared to ensure adherence to such
credit limits.

» Observing regulatory limits such as single borrower's
limit (SBL),
stockholders and related interests (DOSRI) ceilings, among
others. These exposures are likewise reported to the ROC
and the BOD.

+ Performing portfolio gquality reviews to determine
performance of the portfolio along with their causes and
consequences, allowing the recommendation of appropriate

large exposures, and directors, officers,

action plans.

« Ltilizing credit scoring models embedded in the bank's
loan origination systems and Internal Credit Risk Rating
System (ICRRS) for SBL/SME and commercial |oans.

= Monitoring past due and non-performing loan (NPL)
ratios to measure the quality of the loan portfolio.

» Caleulating Expected Credit Loss (ECL), relative to the
implementation of IFRS 9, to assess the appropriateness of
loan loss provigions and determination of risk profile of each
customer |oan accounts.

CREDIT CONCENTRATION RISK

Concentration Risk is the risk faced by the Bank when a
number of counterparties are engaged in similar activities or
business industries, aclivities in the same geographic
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RISK MANAGEMENT

region, or have similar economic featuras.

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has a total loan partfolio
of Php1.7848n (inclusive of the Php98.76Mn residential real
estate loan to individual household for occupancy). Among
the industries, barrowers from Personal Consumption have
the biggest exposures amounting to Php1.31Bn or 73% of
the total loan portfolio, due to the Bank's focus on highly
retail Ipans. This is followed by wholesale and retail with
Php196.75Mn or 11% and agricultural, hunting and forestry
with Php49.65Mn or 3%.

As of December 31, 2020, based on the Sectoral
Concentration Index (SCI) used in computing for the Industry
Concentration risk, the Bank needs to provide additional
capital charge since the calculated SCl is already at 55%,
which is within the 25 to 100 range wherein the multiplier is
0.08. This means that the Bank has risk concentration on
Personal Consumption industry portfolio and there is a need
to set up additional capital charge of Php16.85Mn to cover
the rigk.

Also, based on the Individual Concentration Index (ICI)

metric used in computing for the top borrower's
concentration risk, it shows that there is a need for the Bank
to make an additional capital charge of Php3.97Million. This
is because the resulting ICI of 0.15 is within the range of 0.1
to 0.2 which has 0.02 multiplier based on the above formula.
Again, multiplying it from the total credit risk weighted
assets, based on Bank's CAR report dated September 30,
2020, would result to credit concentration RWA of
Php198.70Million and 10% additional capital charge would
be Php29.87Million. Howaver, on December 2020, computed
ICI only resulted to 0.10 thus, no additional charge was

made on even date.

The Board of Directors, Risk Owversight Committee, Credit
and  Risk

Management Unit are the siakeholders who have relevant rofes in

Commiffes, Financial Reporfing Department

the implementation of credit risk management of the Bank.

OPERATIONAL RISK

The Bank's philosophy of operational risk management, as
adopted from its Parent Bank for consistency of
implementation, has its foundation in the concept that taking
risks is reguired in order to seek rewards and to fulfill the
company's vision and mission. The Bank also acknowledges
that operational risks, which are present in all phases and
levels of every business undertaking, should be identified
and assessed in order to ensure that effective mitigation
strategies are employed to the greatest extent possible.

The Bank adopts the definition of operational risk as
provided in BSP Circular 900 (Guidelines an Operational
Risk Management), to wit, "Operational risk refers to the risk
of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events.
This includes legal risk, but excludes strategic and
reputational rigks.’

The Bank further acknowledges that "operationsl risk is
inherent in all activities, products and services, and cuts
across multiple activities and business lines within the
financial institution and across the different entities in a
banking group or conglomerate where the financial
institution belongs.”

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight Commilfee,
Business and Service Units, Risk Managemant Unif, Compliance
Uinit and Internal Audif are the stakeholders who have refevant

roles in the implementation of operational risk management of the

Bank.
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‘Operational risk refers to the risk of loss resulling from

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems,
or from exfernal evenls. This includes fegal risk, but

exciudes strategic and reputational risks.”

As the Bank implements the enterprise-wide approach in risk
management,
everybody in the organization is aware, not just of the
presence of operational risk in every process and function,

it has designed a framework wherein

but more importantly, of their respective roles in managing it.
The Bank implements the three {3) lines of defense model in
managing operational risk:

1. The first ling of defense rests with the business lines
which are responsible on day-to-day risk management. Part
of this role is ensuring that internal controls are strictly
observed and practices within their business lines are
consistent with the enterprise-wide policies and procedures.
Further,
implementation and consistent adherence by all personnel to
the operational risk management framewark.

senior management is responsible for the

2. The second line of defense comes from the operational
risk management and compliance testing functions which
are both independent
Qperational Risk Management Department oversees the

implementation of ORM framework by designing risk

of business operstions. The

assessment methodology and tools, coordinating risk

management activities across the organization, and
consolidating and reporting risk information/reports to the
Board, thru the Risk Owersight Committee, and Senior
Management. On the other hand, the Compliance Group
conducts an independent assessment of the Bank's
compliance with relevant laws, rules and requlations, as well
as internal policies to determine areas that may potentially

result in losses due to non-compliance.

3. The third line of defense is the intemal audit function
which provides independent assessments of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the overall risk management framework
and governance structures. This function reports directly to
the Board thru the Audit Committee.

Overall, the Bank endeavors to establish an aperational risk
culture which promotes disciplined risk-taking and creates
shareholder wvalue through loss
reduction, increased revenues and lower requlatory capital.

resources  efficiency,

The Bank further acknowledges that “wperational risk is
inherent in all activities, products and services, and cuts
across multiple activities and business lines within the
financial institution and across the different entities in a
banking group or conglomerate where the financial institu-
tion belongs.”

The Bank uses the same operational risk management tools
with the Parent Bank in identifying and assessing its
operational risk exposures. The levels of operational risk
exposure of the various units of the Bank are captured by the
following operational risk management tools which are all
anchored from the Parent Bank:

1



RISK MANAGEMENT

» Results of internalfexternal audit and supervisory issuges
raised in the BSP Report of examination (ROE)

» Process Mapping

« Risk & Control Self-Assessment (RCSA)

+ Business Impact Analysis (BIA)

= Key Risk Indicator (KRI)

* | oss Events Database (LED) and Analysis

The Bank compares the resulis of the RCSA as against the
capital charge for operational risk computed using the Basic
Indicator Approach (BlA) in validating the sufficiency of the
regulatory capital requirements. Under the BlA, the Bank
must hold capital for operational risk egual to 15% of the
average qross income over the previous three years of
positive annual gross income,

The 2020 RCSA exercise yielded net loss exposure of
P35.42 Million. When compared to the operational risk
capital charge for 2020 of P44.77 Million derived through the
BlA approache, this would result in a variance or P9.37
Million or by 20.88%. Based on this result of the RCSA
exercise, the Bank believes that the capital set aside for
operational risk as per BIA is sufficient to cover for
operational risk losses.

The Information Technology & Information Security Risk is
also included/embodied in the limits of Operational Risk.

MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to changes in the value of financial
instruments held by the Bank dus to unpredictable
fluctuations in prices of traded assets and commodities as
well as fluctuations in interest and exchange rates and other
market indices which affect either earnings or capital.

Specifically, LSB's market risk is composed only of interest
rate risk, equity price and other commodity price risk. LSB's
exposures to market risk as of December 31, 2020 is almost
NIL since most of its investments, lcans and deposit
products has fixed rates and impact of the interest rate risk
is further assessed using the Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB) and investments were all classified
and booked as Held-to-Collect (HTC) securities, thus only
minimal impact to market risk is assumed.

The Board of Directors through fhe Risk Oversight Committes,
Treasury, Retail Banking Group, Financial Reporting Department
and Risk Management Unit are the slakeholders who have

refevant roles in the implementation of market risk management of

the Bank,

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK

Interest rate risk is a form of market risk but it has a multi-
dimensional nature involving the movements of rates across
yield curves (term structures) of one or more instruments.
Specifically, for the Bank's banking boak, the lending
activities, taking deposits with different maturities and
interest rates, and investing in a portfolic of fixed income
securities, exposes the Bank to interest rate risk. This risk
may affect the recognition and/or accrual of interest incoma
and expense.

The repricing gap analysis is the Bank's initial step in
assessing its capital requirement to cover for its interest rate
risk. The Bank recognizes that changes in interest rates can
have adverse effects both on its eamings and economic
value. As of December 31, 2020, the Bank's IRRBB
risk-weighted assets and capital charge for interest rate risk
in the banking book amounts to P45.54 Million and P4.55
Million, respectively.

The Bank likewise utilizes the Earnings-at-Risk methodology
in assessing the capital requirement of its interest rate risk
exposure. Earnings-at-Risk (EaR) of the Bank is an estimate
of the annualized maximum change in net interest income
given a specified holding period for a particular time band's
repricing gap, with a coresponding probability of occurrence
in 2 normal market environment. On a monthly basis, the
RMC is apprised of the Bank's balance sheet structure,
analysis of its current and projected repricing mismatches,
and potential loss on net interest income (EAR). Gap reports
are able to capture repricing information of loans,

investments and other balance sheet accounts.

The Board of Direclors through the Risk Oversight Commitiee,
Treasury, Retall Banking Group, Financial Reporting Deparment
and Risk Management Unit are the siakeholders who have
refevant rofes in the implementation of IRRBB risk management of
the Bank,

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is defined by the Bank as the current and
prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the Bank's
inability to meet its abligations when they come due without
incurring unacceptable |osses. It includes the inability to
manage unplanned decreases or changes in funding
sources. It also arises from the failure to recognize or
address changes in market conditions that affect the ability
to liquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value.

The uses the maximum cumulative outflow {(MCQ) as a tool
to measure liquidity gaps of maturing assets and liabilities.
The Bank's appetite for liquidity risk is measured through the
limits set for each bookffund vehicle, and for each liguidity
target. Liquidity risk limits approved for 2020 is at Maximum
Cumulative Outflow (MCO) of P500 Million. The Senior

Management and the Board thru the ROGC are kept well
informed on the sufficiency of the Bank's funding
requirements, likewizse breaches in limits are properly
identified and reported to Senior Management and ROC.
Preventive

measures andfor corrective  actions  are

required/taker.

The MCO report as of Decamber 31, 2020 shows that the
Bank's liguidity remains at & comfortable level. All books
posted positive gaps across all tenors.

The Bank has high volume of liquid assets in the form of
cash, Special Deposit Account, government securities in
HTC. Php555.88Mn or 36% of the total Php1.568n loans and
receivables will mature within the next 12 months. These are
other liquidity drivers for the Bank and they are assumed to
be easily liquefiable in 1 or 2 months.

In compliance to Appendix 71 of Section 145 of the Manual
of Regulations for Banks - Guidelines on Liguidity Risk
Management. The Bank computes for both Liguidity
Coverage Ralios (LCR) and MNet Stable Funding Ratios
(NSFR) to ensure that the Bank complies to the minimum
regulatory requirement.

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight Committes,
Treasury, Retail Banking Group, Financial Reporting Depariment
and Rishk Management Unit are the slakehalders who have
refevant roles in the implementation of liguidity risk management
of the Bank.

COMPLIANCE RISK

BSP Circular No. 972 provides that the Bank should
establish a dynamic and responsive compliance risk
management system which is designed fo specifically

0
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RISK MANAGEMENT

identify and mitigate risks that may erode the franchise value
of the Bank such as risks of legal or regulatory sanctions,
material financial loss or loss to reputation, the Bank may
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, rules and
related self-regulatory organization standards, and codes of
conduct applicable to its activities. Compliance risk may also
arise from failure to manage conflict of interest, treat
customers fairly, or effectively manage risks arising from
money laundering and terrorist financing activities.
Compliance risk management should be an integral part of
the culture and risk governance framework of the Bank. In
this respect, it shall be the responsibility and shared
accountability of all personnel, officers, and the board of

director.

The Bank's Risk Assessment process is covered in its
Compliance Program, approved by the Board of Directors.
The main procedures performed are summarized as follows:

+ |[dentification. The Bank identified all historical risk events
from all of the Bank’s business units. In addition, it identified
other business risks and their sources.

+ Measurement. The Bank analyzed the level of risk
associated for each risk event. The level of risk has been
determined using both quantitative and qualitative
measures. Quantitative measures refer to loss amounts
determined to be the conseguence of non-compliance. In
cases where data is inadequate, qualitative measures had
been used.

« Mitigation and Control. Based on the identified risks,
Senior Management takes corrective actions in order to
maintain the level of risk exposures within the tolerance
level. Mitigants are in place in order to control the risk

2xposures,

» Monitoring. Senior Management with the assistance of
Compliance Group monitors the Bank's exposure fo
business risks and determines whether the said exposure is

still within the level of risk that management is willing to take.

Based on the identified and guantified business risks, the
Bank conducted stress testing based on severe but plausible
scenarios e.9., non-compliance with all the identified risk
events and losing all legal cases filed against the Bank. The
Bank assumes a yearly capital charge growth rate of 20%.
As of December 31, 2020, Bank's total risk weighted assets
for Compliance Risk is P38.35 Million.

The Bpard of Directors, Corporafe Governance Commiltee,
Business and Service Unifs, Complfiance Unil, Financial Reporting
Department and Internal Audit are the stakeholders who have
refevant roles in the implemeniation of market risk management of

the Bank.

STRATEGIC RISK

The Bank identified the external risk, disruptions in the econ-
omy, as the strategic risk which may hinder the Bank from
executing the initiatives set to achieve the financial projec-
tion. The Bank utilizes the full range of available macroeco-
nomic data and tools to measure the likelihood and its impact
to the Bank's general business.

The Board of Directors, Senior Management, Risk Management
Unit and Internal Audit are the stakeholders who have refevant
rofes in the implementation of market risk management of the
Bank.

This procedure assesses and evaluates the impact of

economic uncertainties to the Bank's capital adequacy.
Advanced quantitative and qualitative techniques are used in
the process fo identify the risk factors invelved and to
prepare internal models for the different scenarios and arrive
at the required capital level.

The strategic risk management is an integral part in the

strategy  setting, strategy execution, and strategic
management procedures of the Bank to achieve its
objectives. Methodologies were put in place for the Bank's
risk assessment. In this process, to be able to develop a
sufficient model, the Bank needs to identify the hazards and
the risk factors that may potentially impact the Bank’s capital
adequacy. The model covers both the quantitative and
gualitative dats collection in order to cover the non-

quantifiable risk aspects.

A comprehensive review of the forward-looking economic
prospects of the international, regional, and domestic
financial institutions was made to analyze and evaluate the
potential risks associsted with the operations of the Bank.
This resulted to the identification of key macro-economic
variables that was used in the model to test the capital
adequacy of the Bank in the different scenarios identified.

The risk assessment methodelogy provides the Bank initial
effective strategic risk mitigation process. Measures of
certain financial and non-financial indicators support the
Senior Management and RMU in evaluating the Bank's
growth. These also provide guidance to the Board on how to
proceed with the Bank's strategies, either to implement
strategic adjustments or put to end to certain strategic
initiatives.

As an additional measure, a mare extensive channel for risk

mitigation has been implemented by the Bank. Every six
months or as necessary, the Senior Management together
with the Board gets to review the Bank's overall strategy and
risk appetite as to their materiality. Collectively, decisions
are made relevant to the Bank's financial performance
should developments in strategic initiatives are necessary.
This meeting is used as a venue to provide a more extensive
discussion and decision-making processes where financial
mefrics are discussed under long-term goal setting. These
updates in sirategic direction, depending on the
management and the Board, may then be affected.

A scenario planning exercise was carried out adapting the
the Risk
Assessment process. The historical data of these variables
were collected from the earliest to the latest data available.
The economic cycles of the Philippines have been tested

macroeconamic  risk factors identified in

and measured. Likewise, the global and domestic headwinds
that led to the downturns in the economy were identified. The
impact of each macroeconomic variable is tested against the
bust in the economy, with adjustments due to seasonality.

i
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUAGY

Below are the risk-based capital components, including regulatory deductions of Legazpi Savings Bank:

Risk-based Capital Ratios:

T

¥

 Qualifying Capital (in Php Millions) 2021 2020
Tier 1 Capital 476.50 571.10
Common Equity Tier 1 476.50 571.10
Addtional Tier 1 Capital - -
Tier 2 Capital 20.56 22.17
Gross Qualifying Capital 497.07 593.27
Less: Requred Deductions - -
TOTAL GROSS QUALIFYING CAPITAL 497.07 593.27
RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2,607.43 2,590.16
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 18.27% 22.05%
Capital Conservation Buffer 12.27% 16.05%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 18.27% 22.05%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.06% 22.90%

The capital requirements for Credit, Market and Operational Risks are provide below:

Capital Requirement (RWAs) 2021 2020
in Php Millions Risk Weighted Assets Capital Charge | Risk Weighted Assets Capital Charge
Credit Risk 2,053.67 205.37 2,105.71 210.57
Market Risk - - - -
Operational Risk 553.76 55.38 484.45 48.44
Total Capital Requirements 2,607.43 260.74 2,590.16 259.02

| Qualifying Capital (in Php Millions) 2021 2020
Tier 1 Capital
Paid-up Common Stock 1,245.96 1,245.96
Addtional Paid-In Captal - -
Depostt for Common Stock Subscription - -
Retained Earnings (624.68) (574.48)
Undivided Profits (16.34) 2.13
Net Unrealized Gains or Losses on AFS Securities - -
Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation - =
Others 3.48 11.93
Minorty Interest - -
Less: Regulatory Adjustments
DOSRI (0.72) (0.35)
Deferred Income Tax (129.03) (111.75)
Goodwil - -
Other Intangble Assets (2.17) (2.34)
Investment in Subsidiary - -
Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 476.50 571.10
Addtional Tier 1 Capital - -
Instruments issued by the Bank elgble as Capital - -
~ Total Tier 1 Capital - 476.50 571.10
Less: Investment in Subsidiary - 50% - -
Net Tier 1 Capital | 476.50 571.10
Tier 2 Capital
Redeemable Preferred Stock - -
General Loan Loss Provision (GLLP) 20.56 22.17
Unrealized Gain AFS Equity Securities - -
Total Tier 2 Capital 20.56 22.17
Less: Investments in equity of unconsolidated subsidiary
banks and quasi banks, and other financial alied
undertakings - 50% = =
_ Net Tier 2 Capital 20.56 22.17
Total Gross Qualifying Capital 497.07 593.27
Less: Total Investment in Subsidiary = =
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL 497.07 593.27

"



CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUAGY

CREDIT RISK

The Bank uses the Standardized Approach in computing its exposure to credit risk. Credit Risk -Weighted Asset (CRWA) is
an important risk measure of the Bank, primarily because it is used to determine the Bank’s minimum capital requirement for
credit risk is defined as 10% of CRWA. The table below summarizes the result of the risk quantification and capital assess-
ment of the Bank's credit risk using the standardized approach.

Credit Hisk-‘l!leighted Assets (in Php Millions) 2021 2020
Credit Risk-Weighted Asset

Total Risk Weighted On-Balance Sheet Asset
Total Risk Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Asset

Total Counterparty Risk Weighted Assets in the Trading Boo

2,053.67

2,105.71

Total Gross Risk-Weighted Assets

2,053.67

2,105.71

Deductions:
General Loan Loss Provisions (in excess of the amount
permitted to be included in Upper Tier 2 = -

Unbooked Valuation Reserves and Other Capttal
adjustments affecting asset accounts based on the latest
report of examination as approved by the Monetary Board =

Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 2,053.67 2,105.71

Reconciliation between the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) capital under Philippine Regulatory Principles
and Qualified for Minimum Adequacy under Base |1l are as follows (in Php Million}:

PFRS Capital, 2021 616.22
Difference due to Accounting Principles (7.75)
RAP Capital, 2021 608.43
General Loan Loss Provision 20.56
Capital Agjustments (131.92)

Qualifieg Capital for Minimum Capital Adeguacy

Compliance under Basel Il 497.07

PER CAR submitted to BSP 497.07




CREDIT RISK WEIGHTED-ASSETS

Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets (In Millions)
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2091

Gokongwei Brothers Foundation Donated 100
gallons of Disinfectant Alcohol te Frontliners

Gokongwei Brothers Foundation, an arm of Gokongwei
Group helps strengthen efforts in fighting the spread of
COVID-19 while the frontliners risk their lives in the
battleground. GBF initiated a donation of 100 gallong
disinfectant solutions, manufactured by Universal Robina
Corporation in Bicol Region thru Legazpi Savings Bank as
aid for the Covid-19 pandemic. Recipients wers two major
hospitals in Albay: University of Sto. Tomas Hospital-Legazpi
and Bicol Regional Training and Teaching Hospital. Aside
from the two (2) hospitals, other amount of alcghol
disinfectants was also donated to the chosen institution such
as Brgy. Mataas, Bacacay, Albay/Mataas Elementary
School; DepEd Division of General Trias City; San Jose
Community College; and MSWD Calauag.

Gokongwei  Brothers  Foundation, Universal Robina
Corporation and Legazpi Savings Bank are part of the
umbrella of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. all working hand in
hand to help the country.

We care for our Fellow Frontliners, Year 2

As we continue to combat with COVID-19 Pandemic,
Legazpi Savings Bank continuously support our fellow

healthcare frontliner. Gokongwei Brothers Foundation made
this passible by giving out 15 sets of Coleman Powered
Air-Purifying Respirators (PAPR) to Bicol's COVID accepting
facility-Bicol Regional Training and Teaching Hospital
(BRTTH). This effort is one of the many projects of
Gokongwei Group-a part of the Php 100 million fund to help
fight impact of COVID 18 Pandemic all throughout the
country. In 2020, BRTTH was also our recipient for PPEs, for
2022, COVID 19 surged and other variants has reached
Bicol Region all increasing its number of COVID + and
number of death and the PAPR will surely help our doctors

and nurses during this public health emergency.

Walk and Light

Antom, Misibis, Tiwi, Albay is a kilometer away school from
Tiwi proper. The school also caters students of our Aeta
community in barangay Misibis and nearby barangay. Some
of students come to school barefoot or if they have one-worn
out. It is in this light that our Brigada Eskwela, Legazpi
Savings Bank yearly activities to give back to our teachers,
headed to the call of Tabgon Elementary School and to the
children in the area. Our Brigada Eskwela for this year, aside
from giving away reams of bond paper to the school as the
school shifted to modular learning, Legazpi Savings Bank,
together with Gokongwei Brothers Foundation gives out
rubber slippers to all students from Kindergarten to Grade 6
students and a little snack to save the day.

Truly, slippers will have our dear children walk to a brighter
future.
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Gokongwei Brothers Foundation in partnership
with Legazpi Savings holds Donation Drive

The Gokongwei Brothers Foundation has been very
dedicated in contributing to the country's progress by
helping its workforce and community-partners,
particularly in doing its Corporate Social responsibility.

Last September 2021, the foundation initiated a donation
drive through the effort of Legazpi Savings Bank.

Y bial
2 .ﬂﬁlﬂmmﬁ:ﬂ’

Legazpi Savings Bank went all the way to Tinambac,
Camarines 3ur in partnership with Bangon Tinambac

ﬁhﬂw&ment and the following schools were chosen as
,NT bensficiaries: Olag Grande Elementary School, Alternative
: y:/Leamlng System of Brgy. Lupi and Tierra Nevada
" Elementary School. The foundation generously donated
 galloons of alcohol, reams of bond papers and face masks.
=
“Lubos po kaming nagpapasalamat. Nawa'y patuloy nating
M8 isabuhay ang tunay na diwa ng pagbibigayan at
s pagmamafasakit 5a bawat isa” (We are beyond grateful. May

= we continue fo practice the true spirit of giving and caring for
| each other),” GBF rapresentative to its beneficiaries said.

The foundation mentioned that donations like these are and
will always be part of the Corporate Social Responsibility of
the company and would always be the company's gift of

compassion and charity to all its partners.

Juan Community

In a constant pursuit to have lasting impact on Philipping
education, the Gokongwei Brothers Foundation (GEF) and
JG Summit Corporate Social Responsibility and Legazpi
Savings Bank, launched its very first Juan Community
Project in Albay. Juan Community is a program that is
collaborating among education key stakeholders, GBF, and
Gokongwei Group Business Units in addressing the needs of
learners and educators in its partner communities all over
the country. Juan Community started few years back and has
reached various areas in the Philippines with the help of
other Business Units within conglomerates and now has
reached Bicol Region thru LSB.

The program launched September 2021 and has identified
Greenfield Extension, Ligap West Central Elementary
School to be its pariner school/community. Series of
trainings and needs scoping was done to identify partner
community and to come up with their pain points. Juan
Community is not a one-time project of GBF, this aims
sustainability and intend to address the immediate and
long-term needs of the said school. For this year, one (1) unit
copier, bond papers and student kit were awarded {0
Greenfield Extension and we look forward to a yearly

collaboration between GBF, LSB and Ligao Community.

Gokongwei Brothers Foundation, Juan Community and
Legazpi Savings Bank aims to give back to community by
building future through education!



Bt

Gokongwel Brothers Foundatlon CARES

With the continous effort to combat the CoVID-19 virus,
(Gokongwei Brothers Foundation Incorporated (GBFI)
through Legazpi Savings Bank Galauag Branch donated 10
Gallons Microbe Fighter Disinfectants to the Municipal
Social Welfare and Development Office (MSWD) of Calauag,
Quezon. The Microbe Fighter is being used as disinfectant in
various settings such as in food service industry, residential,
industrial and clinical setting.

LSB Calauag Branch has been collaborating with MSWD
Calauag in its various advocacies like providing financial
literacy to Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program (4Ps)
beneficiaries. The donation was received by Mr. Jerwin T.
Nawvarrg, MSWD Head. In his letter, Mr. Navarro expressed
appreciation and thanked LSB and GBFI for the generosity.

3
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

Congruent to the conglomerate and the parent bank's
sustainability initiatives, Legazpi Savings Bank recently
adopted Sustainable Finance Framework which integrates
sustainability considerations and objectives in its strategies,
while managing social and environmental risks.

ESTABLISHING SUSTAINABLE FINANCE

As a subsidiary of Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBank),
Legazpi Savings Bank takes its active part within the banking
group of the JG Conglomerate to contribute to the financial
inclusion financing of the group, particularly focusing on its
target sector. Also, part of the Bank's Sustainable Finance
Framework is adoption of the Environmental & Social Risk
Management System (ESRMS) which is likewise patterned
from the parent bank, hinged on LSB's size, risk appetite and
business complexity.

Initially, the Bank is performing ongoing integration and
alignment of sustainability principles in its strategic
objectives, risk appetite, operations, corporate governance
and risk management frameworks. A detailed transition plan
was likewise presented to the Risk Oversight Committee.

Priar to the adaoption of these frameworks, there are already
existing activities and initiatives undertaken that promotes
sustainability and E&S practices in the Bank's processes
which we intend to continue and enhance as we comply with
the sustainability framewark.

As of date, the Bank performs assessment of its existing
policies and procedures to ensure that we incorporate
sustainability principles and will continuously conduct such
assessment as we encounter emerging risk confronting the
bank as it embarks on its new business model. It will also
undertake review of its risk appetite to implement.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND PRACTICES

Core to the sustainability principles is the manpower
resource that needs to be empowered and informed on their
important role 10 pursuing and implementing these
initiatives.

Employee Learning and Development

Even at the height of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Bank’s
Resource Management (HRMD)
continuous to offer several trainings that enrich Legazpi
Savings personnel learing and development. During 2021,
HRMD conducted and initiated 84 training programs
in¢lusive of one (1) batch of Officers Development Program.
Topics discussed include, technical & functional, sales &
client relationship building, E-eamings, institutional &
self-development trainings and leadership trainings.

Human Department

Diversity in Employment

Legazpi Savings Bank started as a Bicol-based subsidiary of
RBank and 67% of its employees are in the Bicol Region,
however at it continuous to expand, the bank’s personnel
sourcing footprints continug to explore other regions in
sourcing employees and intends to be present nationwide.
The Bank has a higher female population in its manpower
and majority or 73% of its employees are millennials.

Ouring 2021, the Bank's new hires is comprising 48% Male
and 52% female, where most of them millennials. Although
the bank started expanding to other regions, most of the new
hires are still within the Bicol region at 52% while other
sources are from Luzon {excluding NCR) at 25% and NCR at
12%. Given the bank’s expansion plans, the Bank employs
additional personnel from the Visayas and Mindanao region.
Majority of these new hires are millennials which translates
to the bank's openness to new ideas and tech savvy

generation.
TOTAL PERMANENT EMPLOYEE 355

By gender
Male 156
Female 199
By age group
GenZ 0
Millennials 260
Gen X 92
Baby Boomer and Traditionalist 3
By place of Origin
Local
Bicol Region 238
NCR 26
Luzon outside NCR 88
Visayas
Mindanao 1

SUSTAINABILITY THROUGH PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Legazpi Savings Bank provides loans to underserved
individuals particularly for teachers. In 2021, Legazpi
Savings granted loans amounting to P 1,514 Millien to about
8.447 borrowers. Also, the Bank was able to provide financial
assistance to micro and small-scale businesses which was
distributed to various programs such as food and agriculture,
education, electrification, water and sanitation systems,
among others. In 2021, a total number of 5,906 micro and
small-scale entrepreneurs with an aggregate loan amount of
P 455 Million.

The bank was likewise able to promote financial inclusion
within the countryside via offering of LSB Simplé accounts,
which mostly caters to communities under the Sustainable
Livelihood Programs (SLP} Associations opened by
individuals who is part of these associations (formed by

NEW HIRES 40
By gender
Male 19
Female 21

By age group

Gen Z 0
Millennials 35
Gen X 5
Baby Boomer and Traditionalist 0
By place of Origin

Local

Bicol Region 21
NCR 9
Luzon outside NCR 10
Visayas 2
Mindanao 2

farmers and peasants) who entered into an agreement with
DSWD.

The challenge during the pandemic bacame an opportunity
for growth for Legazpi Savings Bank. Aligned with Legazpi
Savings Bank's digitization transformation, the Bank
launched its APDS Online System during 2021. The online
system paved the way to reach out to its target market even
with the limited mobility throughout the country, Alongside
the web-based approach of teachers applying for a lean,
LSB likewise utilized the QR Code technology for the
teachers ease of access to the financial services offered.

The initial launch of the APDS Onling System brought the
teachers loan product of the bank to the client's fingertips by
simply using their gadgets or mobile phones to apply for a
loan. The Bank will soon launch an enhanced onling system
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

converting the same into a purely electronic based process,
thus reducing the use of paper for each loan application.

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The Bank migrated its core banking system to a cloud-based
Nextbank system. The full suite of the system includes the
general ledger and AML systems of the Bank which eliminat-
ed the printing of reports since most if not all were generated
electronically. The said system likewise ensures business
continuity considering the high availability via the
cloud-based system.

Aside from this, the bank pursues an automated process of
operations by converting most of its manual processing into
an in-house supported web-based systems with the objec-
tive of paperless processing and approval.

d8
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and ANGELITO V. EVANGELISTA - I. ERIC B. SANTOS - Direcior, ANDRO M. YEE - Director, and ANGELES 1. LORAYES -
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omar Byront. M

Board of Directors of the Bank. He is also 2 member of its Audil
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, and Risk
Oversight Committee. He was appointed as a Director of the
Parent Bank (RB) in 2015, and he alse serves as a member of its
IT Steering Committee, Risk Oversight Committes and an
alternatz member of itz Executive Committee. He also serves as
ar indspendert director of RCBC Leasing and Finance
Corporation (since 2018) and Paymaya Corp. where he also sits
as the chairman and member of its Audit Committee and of its
Rigk and Compliance Committes, regpectively, since 2016
Before joining RBC, he holds around four (4) decades of
experiznce in the banxing industry, including Citibank N.A.
where he served as Country Risk Manager in Manila (1983 to
1985), Public sector Group Head (1985 to 1987). Country Risk
Officer in Malaysia (1992 to 19%5). Head of Risk Management
Group and Word Corporate Group Head (1992 to 1985):
Deutsche Bank, as Deputy General Manager and Corporate
Banking Hezad (1995 to 2002); and Philippine National Bank
(2005 to 2014), whare he held varous senior positions the |ast of
whizch as President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO). He has a
Bachelor of Science degres In Business Administration Majar in
Accounting, Bachelor of Arts dagree in Economics, and Master of
Arts in Economics from University of the Philippines. He is alsoa
Certified Public Accountant He has been in the service for six (6)

yaars.

He I the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank: a
Resource Person of its Audit Commitiee, Corporate Govemance
Committea, and Risk Oversight Committes; and a Chairman of
ts Executive Committae. He is the Fresident and CEO of REC
and is a memper of its Executive Committee, Risk Management
Committes, and IT Steering Committee. He is a director of
Bankers Assocation of the Philippines and the Chaiman of its
Operations Committee. He is also the Chairman of the Beard of
Directors of Philipping Clearing House Corporation. Prior to

(gining the Bank in November 2014, he was the President,

Director and CEOQ of Allied Savings Barnk (2013 to 2014):
Consumer Finance Group Head (2013) and Head of Consumer
Credit and Collection Division (2010 te 2013) of Philippine Ma-
tional Bank: and Head of Consurer Credit Risk Management Di-
vision (2006 to 2070, Credit Services Division (1986 to 2006)
and Cradit Invest1gation and Appraisal Division {1895 to 169g)
of Linign Bank of the Phiippines. He was also a Manager at the
Credit Information Bureau (1983 lo 1985), He has a Bachelor of
Selence degree n Industrial Management Engingering. miner in
Mechanical Engineering fram the De La Salle University. He has
aeen in the service for seven (7) years.

He is the President and Director of the Board of Directors of the

Bank; & member of its Executive Committee and IT Steerng
committee; and Chairman of its Credit Committee. He is the
Executive Vice President of RBC. Prior to becoming LSB's
President, he has held senigr managsment positions in UCPB.
International Bank Excrange, and Robinsons Savings Bank. He
finished his Bachelor of Scence degree in Statistics fram the
University of the Fhiippines and he has a Masters degree in
Applied Business Economics from the University of Asia and the
Pacific. He has attended numerous trainings abroad such as the
Youth Marketing Seminar conducted In Kuala Lumpur Maaysia
and ICMP Master Class and Asset Liability Management
seminars, both of which were conducted In Singapore. He also
undenwent extensive frainings on ant-money Laundering. corpa-
rate governance. treasury operational and risk management He
has also completed the Executive Develo pmant Pragram of Ji
Summit, conducted by visiting professors from Harvard and
INSEAD ameng othars. He has been in the service for nine (9)
years,

Angelito V. _E!_.'ﬂﬂl_lﬁllﬁtﬂ

He is the Director of the Board of Directors of the Bank and a
member of its Audit Committee, Corporate Governance
Caommittee, Risk Owersight Committee and [T Steering
Lommittes. He |s also the Exgcutive Vice President, and the
RBC's Chief QOperating Offiger untl September 30, 2079
Currently, he is a consultant of the RBC. He has been in the
banking industry for more than forty-five (45) years, He started
his career with Bank of Asia which later became insular Bank of
Asiz and America (IBAA) and has held senior management
positions in PCIBANK and PCl Bavings Ban«. He was part of the
origingl team that organized Robinsons Savings Bank
Carparation in 1997, He was a former Independent Director of
Meycauayan College and was previeusly a Director of Bancnet
where he currently sits as Bancnets OPSCOM adwviser. He
graduated from the University of the East where he eamed his
Bachelor of Science degree In Business Administration, Major in
Accounting. He also has g Masiers degree in Business Adminis-
tration from the University of the Philippines Diliman, Over the
yaars, he has attended numercus trainings and sewinars
conducted m the Philipoines and abroad such as the ATM Debit
& Prepaid Forum held in Las Vegas. Nevada, U.S.A. and the
Bank Administration Institute's (BAl) Retall Delivery Conferenca
in Boston, Massachusetts. U.S A arong others. He is also a
Certified Public Accountant. He has been in the service for nine

(9} vears.
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Director of Legazpi Saving Bank, resource person of Risk
Crversight Committee, member of Executive Committze & Credit
Committee. He has been with the banking Industry for over 40
yaars and has held senior managemant positions in various
benks such as United Coconut Planters Bank {UCPE), UCPEB
Savings Bank. Flanters Development Bank and Premiere
Develapment Bank prior to joining the Banxk in 2012 as Chisf
Credit Officer. He graduated from the Polytechnic University of
the Philippines (PUP) with a degree of Bachelors of Science n
Accountancy. Ha has atterided extensive trainings on corporate
governance, risk management, anti-money  laundering,
leadership. credit, and equity and debt financing. He has beenin

the service for five (5) years.

Andro W.Yee

He is the Directar of Board of Directors of the Bank, Heis also the
Executive Vice President, and is the Bank's Chief Financial
Officer of RBC. He Joined RBC in 1997 and hecame the Bank's
Compliance Officer  (concurrent  Chief Audit  Executive)
1997-2009), Chief Audit Executive (2009-2010). and Controller
2010-2013). He also sat as a Director of Bancnet, Inc.
2009-2011). He was also the head of the Bank's Community
Banking Group {2013-2018) that spearheaded REC's effort to
offer financially inclusive products (e, Microfinance  and
Motarcycle Loans) to the unban<ed and underbankad sector of
the society in the country. Over the years, he has had numergus
trainings and seminars on anti-money laundering, compliance,
corporats governance, Internal auditing, trust cperations and in-
vestment management, IT secunty, corporate fraud contral, and
risk-based audit. He eamed his Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration Major in Accounting, from the University
of the Philippines in the Visayas. He is also a Certified Fublic
Accountant. He has been in the service for two (2) years.

Hermogenes S. H[Ili_]ﬁ_

He 's the Independent Director of the Bank; Chairman of its Audit
Committee; Vice Charman of its Corporate Governance
Committee; and mamber of its Risk Ovarsight Committee. He s
also the Chaimman of the RBC's IT Steering Committes and a
Vice-Chaimman of its RPT Committee. Hz has more than three (3)
decades of experience in banking and has held varicus senior
pesitions at Commercial Banking & Trust Company and United
Cocanut Planters Bank and its subsidiaries. He was also the
President of UCPB Savings Bank; a Diractor at UCPB Leasing &
Finance Corp.. UCPB Foreign Exchange Corp., UCPE Capital,
Com. UCPB Rural Bank, and UCPB Securities Inc. He has a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the
University of the Philippines. He has been in the service for seven
{7} years

5. ANGELES 1. LORAYES

She Is the Independent Director of the Bank; Chairman of the
Banks Risk Owersight Committee; Vioe Chairman of its Audit
Committee, membar of its Corporate Governance Committes
and its [T Steering Committee starting Octaber 2021, She is an
Independent Director in RL Property Management Ing. (starting
Oct. 2021) and in Unicon (starting Aug. 2021). She was also the
Independent Director of Robinsons Bank  Corporation
(2012-2021). She was the head of Credit Policy Division in
Philppine National Bank (PNB) (2005-2C10) and in Equitabla
PC| Bank (1971-1978). She honed her skills in banking by
spending her career in Citibank a5 Head of its Financial Analysis
and Engineering Department (1971 to 1978). She has a degres
in Business Administration from the University of the Philiopines
and eamad her MBA units at the Ateneo Graduate School of
Busingss.
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He is the Independent Diractor of the Bank; member of Its Audil
Committee; Chairman of its Corporate Governance Committee;
and Vice Chairman of its Risk Oversight Committee. He 1s also
the Independent Dirgctor of RBC, Chairman of its Risk Oversight
Commiftee and Vice-Chaiman of its Corporate Governance
Committee. His career in banking spans over three {3) decades,
waorking with First United Bank (1573 to 19749) and wit United
Coconut Planters Bank (1979 to 2003) where he was the Vice
President for Branch Banking (2007 to 2003). He graduated with
a Bachelor of Arts degrae in Economics from the University of
Santo Tomas and Advanced Bank Management from the Asian
Institute of Management. He has been in the service for three (3)

yaars.
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Romel D. Weniado

J 1

He is the First Vica President of Robinsons Bank Cormoraton and
seconded to Legazpi Savings Bank as Chief Operating Officer,
Before his appointment as COO of LSB, he was RBank's Chief
Compliance Odficar (2012-2018), Chief Audit Officer and Head of
Intemal Audit Group (2010-20°3) and Assistart Controller
(2009-2010). Before joining RBank. he was a formsr Bank
Examinzr the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas [19968-2008). Ha is the
Bank's representative to the Bankers Institute of the Philippines
and an active member since 2011 i.e. a member and/chairperson
of several committeas and became a dirsctor 2016 up to present.
He is the newly elected BalPhil Prasident for the year 2021 to
2022. He is a Cerified Public Accountant and earmed his
Bachelor of Science in Accountant fram the Palytechnic
University of the Phiipaines in 1995 and completed his Masters

in Business Administration at De Lz Salle University in 2008

~ REAND. APDUA

She is one of the members of the Management Committee
(MANCOM), Acquired Assets and Disposal Committee, ALCO,
AMLC, Bid Committee, CEC, PERCOM and ITSC.

Before she had her employment with Legazpi Savings(L3B), she
was the Branch Ooerations Officer of YAMAHA Philippings, She
started her career with L3B as an Accounting Clerk way back in
January 1999, As she continue to achieve her carzer grawth in
her field, n year 2000, she became the Branch Contral Officer,
Comes 2007, she was promoted as the Branch Manager of
Daraga Branch with a rank of Manager. She was transferrad in
Guinchatan Branch handing the pesition of Business Center
Head in 2013, She reachad the ladder of Senior Manager in
2016. In 2021, she was appointed as Retail Banking Group Head
who oversees the fallowing under the umbrella of Retail Banking
Group:

(1) Fourteen (14 full branches and four (4] branch-lites; and
(2} Customer Experience Department,

She graduated from Divine Word Colege of Legazpi with a
degree of Bachelor of Science inAccountancy.

ERLINDA 0. DEL VILLAR

She is currently the Head of Operations which handles the
folowing units/departments:

(1) Controllership
(2) Loans & Discount Unit

)
)
(3) Cash Management Unit
(4) ATM Center Unit

(5) Systems and Methods Unit

She is a member of the Managemant Committes (MANCOM),
Acquired Assets and Disposal Committee. ALCO. AMLC. Bid
Committee. CEC. PERCOM and ITSC .

3he joined the Bank in 1998 as Control Officer and climbed the
corporate ladder to Supervising Accountant, Controller and as
Operations Head, Prior to joining LSE she worked at Westhank
as Branch Accountant.

She graduated with a Degrae of Bachelor of Scignce n Business
Administration Wajor in Accounting from Agquinas University of
Legazpi now University of Sto Tomas Legazpl. Magna Cumr
Laude She is also a Centified Public Accountant.

VIGTOR C. DELA GAUZ, JR.

f- ..,L
! Yy
- - .
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Currently the Lending Group Head of Legazpi Savings Bank
(LSB) since July 2018 He is a member of the following
comimittes;

(1) Credit Committee
(2) Executive Committee

Prior to his stint s Lending Group Head of LSB. He worked as
Account Officer of Union Bank of the Philippines frem 1996 to
1999 under the Commercial Loans Deparment. Occupied
various pesition with United Coconut Planters Bank {UCFB).
Relationship Managar from 2006 to 2013 under the Corporate
and Commercial Banking Group. In 2013, He became the Head
of Small Busingss Luan Department untig! the Consumer Bank-
ing Group until 2015 He arganized and became the Department
Head of Metro Manila Business Center Dapartment from 2015 to
2016. Hzad of Consumer Finance Business Center from January
2017 to 2018, whare he was awarded as the "Department Head
of the Year 2017". aiso under the Consumar Banking Group.
Started his career at The Philippine Banking Corporaticn in 1989
as Account Assistant, He has a Bachelor of Arts Degree In
Economics from San Sebastian College-Recoletos, Manila, Bom
on October 28, 1966, in Cluezon City.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

BOARD GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Bank ensures to continuously
improve its sharaholders value and achieve a successful and
long-term business. The Board is actively responsible to
ensurg that the Bank is properly governed and managed to
attain its business goals and objectives. It also has the
responsibility to its customers, employees, government and
the depositing public, in general.

The Board is primanily responsible for the govemance,
including business and risk strategies, organization, and
financial soundness of the Bank. Corollary to sefting the
policies for the accomplishment of the corporate objectives,
it shall provide an independent check on and effective
oversight of Management.

Composition of the Board

As provided in the Bank's By-Laws, the Board is composed
of nine (8) members elected by the stockholders, three (3} of
whom are independent. All members of the Board are
Filipinos and possess all the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications to hold directorship as prescribed under the
Gorporation Code and existing rules and regulations of the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). They all passed the fit and
proper test for the position of a director of the Bank taking
into account their integrity and probity, physical and mental
fitness, competence, relevant education, financial literacy
and training, diligence and knowledge, and expertise. They
are known for their independence and professionalism, and
make decisions with complete fidelity to the Bank while cog-
nizant of their responsibilities under existing applicable laws,
rules and regulations,

The Board determines the appropriate number of its

members to ensure that the number thergof is
commensurate with the size and complexity of the Bank's
operations. To the extent practicable, the members of the
Board of Directors have been selected from a broad pool of
qualified candidates. With this respect, the Board is
composed of non-executive directors the
Chairman), executive directors and independent directors.

{including

The Chairman of the Board holds the authority on the Board
and provides leadership to the entire organization. He
ensures that the Bank's duties to shareholders are being
fulfiled by acting as a link between the Board and
Managemeni. He also ensures that the meetings of the
Board are held in accordance with the by-laws, makes
certain that the meeting agenda focus on the strategic
matters including the overall risk appetite of the Bank.

The Board has sufficient number of gualified non-executive
directors who have been elected to promete independence
of the Board from the views of the Senior Management.
These are those who are not part of the day-to-day
management of operations of the Bank. On the other hand,
elected executive directors are those whao are part of senior
management and involved in the day-to-day operations of
the Bank.

The Board also has three (3) independent directors who are
independent of Management and free from any business or
other relationship which could or could reasonably be
perceived to materially interfere with their exercise of
independent judgment in ¢arrying out their responsibilities as
a director. They hold no interests or relationships with the
Bank that may hinder their independence from the bank or
the exercise or
independent judgment in fulfilling their responsibilities. They

Management or will interfere with

comply with all the qualifications requirgd of an independent
director and none of the disqualifications as provided in the
BSP's Manual of Regulations for Banks.

An independent director only serves for a maximum nine (9)
years and will be barred perpetually to become as such
thereafter. However, they are not precluded Lo sit as regular
directors.

There was no change in composition of the Board of
Directors for the year.

HMame ho. of Mestings Held |No. of Mesfings Attended

Omar Byran T, Micr 12 12
Elfren Antenio 5. Sare 12 12
Myksl D. Abad 12 12
Angelito V. Evangelista 12 12
Cric . Eantos 12 12
Andra W Yee 12 12
Hermegenss S. Roaas | 1z | 12
Aictor V. Laynes * El 9

Angeles £, Lorayes ™ 3 3

Roberto 5 Gaerian 12 12

* Mr. Laynes - term as Independent Direcfor ended last September 2021.
He was replaced by Ms. Lorayes in October 2021,

BOARD COMMITTEES

To allow deeper focus and increase efficiency, the Board has
created committees. which are relative and congistent to the
size, complexity of operations, long-term strategies and risk
tolerance |evel of the Bank. The scope, authority and
responsibilities of these committees are defined in their
respective board-approved charter which is subject to
regular review and updated at |east annually or whenever
there are significant changes.

The board has appointed the members of the committees
taking into account the optimal mix of skills and expenence
which allow them to fully understand, be critical and

objectively evaluate the issues. To promote objectivity, the
Board
non-executive directors to the greatest extent possible and

has appointed independent directors and
ensures that such mix will not impair the collective skills,
experience and effectiveness of the committees. Each of
these committees maintains appropriate records (e.g., min-
utes of meeting) of their deliberations and decisions, subject
to notation andfor confirmation of the Board. The records
document the committees’ fulfillment of their responsibilities
and facilitate the assessment of the effective performance of
their functions which is regularly and periodically being

conducted.

The Board has established and designated responsibilities
to the following board-level committess:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

In order to pro-actively assist the Board in its fulfillment of its
corporate  governance responsibilities and  ensure
transparency in all of the Bank's transactions, it created the
Corporate Governance Committee. The Committee ansures
the Board's effectiveness and due observance of corporate
governance principles, best practices and guidelines which
are necessary component of what constitutes sound
strategic business management. It creates awareness of

corporate governance within the Bank.

In particular, the Commitiee oversees the development and
implementation of corporate governance principles and
policies; reviews and evaluates the qualifications of the
persons nominated to the Board as well as those nominated
for election to other positions requiring appointment by the
Board, decides the Board's

performance is evaluated and assists the Board in the

the manner by which

periodic performance evaluation of the Board and its

i
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commitiees and executive management; and oversees the
development and implementation of  professional
development programs for directors and officers.

The Commitiee is composed of five members, three of whom
are independent directors including the Chairperson and
Vice-Chairperson. The Committee holds regular meetings
and may call for special meetings as deemed necessary. To
properly evaluate itz performance, the Committee meetings
are properly and duly minuted.

Name Mo. of Meztings Held |No. of Mestings Attenosd
Omar Byron T. Mier i2 12
Angelite Y, Evangalisia 12 12
Victor V. Laynes * 4 4
Angeles £. Lorayes * 3 3
Hemagenes 5 Roxas 12 - 12
Roberto 5. Gasrlan 12 12

* Mr. Laynes—lerm as Independent Director ended last September 2021,
He was replaced by Ms. Larayes in Octaber 2027,

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Bank's Executive Committee has been created as the
highest credit approving body of the Bank after the Board.
The Committee provides the necessary approvals for
applications, deviations other loan transactions. Resolutions
of the Committee may be overruled only by the Board.

The Executive Committee provides decisions regarding
applications for critical loan accounts and deviations that
require careful deliberation. Approvals made are in
compliance with internal policies and those required under
existing laws, rules and regulations. Decisions made are
influgnced the latest profitability and delinquency figures of
on account or loan product. Credit proposals and
recommendations are being routed for consideration and
approval.

RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

To aid the Board to efficiently carry out its functions on risk
management, it created the Risk Oversight Committes which
oversees the development and oversight of the Bank's risk
management program and ensures an acceptable level of
risk while minimizing losses. The Committee oversees the
system of limits to discretionary authority that the Board
delegates to Management, supervises the system and
ansures its effectiveness, provides and set limits and
ensures that these are properly observed and that immediate
corrective actions are taken should breaches occur.

“The Risk Qversight Committes which oversees
the development and oversight of the Bank’s
risk management program and ensures an
acceptable level of risk while minimizing 10$868.”

The Board has appointed five members of the Committee
who possess a broad-range of expertise as well as adequate
knowledge of the Bank's risk exposures which enable them
to develop appropriate strategies for preventing losses when
they occur. The committee members meet regularly and
may call for special meetings whenever necessary.

Name Mo, of Mestings Held | No. o Westings Aiended
Omar Byron T. Mier 12 12
Angalite V. Evangelista 12 12
Victor W, Lavhes™ 4 o
Angeles 2. Lorayes® 3 3
Hermogenes 5. Roxas 12 12
Roboro &, Gaodan 12 12

*Mr. Laynes — tenm as lndependent Director / Chairperson of Risk
Cuarsigh! Commifiee ended iast September 2021, He was replaced by
Ms Lerayes in October 2021 as Chsirperson of Risk Oversight
Committes,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee to provide
oversight over the Bank's financial reporting policies,
practices and control and internal and external audit
functions. In particular, the Committee aids the Board in
monitoring and evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness and
efficiency of the Bank's internal control system. Further, the
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities with regard to integrity of the Bank's financial
reporting process; the independence and performance of the
Bank's external and internal auditors; the compliance of
corporate governance policies and guidelines; and the
Bank's compliance with requlatory requirements.

“The Board has constituted an Audit Committee
to provide oversight over the Bank’s financial
reporting policies, practices and control and
internal and external audit functions. In particu-
lar, the Committes aids the Board in monitoring
and evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness and
efficiency of the Bank's internal control system.”

To carry-out its mandate, the Commitiee has explicit
authority to any matter within its terms of reference, full
access to and cooperation by Management and full
discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend
its meetings, and adequate resources to enable it to
effectively discharge its functions.

As prescribed under existing rules and regulations, the
Committee is compesed of to the greatest extent possible,
sufficient number of independent and non-executive board
members. All members of Commitiee,
Chairperson who is an independent director, possess the

required qualifications and none of the disqualifications. The

including the

Committee holds regular meetings and may call special
meetings upon the request of the Chairperson or by at least
two (2) of ite members, which proceedings are duly minuted.

Mame: Mo of Meetings Held |No. of Meslings Allended
omar Byron T. Wier T T
Angelito . Evangelista T T
Wictar Y, Layvnes” 2 il
Angeles . Loreyes® 2 2
Hermogenes 5. Roxas Ti. T
Raoberte 5. Gaeran T 7

*Mr. Laynas — tarm as Independent Director member of Apdif Commities
ended last September 2021. He was replaced by Ms. Lorayes in October
2021 az member of Audit Commitiee.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STEERING COMMITTEE

In compliance with BSP regulations. the Board has created
the Information Technology (IT) Steering Committee which
oversees a safe, sound, controlled and efficient information
technology operating environment that supports the Bank's
goals and objectives. In particular, the Committee among
others: reviews and monitors the performance all IT projects;
reviews the Bank's current IT infrastructure, system
performance, associated risks and other significant issues
and events, and institutes appropriate actions to achieve the
desired results; monitors and evaluate the performange of
third-party service providers on all technology initiatives
subject of the service contract; and reports to the
Board relevant and adequate information regarding [T
performance, status of major IT projects and significant
issues affecting the Bank's IT operations.

“The Committee among others: reviews and
monifors the performance alf IT projects;
reviews the Bank's current IT infrastructure,
system performance.”
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The Committee is chaired by an independent director, assist-
ed by the Head of IT Department and executive officers of
the Bank. The heads of Audit, Risk and Compliance are also
invited in the regular and/or special meetings of the
Gommittee as resource persons.

: Ho. of Meetinge Mo, of Mastings
e  Held Attended
Wictor V. Laynes® 2 B
Angeles £ Lorayes® E 3
Wykel D. Abad 12 12
Angelito V. Evangelista 12 12
Reomal D, Menlaco 12 12
Erinda 2. Del Vilar 12 12
Adrian T Llana 12 12
Jason Dannls R Sambilan 12 12
Karean R Vilareal 12 12
wyninig G, Baulisla 12 12
Elmer D. Bomres 10 10

* Mr. Laynes —{ferm as Independent Director ended fasi September 2021
He was replaced by Ms. Lorapes in Octoher 2021 as Chairperson of IT
Sfeering Committase,

BOARD TRAININGS

In accordance with the Corporaie Govemnance Manual and
existing BSP regulstions, the Corporate (Governance
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the required trainings and continuing education
of the directors. Relative thereto, all members of the Board
have attended the reguired corporate governance seminar
for bank directors at BSP-accredited training providers, a
pre-requisite for Monetary Board confirmation. These
include topics on risk and governance, audit and control, and
accountability.

To remain relevant and abreast with the evolving corporate
governance landscape. the directors attend refresher cours-
&s on corporate governance provided by accredited training
service providers.

Committed to providing continuing professional education
and ensuring that senior management continuously possess

the qualifications for their positions, LSB provides seminars
and trainings given by accredited external training providers
and training provided in coordination with the Parent Bank
andfor JG Summit Human Resource. These are, but not
viimited to, frainings and seminars on governance,
leadership, risk management, accounting, compliance and
AMLA.

SELECTION PROCESS FOR BOARD AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Every year, the Bank holds stockholders meeting where new
sets of board of directors are being elected. The Bank has
transparent procedures in place tor the nomination and
election of the new sets of directors to the Board. Sharehold-
ers nominate candidates who shall be evaluated based on
qualifications and none of the disqualifications per exigting
BSP and SEC regulations and a pool of candidates is
formed. Nine (9) will be elected from the pool of candidates.

During the organizational meeting, chairmanship and
membership of the different
including principal officers are appointed.

board-level committeses,

Candidates for Senior Management positions are carefully
screened based on their qualifications and are subjected to
the fit-and-proper rule test. Appointment of Senior officers
are submitted for approval of the Corporate Governance
Committee and confirmation of the Board of Directors. For
positions that needs regulatory approvall confirmation,
appropriate request for approval/confirmation of the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas is also sought.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The Bank has performance evaluation process in place fo
assess the performance of the Board and its board-level

committees based on their respective mandates. This is
through a Peer Assessment Questionnaire. Similarly, the
President is evaluated as a member of the Board and Senior
Management, the results of which is discussed and
approved by the Corporate Governance Commitiee
confirmed by the Board.

The Bank also has performance evaluation process for
Senior Management, The Performance Management System
ensures that LSB's goals and objectives are translated into
individual and executable targets or deliverables, and are
aligned with the Bank's strategic directions, thrusts, goals
and objectives. This is being done annually every first
quarter of each year for the performance from the previous
year. Balance Scorecard (BSC) is being utilized for the
performance appraisal of each Senior Officers which set
standard parameters and guidelines in appraising employee
performance to ensure objectivity and fairness.

In addition, their Leadership Competencies is being
reviewed by their Line Managers annually thru Advancement
Planning or Succession Plan being presented to RBank's
CEQ Mr. Elfren Antonio S. Sarte and JG's CEO Mr. Lance Y.
Gokongwei.

COMPENSATION POLICY

The Board of Directors compensation is a fee or per diem in
an amount as may be determined by the Board which shall
be paid to each director for attendance to any meeting of the
Board, subject to the approval of the stockholders; provided,
however, that nothing hergin contained shall be construed to
preclude any directors from serving in any capacity and
receiving compensation therefor. The Board, as may
delegated by the stockholder, shall fix the compensation and
other-remunerations. Pursuant to a delegated authority, the

Board may fix the compensation and other renumeration of
any Director of any other officer of the Bank should they be
designated to perform executive functions or any special
service to the Bank. In no case shall the total yearly
compensation of directors as such directors, exceed ten
percent: (10%) of the net income before income tax of the
Eank during the preceding year.

The
remuneration program encourage the attraction and

Bank's Senior Management and Key Executive

retention of high caliber professionals possessing the
required experience and capabilities to drive the success of
the business, The compensation structure is designed to be
at par with the prevailing savings banking industry rates.
Consistent with the Bank’s principle of pay for performance
and Remuneration Policy, the Board approved compensation
and BSP approved fringe benefit program consists of car
plan, various types of leave benefits, allowances and finan-
cial assistance in the form of employee |oans are provided 10
rank and file, junior officers, Senior Management and Key
Executives. The health and well-being of a regular rank and
file employees up to senior management and executives are
likewise given importance as their Group Hospitalization
Plan/ Health Management Organization (HMO) provides
extensive Executive Check-up Package.

Granting of compensation agreements/  offers,
recommendations for annual merit increases and promotion
increases, variable bonuses are approved by the Chairman

of the Board.

RENUMERATION POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES
The Bank's employee's compensation structure is designed
to be at par with the prevailing banking industry rates. The

compensation package is composed of guarantesd
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compensation, inclusive of statutery and company-initiated
bonuses. lts policy is pay for performance or meritocracy,
highlighted by a competitive salary scale, annual merit
ingrease, and employee promotion which are hinged on
employee performance and atteinment of the Bank’s Key
indicator, Competitive fringe benefit programs such as
various types of leave benefits, uniform assistance, and
financial assistance programs in the form of employee
bereavement assistance, personal loan, motorcycle loan,
car plan loan. and housing loan are provided to eligible
employees aimed to assist them in their time of financial
need and to improve their standard of living. The health and
well-being of the employges are given impertance in the form
of Group Hospitalization Plan or HMO Gard, the Group Life
Insurance and Personal Accident Insurance and Hazard Pay.

“The compensation package is composed of
guaranteed compensation, inclusive of statutory
and company-initiated bonuses.”

RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION POLICY

Except for independent directors who are subject to maxi-
mum term limit to remain so, directors may remain on the
Board for as long as he/ she remains to be physically and
mentally fit and proper for the position of a directar, able to
discharge his duties pursuant to regulatory requirements for
banks. For succession, replacement, or vacancy, the Bank's
by-Laws provide that vacancies in the Board may be filled by
appointment or election of the remaining directors, if still
constituting a quorum; otherwise, the stockholders shall fill
such vacancy in a regular meeting called for this purpose.

Members of the Senior Management are covered by the
rank's Multi-employer Retirement Plan under its parent
company JG Summit; it is a non-contributory defined benefit

plan covering all regular and permanent employees of the
conglomerate. The Retirement Plan caovers early or optional
refirement, compulsory retirement as well resignation
payment schemes for qualified employees based on set
criteria.

The Bank bas a Succession Management Program for
Senior Management whereby high potential candidates from
identified by the
officers and, in coordination with the Human Resources
Management Department, came up with an Individual JGS
Advancement Planning Process to prepare such candidate
to take on the critical positions in case of vacancies. The
development plan is updated annually.

critical functions were incumbent

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In compliance with BSP Circular 835, as amended, all
material related party transactions are being approved by the
Bank's Board of Directors. With this respect, the Bank did not
create a separate RPT Committee. Nevertheless, it has RPT
policy which defines related parties which include directors,
officers, stockholders or related interests (DOSRI) of the
Bank and their close family members. It also Includes
corresponding persons in affiliated companies, subsidiaries
and affiliates, any party that the Bank exerts control gver or
that exerts control over the Bank, and such other entity
whose interest may pose potential conflict with the interest of
the Bank.

The Board evaluates material RPTs to ensure that these ara
not undertaken on more favorable economic terms {e.q.
price, rates, fees, tenor, collateral requirement) to such
related parties that similar- transactions with non-related
parties under similar circumstances and that no corporate or
busingss resources of the Bank are misappropriated or

misapplied, and to determine any potential reputational risk
issues that may arise as result of or in connection with the
transactions. Refer to the Notes to Financial Statements for
the Bank's related party transactions.

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTIONS:

COMPLIANCE SYSTEM

The BSP issued Circular No. 747 — Revised Compliance
Framework for Banks as amended by Circular No. 872, in
order to actively promote the safety and soundness of the
Philippine Banking System through an enabling policy and
oversight enviranment.  Such environment is governed by
the high standards and accepted practices of good corporate
governance as collectively designed by the BSP and its
supervised instifutions. Toward this end, a robust,
dynamically responsive and distinctly appropriate Gompli-
ance Risk Management System has been putin place as an
integral component of the Bank’s culture and risk gover-
nance framework. In this respect, it is the responsibility and
sharad accountability of all personnel, officers, and the
Board of Directors.

“Toward this end, a robust, dynamically
responsive  ang  distingtly  appropriate
Compliance Risk Management System has been
put in place as an integral component of the
Bank's culture and risk governance framework.”

Part of the Compliance Risk Management System is the
Bank's strong compliance infrastructure. The Board of
Directors, through the Corporate Governance Committee,
exercises oversight implementation of compliance policy,
ensuring policies and procedures are followed and corrective
actions are taken by the management to address breaches

The senior Management sees to it that applicable law and
regulations are complied with and. through the Chief
Compliance Officer, render periodic reporting of compliance
issues that the Bank is beset with. As Bank employee,
everyone should conduct business activities in adherence 1o
high standards of honesty and integrity and shall abide by
the laws, requlations, rules, standards and codes of conduct
and good governance applicable to our banking activities.
This may cover observing market rules, managing conflict of
interest, proper accounting and recording, applying best
practices, compliance with fax laws, developing new
products and electronic delivery channels, providing
e-banking services and may also include special areas such
as prevention of money laundering and terrorist and
praliferation financing.

The Bank's Compliance Risk Management System is
anchored on a program that ensures proper dissemination of
laws, rules and regulations, self-assessment of compliance
therewith, validation of self-assessment and monitoring to
ensure that all are compliant therewith. The Compliance
Unit disseminate laws, rules and regulations, including
revisions or updates thereon, which affecting the different
operational areas of the Bank. The different business units
conduct periodic self-assessment of its compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations through the Compliance
Self-Assessment Checklist. Results of the self-assessment
shall then be validated by an independent testing conducted
by the Compliance Unit. Any exceptions found in the
self-assessment as well as the independent testing are then
reported to the Corporate Governance Commitiee and the
outstanding findings are subjected to close monitoring to
ensure these are properly addressed. The compliance
program is subject for review and revision as may be

necessary to be updated with new issuances and depending

!
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on its effectiveness to achieving excellent compliance and
monitaring rigks.

MONEY LAUNDERING AND TERRORIST FINANCING
PREVENTION PROGRAM

As approved by the Board and required by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and consistent with the Parent
Bank, the Bank is implementing a program to combat money
laundering, terrorist and proliferation financing. The Program
has been issued and reqularly being updated to comply with
Republic Act No. 9160 also known as the “Anti-Money
Laundering Act of 2001", its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, BSP Circular No. 1022 and regulatory
lssuances of the Anti-Money Laundering Council. The
Program s
confidentiality of the accounts of the clients, and ensure that
the Bank is not used to launder illicit proceeds or to raise or
move funds in support of terrorism taking into consideration
best practices to combat terrorist financing.

intended to protect the integrity and

The Program has been developed tp disseminate
information which will help the employees understand money
laundering activities and their prevention, detection and
report suspicious transactions, know better the Bank's
customers; understand the penalties for non-compliance;
conduct the required AML training for responsible officers
and personnel of the Bank, satisfy legal and ethical
responsibilities with 2 minimal adverse impact on the Bank's
overall daily business responsibilites and performance
goals. Moregver, the Program has been promulgated to

protect the Bank as well as its employee's interests.

Laws governing secrecy or bank deposits have been strictly
being complied with by the Bank when implementing
procedures related to combating money laundering, and

terrorist and proliferation financing. The Program provides
quidance in complying with the Arti-Money Laundering Law
as well as other applicable regulations without violating rale-
vant and without lesing or clients in the process.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND AUDIT

The Bank has implemented its internal control processes
which are designed and effected by its Board of Directors,
Senior Management and all levels of personnel to provide
reasonable assurance on the achievement of objectives
through efficient and effective operations: reliable, complete
and timely financial and management information; and
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, supervisory
requirements and the Bank's policies and procedures.

The Bank putin place adequate and effective internal control
framework for the conduct of its business taking into account
the size, risk profile and complexity of operations. The
framework embodies management oversight and control
culture; risk recognition and assessment; control activities,
information and communication; and monitoring activities
and correcting deficiencies.

“The Bank put in place adeguale and effective
internal control framework for the conduct of its
business faking into account the size, risk profile
and complexify of operations.”

The contral environment of the Bank consists of: (a) the
Board which ensures that the Bank is properly and
effectively managed and gupervised; (b) Management that
actively manages and operates the Bank in a sound and
prudent manner;, (c) the organizational and procedural
controls supported by effective management information and
risk management support systems; and (d) on independent

audit mechanism to monitor the accuracy and effectiveness
of the Bank's governance, operations and information
systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial and
operational information, the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, the safeguarding of assets, and compliance with
laws, rules, regulations and contracts.

The Bank has an internal audit system that reasonably
assures the Board, Management and stockholders that the
Bank's key organizational and operational controls are
faithfully complied with. The Board appointed an Internal
Auditor to perform the function, and required the Auditor to
report to the Audit Commitiee, a board-level commitiee,
which allows the internal audit activity to fulfill its mandate.
The Intermal Auditor is being guided by the Intermational
Standards on Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and
existing laws, rules and regulations. With the Board
appointment, the Chief Audit Officer (CAQ) oversees the
implementation of the intemal audit system. Currently, the
CAQ has been appointed as the concurrent Head of Audit of
the parent bank.

QTHER GOVERNANCE POLICIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

Consistent with the Parent Bank, the Board adopted
corporate  governance framework or the
Governance Manual (or "Manual®) that embodies the roles,
systems and processes in the Bank. The framework governs
the performance of the Board and Management of their
respective duties and responsibilities to stockholders and
other stakeholders. The Manual is being periodically
reviewed with the objective of continually aligning the Bank's
policies with the BSP and SEC circulars or issuances on
corporate governance including best practices issued by the

Corporate

CODE OF CONDUCT

Similar to the Parent Bank, the Code of Conduct for
Employees exists to develop or pattern behavior according
to the Bank's standards, to ensure professional conduct, and
to enforce discipline and order. The Code is implemented by
the Human Resources Management Department. Copies of
the Code of Conduct are given to employeas upon hiring,
while seminars are conducted regularly and regular
issuances of advisories in order to further expound on the
subject.

“Copies of the Code of Conduct are given to
employees upon hiring, while seminars are
conducted reqularly and regular issuances of
advisories in order fo further expound on the
subject.”

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

Consistent with the Parent Bank, all employees of the Bank
are encouraged and should impose upon themselves o
perfarm the duty of disclosing to their immediate superior the
existing or potential violations and wrongdoings that they are
or may become aware of. The Bank's Policy on Timely
Reporting of Concerns and |Incidents, otherwise known the
Whistle-Elowing Policy, serves as a guide for all employees
for reporting matters that breach integrity.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the Bank's by-laws and subject to resolution of
the Board, the Bank may declare dividends annually
provided the Bank has unrestricted retained eamings or
surplus. However, to date, the Bank has not declared any
dividends in accordance with existing laws, rules and
regulations.

4
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CONSUMER PROTECTION RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CPRMS)

Pursuznt to B3P Circular 857 entitled BSP Regulations an Financial Consumer Protection, Legazpi Savings Bank provides
financial consumer protestion n accordance with the said BSP Circular, The BSP Framework identifies five cansumer protection
standards which Banks must observe at all times: Disclosure and Transparency: Fair Treatment; Protection of Clients Information:
Financizl Education and Awareness: and Effective Recourse.

LSE established a Consumer Protection Risk Management System (CPRMS) Guidelines. Thare are amendments and updates
made to the bank's CPRMS ta define the roles and respansibilities of other business units and brief description of risk manage-
ment tools, process and/or procedures,

The CPRMS Guidelines aims to identfy, measure, monitor 2nd contral consumer protectian risks inhzrent in its aperations. These
include bath risk to the financial consumer and the Bank.

consumer Protection
Sy o

‘Nizn psure & Transparency
*Brotection of Clicnt Infommation
“Fair Trea‘mrent

*Efactive Jecourss

Tinaacial Cducalion & Awarsress

— M[ASUHE
FRAMEWORK CRRHS Cuidines

MONITOR

E'I'MUME RISK MGT. CONTROL

*Board ESenior Mgt Ovarzight
*Tojcies, Procedutes & Limis
‘Rizk kon toring & KIS
*Comaplianze Program

*Intemal Audit Function

dank’s compliance with the
consumar protection policies &

Jrocadures

CONSUMER PROTECTION
OVERSIGHT FUNCTION

The Senior Management and the Board are responsinle for oversaeing strategic diraction and governance. They are responsible
in developing the Bank's consumer protection strategies and establishing an effective management gversight over consumer
protection program.

The Risk Management Unit provides foundation for ensuring that the Bank's consumer protection policies, progedures and
practicas address and prevent dentified risk to the Bank and associated ris< of financial loss @ consumers.

The Comrpliance Unit ensures that the policies and procedures are consistent with the consumer protection policies approved by
the Board and address complance with the consumer protection laws, rules and regulations.

The Intemal Audit Department, provides the Senior Management and the Board with analysis, findings. and correctve actions and
recommendations in meeting the consumer protection objectives.

The Human Rescurces Management Group is responsible for 3 Finangial Education and Awareness Program that ensures that all
relevant personnel particularly those whose roles and responsibilities have customer nterface, receive specific and
comprehensive training an consumer protection program of the Bank.

All business units are respansible in the complets and timely reporting of al request. queries and complaints (RQCs) received from
all contact points of the Bank. They ensure that all RQCs received are forwarded to the Bank’s Customer Care Center (C3) Unit.

Consumer Assistance Management is handled by the RBG that provides timely and efficient means for resolving complaing witn
Bank's financial transaction, Digitization nas opened pathways for Legazpi Savings Bank to build relationzhips to its custamer in
order to serve them better. The Bank received inquiries. requests, feedbacks and complaints from customers regarding its
products and services through digital platforms. Various communication channels through the Customer Care Center (C3) such as
the hotline, email feedhack forms, website, sacial media, etc. are made available to clients so they can easily contact the Bank
regarding these concarms.

MOMITORS MANAGES RECORDS

daily inguitizs ths issues racamed
requasts, and
comzlaints recsived

igsues raized by

from customers trougs amplovess ragarding
the differert channzla, cancsros within the
from custamers znil coardingta with Bank. and suggestinng
reparts these o the concernad units, and  fier impoovemen .
manacerant te srovide  respand o clignts in Reperts are included in
soidinns. on the Bank's  eficisn; and the zonzerned unit's

procucts and services  profession] mannes performance
to EN3Ure service wilhin e sommillsd evaluatian,
guality 2t all tmes. turn-srgund-time o

27 ElTe GUSamer
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GONGLOMERATE MAP
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PRODUCTS AND SERVIGES

DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

LSB offers a wide-range of interest-earning deposit
products, The Bank's customers may open a savings,
checking, or term deposit account. The table below shows

the different deposit products of LS8B:

Regular Savings Account

An interest bearing savings account that allows the customer
the flexibility of accessing funds anytime through
over-the-counter (OTC) for both savings and transactional

pUrposes.

Regular Checking Account

A non-interest bearing peso deposit account that provides
the additional transactional convenience of a checking
facility {i.e. check issuance). Funds are accessed through
check issuance, over-the-counter check encashment or
deposits.

Bulilit Savings Account

An interest bearing savings account designed specifically
for minors aging from seven (7) to twelve (12) years old. Like
the Regular Savings Account, it allows the customer the
flexibility of
over-the-counter (OTC) for savings and transactional

accessing funds  anytime  through

pUrposes.

Special Savings Account

Special Savings Account is a Pesg Term Deposit account
that allows clients to earn higher than regular savings
rates by maintaining their deposit balances for a specified
period of time.

The earnings potential is largely influenced by the amount of
deposit maintained, the tenor of deposit, and the prevailing

Market Interest Rates.

Friendly Savings Deposit

Friendly Savings Deposit is a Savings Account that allows
clignts fo earn higher than regular savings rates Dy
maintaining high deposit balances.

The eamings potential is largely influanced by the amount of

deposit maintained and the prevailing Market Interest Rates.

Savings ATM Account
An interest bearing savings account that allows the customer
the flexibility of accessing funds anytime through an
Automated Teller Maching (ATM) for both savings and
transactional purposes.

Regular Time Daposit

A Peso Term Deposit account that is evidenced by a
certificate of Time Deposit (CTD). It allows clients {oeamn
than regular savings rates by maintaining their
deposit balances for a specified period of time.

higher

The earnings potential is largely influenced by the amount of

deposit maintained, the tenor of deposit, and the

prevailing Market Interest Rates.

Simple Savings Account

An interest earning basic deposit account with low
minimum opening amount of P100. This product will target
the highly retail segment which is our market — individuals,
who would want to have a bank account but cannot afford the
high initial deposit and |} requirements.

LOAN PRODUCTS
LSB offers the following loan products:

CONSUMER LOANS

Parsonal Salary Loan

A multi-purpose |oan program managed by the Retail
Banking Group (RBG) that is targeted to employed
individuals. The loan is granted based on the paying
capacity of the borrower. It is a clean or unsecured type of
loan. Repayment for PSL obligations are drawn against the
borrowear's salaries and other payroll eredits.

Jewelry Loan

A multi-purpose |oan facility offered to individuals and
secured by jewelry or gold items. The loan is payable via
advance monthly interest payments with the loan principal
payable upon monthly or upon maturity.

Loan amount is determined from the borrower's paying
capacity as well as the appraised value of hisfher collateral.
Upon release of loan proceeds, the borrower shall surrender
his/her collateral which will be under the safekeeping of the
LSB branch. Borrowers can redeem their pledges upon full
payment of their loan obligations. The Bank shall be free to
dispose of pledges belonging to clients with delinquent
accounts through public auctions or negotiated sale.

Financial Assistance for DepEd

Teachers via APDS (Automatic Payroll

Deduction System)

A multi-purpose loan product managed by the Retail
Banking Group (RBG]) that is targeted to DepEd’s teaching
and APDS

non-teaching personnel. Repayment for

obligation is drawn against DepEd teaching personnel's
salaries thru automatic payroll education.

Housing Loan
An amorbizing term loan facility secured by real estate
properties under the borrower's name.

Auto Loan

A peso loan available to individuals or entreprensurs to
finance the purchase of brand-new or second-hand
vehicles. Refinancing of units already owned by the

applicant is also covered by the product.

COMMERCIAL LOANS

Small and Medium Enterprise {SME) Loan

A loan program that helps build business by providing short
and long term facilities to Small and Medium Enterprise to
build-up,

support liquidity or capital expansion and

acquisitions or buyouts, among and other busingss needs.

Loans at Savings ng Bayan (Microfinance Loan)

Aloan product managed by the Retail Banking Group that is
targeted to micro-enterprises. It is created fo provide an
affordable credit facility that will help micro entrepreneurs
expand their present business activities that will eventually
increase their income. It offers better interest rates and
easier payment schemes as compared fo the informal
money lenders that micro-entrepreneurs currently deal with.

Small Business Loan (SBL)

Aloan product that is a fully-secured credit facility (either by
real estate or deposits) targeted to Small and Medium
Enterprises (SMEs). In the current market, SMEs have

L
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PRODUCTS AND SERVIGES

limited access to credit. The SBL product aims to address
this need by providing SMEs the cash they neged to grow
their business. Extending loans to this target market will also
help the Bank in increasing its deposits, given that
SMEs represent a huge CA/SA market.

Other Loans

« Back-to-back loan

« Sales Contract Receivables (SCR)
« Lease Purchase Agreement (LPA)

7l
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| FGATPI

Rregular Brarch

Rizal Comer & Mabini SLreals, 4500
Logazpi €ty

LR15-0530-227

Tl -[0521 737-3000 to 30006

102 B390-7460: 0919-0E3-0F26:
DATE-DEZ0- D445

lercal DooT; (o521 742-1300

DARAGA

Fregular Brarch

Parals Bldg, SLa Maria Slrael, Brgy
San Boque, Daraga, Albay 4301
CRIG-0GE30-375

Tl - (057} 732-3000 {3 30CO5:

021 B396-74E0: 0I19-081-092E:
oF1E-0E30- pa 4345 lecal 800z

TABACO

Regular Bramch

Groeund Flogr, BN Building, A8
Bercas Streel Baswd Tabace Tily
CES-0a30-228

Tl - (O57) 732-3000 1D 30605;
(27 B306-FAED: 0O19-0E3-002E:
CRIS-0830- S48 lural 2003

POLAMGLY

legular Branch

Mational Road, Basud.

Padargui. Albay

CF15-0EE0-2]0

TL- (052F 732-3000 1o 30C05;
123} B3%E-74 60; OF19-063-0A7E;
OiG-0630- 54 4/945 local 20004

SORSDGON

Fegular Branch

CBA Bldg. Jamcralia Stree;,
Burabod, Sorsegor City
DRAS-0a30-331

TL-ipszh 7323000 12 30005;
102) B3596-T4 60 GA19-063-0a26;
LATE-0E30- 54 4,594 local Dooon

ALBAY

Regilar Branch

732 Building. Rizzl, Street, Qld
Albay D'=strict 4500 | egazgi City
OR18-0630-937

TL- 252k 732-300C L 30C05;
1021 B396-7460; 0F19-0E]-0926;
CRIE-0630- 944945

lpcal DOo0E, BB

GUINOBATAN

Regilar Branch

T. Paulate Strect

Cuinobzstan, Albay
OR1G-0630-933

TL-[252F 732-320C L 30C05;
102} B39a-7460; 0RNF-DEI-OF2E:
CRITG-0630- 2447945 local BODCT

DALT

Reaular Granch

A Subia Bldg. | Lukban bxt. Daet,
Camarines Horte
CENe-Dn30-034

| L= (D52} T32-3000 Lu 30005,
W20 3506 T4RD 0893 DET DIZE;
TR19 D830 247545

local B0008 80103

VIRAC

Regular Bianch

G/F D&l Building, Corner Surtida &
Fieal Soreels, San Jose,

Wirae, Calamd nanes 4R000

C29 0530 519

TL- 062 731-3000 10 30005

G2 BEHE-AG0; DT-0E -0,
CMG-0G650- 944945 laenl DOa0G

MASBATE

Regular Branch

Units 8 & 0 54T Bldg. Cagla 5L Broy
| Lk Mashais Cily

CoID 0630 535

L (0520 731 3000 to J00CE:

1070 BER0-7A00; D9TI-OG3-002G,
CONG-0G30- 9445045 [acal BoMmd:
G354

NAGA

Regular Branch

ML Builcdirsg, | riangula, Moga Cily
[s=11=Ra i {nl=g'

TL (0521 732 3000 w0 30005

A0 BE30E-T4G0; 00R-0E3-002E;
CENG-OE30- 4947590

Iocal Baaty; 8241

SO

Regular Branch

| Guinzan Building, Bagurmbayan
Foquene, Rical L,

oA, Carmarings S
COR-0630-532

TI - {052} 7373000 Lo 30005,
1020 B300-74G0; Q0-063-002G;
CRFR0E0- A TG

local 80017; 5012

CA] ALIAG

Brurs:Fr-Lilu

Rizal 5% Brgy. Sta. Maria,
Calauag Quezon

CG-0630-237

| L= SEIS2) TR~ 300 L0 HO00s;
402 B396 7460, 0919 0467 DI2E;
$21% D630 244945 local o017,
10420 TIT-6753

LUCENA

Regular Sranch

AM. Lubi Bidg. ML Tagarao &t
Coirz Fliias 5t Brgy. & ucena Oty
COG-0G30-G0

IL (0520 732 #2300 w0 30005

4020 BI6 T4600 019 083 0526
COIG-0630- B44/245

loeal BOa1g; B0ma. (DL TIT-E765

PAMPANGA,

Regular Branch

a.& 3 Blog, Mo Arthur Highweay
Sinclalan, Cily af Sar Termarde,
Parmparos

COong-REL-3863

Th =057 737-3000 10 ITOCR,;
1020 EA0E-TAG; DOND-0E3-000E;
CONG-0030- 044505

lpcal Boo1s; (D4 438 soD0s

BRANGH NETWORK & ATMs

CASHMARINAS

Regular Branch

OANE-GES-5874

S F Wlineor p Bldg., Moling
Falipean B, By, Salawiag,
Cazmarinas City, Cavite

TL- {052 732-2000 o 30005
G B 750; 0HA-GE3-0A2E,
CNG-0630- 944045 local Ooms

IRIGA

Regular Branch

CONB-565-5075

LiLs Bulilding, 121-£0ne &, -,
San Isidre, Iriga City

IL (0521732 3000 fo 30005
107 BER0-74500; ON-003-002 G
CENG-IG30- 2447945 [ocal Doz

CAINTA

Regular Branch

OONE-LES-BANT

LECQ! Corpreruls Cunler, Orlig s

Exteasion, St Anthony Subdiision,

Zaitta, Rizal

TL- {052 732-2000 1o 30006
GG BEBE- G0 OH-0E3-002E,
0915 D530 P44/545

local DoEE0zE

MALOLOS

Brorch- | ile

CENG-0G3-00d0

HET] Building Mz Fausta,
Subdivision, Mabala,

Ma ooz Bulacan

TL- {052) 7323000 19 30005
102 DE0-T450; QMR-04E3-DAZE
SN-0630- 944040 lacal 8PR0E

ST, TOMAS

Birars b Lile

Kath's Place. b, Bonifacic Streed,
Poblacan 2, 5to. Tomas, Batangas
T - {o52) 733-2000 {0 3000s;
SEA BERE-TG0; OUT-0eE-1MA
0215 D530 2447945 local 92505

PUERT PRINCESA

Beoarnck- Lilo

CRCM Riviera Comples, LAit 5,
Begy. San Mznuel, Puarta Princesa
City. Pelawan

T - (0521 732-2000 12 30005,
107 BER0-74500; ATRR-OC3-002 G
0215 0530 2447545 local 82526

SAM JOSF

Beanch-lile

CENA-I51-010 2

AR| Bldg. San Rogue corner

Cardanas =t., Brgy. Abar 1=t San Jose

iy, Muewa Folja

Tl - 452) 732-2000 {0 3000s;
A BEPE-TAGLE OWT-GeE-DNEE
CAR-0630- Rl odn local B2o30

KABANKALAN

Branch Lite

OME-046- 7068

Hemanda Chua Bldg, Salar 51,
Eaba-tkalan City, Bowgees, Oveiden Lal
TL (0521732 3000 13 30005

{031 B30E-7450; 0OH-0nE3-0026:
OMNG-0630- 944494y focal S2u2a

SAMTIAGD

Branch Lita

OE~adG- PN

Guevarra &L, Ma, 1227, Perey &1,
Cabia Wosl, Sartliage Cily, Isakala
| L Q821 732 3000 to 30C05,;
1020 B3IDE 7460; 0912 0aT O52E;
CEG-0G30- 9440045 | ocal 02517

BIMMALLY {Dagupan]

Branci Lite

OB 951 482

C & M Realry Bld, Purok & Maguilan
| Hisgbmoviay, Birwnoky, Pongosinan

| L (0821 732 3000 to 30005

1021 H3I06 74600 0919 GE3 0926:
OAB-0630- 944345 local 82516

CALAPAMN

Branch Lite

OME-a01-1040

ER Paras Bldg. | evtero 52,

San Wicenle Soulh, Calapan Cily,
Qrenkal Mndara

TL (0521732 3000 to J000n:
1021 B3RE-T460! OGI0-0EI-00IE:
CEG-0GI0- 944005 local 0253

JARQ

Branch-1ite

OME-AT-d 520

OPC Rldg., T an Sireel, Jane
il Cily

| L (082) 732 3000 to 30005
IO BIDE TS0 0919 0ET 0926;
OMe-0630- 944045 [oeal 02540

LIPA&,

Eranch Lits

OME-047-4520

HUIL Buildirg, oZa Pros, Lourel
Streot, Mat onol Road, Maraway,
Lipa Gty

TL (0521732 3000 to 3000n:
1071 B30E-7A6D OG-0 3-002E;
CEG-0G30- 944005 | acal O2gM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Legarpi Savings Bank, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Legazpi Savings Bank, Inc. (the Bank), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 202] and 2020, and the statements of income,
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cosh flows for the
years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of sigmificant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects. the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Awdit
aof the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance wath these requiremenis and the Cede of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepamtion and [air presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary lo enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITO.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
conlinue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the

going concern basis of accounling unless management either intends o iquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Bank's financial reporting process.

il
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opimion. Reussonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul 1s nol a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Miusstatements can anse¢ from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of 1n audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perfonm audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufTicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal
missiatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudit procedures
that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriatencss of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 matenal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concem.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial slatements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and evenlsina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and tminyg of the sudit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in intemnal
control that we identify during our audil.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Circular No. 1074

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementury information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 28 and
the BSP Circular No. 1074 in Note 29 to the financial statements are presented for purposes of filing with
the Burcau of Intemal Revenue and BSP, respectively, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management of Legarpi Savings Bank, Inc. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation 10 the basic
financial statements taken as a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Corlo Manints

uan Carlo B. Maminta
Partner
CPA Centificate No. 115260
Tax ldentification No. 210-320-399
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until Apnl 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 115260-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Finm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No, 08-D01998-132-2020, November 27, 2020, valid until November 26, 2023
PTR No. 8854326, January 3, 2022, Makati City

March 25, 2022
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

2021

2020

ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash ltems

P59.414.867

P113,070,533

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (Note 13) 41,069,486 444968492
Due from Other Banks 55.861.699 08,109,462
Sceuritics Purchased Under Resale Agreement (Note 6) 117,595,804 129,666,175
Investment Securities at Amortized Cost (Note 7) 19,998,100 19,998,100
Loans and Receivables (Notes 8 and 22) 1.572.899.226 1.624 488,820
Property and Equipment (Note 9) 83,080,056 138,431,131
Investment Properties (Note 10) 96,715.942 105,813,713
Deferred Tax Asset (Note 21) 142,691,999 128,598,596
Assets of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale (Note 24) 757,487,726 =
Oiher Asscts (Note 11) 14,562,615 18,247,783
F2961.377.520 P2.821.392.805
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities (Notes 13 and 22)
Demand P43.769.473 P171,545.768
Savings 1.042,684.471 1.523,699.167
Time 282.528.914 362.276.750
1.368.982.858  2.057.521.685
Accrued Expenses (Note 14) 20,183,690 20,651,593
Redeemable Preferred Shares (Note 15) 30,700,000 30,700,000
Liabilities of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale (Note 24) 837.900.202
Oher Liabilities (Mote 14) 87.389.371 97037615
2.345.156.121 2.205.910.893
EQUITY
Cupimi Stock (Note | 7) 1.245.960,000 1.245 960,000
Deficit (629.840.021) (631,839,217
Surplus Reserve (Note 17) 6,451,913 6,451,913
Remeasurement Loss on Retirement Liability (Note 19) (6.350.493) {5.090,784)
616.221.399 615481912

P2.961377.520 P2.821.392 805

See aecampanying Notes fo Financtal Siatements

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended Decemhber 31

2021 2020
INTEREST INCOME
Loans and receivables (Notes 8 and 22) P321,968,772 P367,743.622
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and other banks 6.781.507 9.642.645
Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreement (Note 6) 2,158,829 4.014.132
Investment securilies al amortized cost (Note 7) 894,834 3.594.339
333,803,942 384.994.738
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit liabilities (Motes 13 and 22) 30,330,447 31.717.668
Lease liability (Notes 14 and 20) 4,590,992 4 778,928
34.921.439 16,496,596
NET INTEREST INCOME 298.882.503 348.498.142
Service fees and commission expense (Note 18) 9,184,494 4.568.001
Service fees and commission income (Note 18) 1,576,869 1,381,573
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
(EXPENSE) (Note 18) (7.607.625) (3.186,428)
Profit from assets sold (Notes 9, 10 and 11) 16,581,404 1.846,258
Gain on foreclosure - net (Notes 10 and 11) 5.995.991 358,177
Gain on sale of investment securities al amortized cost (Note 7) - 2,931 859
Loss on modification of loans (Note 8) - (79,838,113)
Miscellaneous (Notes 18) 19.476.366 17.597.382
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 333,328,639 288.207.2717
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and [ringe benefits (Notes 19 and 22) 124315483 126,080,121
Depreciation and amortization (Note 9) 47306487 42713948
Secunity. messengenial and janitonal 43,991,674 35,759,849
Provision for eredit and impairment losses (Note 12) 28,711,752 51.435.707
Taxes and hcenses 21,719,742 17427615
Information technology 17,140,232 14,988,225
Transportation and travel 13,476,872 11,355413
Occupancy and equipment-related (Note 20) 10,372,655 10,734,384
Power, light and water 8. 754918 8,227,197
Insurance 7.880,300 7.846.363
Communication 2,891,905 3.483.680
Management and professional fees 2,679,931 1.99] 845
Entertainment, amusement, and recreation (Note 21) 1.465,936 1,842,193
Miscellancous (Note 18) 11,613,696 13,054.219
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 342,321,583 346.940.761
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (8.992,944) (58,733 4584)
BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAX (Note 21) {10.992,140) (7.699,456)
NET INCOME (LOSS P1.999,196 (P51.034.028)

See accomparying Netes fo Finanolal Stetemeniy
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (B8.992.944) (P3R.733.484)
Adjustments for:
Provision for credit and impairment losses (Note 12) 28,711,751 51,435,707
Depreciation and amortization (Nole 9) 47,306,487 42,713,948
Interest on lease hability (Notes 14 and 20) 4,590,992 4,778,928
Retirement expense (Note 19) 5,243,787 4472827
Gain on sale of investment securitics al amortized cost (Note 7) - (2.931,859)
Profit from assets sold (Notes 9. 10 and 11) (16.581.404) (1,846,258)
Giain on foreclosure (Notes 10 and 11) (5.995.991) (358.177)
Changes in operating nssets and liabilities:
Increase in:
Loans and receivables (266.400,034) {(99.871.780)
Other assels (1.503.494) {1.979.993)
Increase (decrease) in:
Deposit liabilities 128.878.985 85490472
Accrued expenses (467.903) (6.298.821)
Other habihities 4,087,977 (7.797.861)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations (81,121,791) 9.073.649
Income taxes paid {1.028,923) {7.282.240)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activilies (82,150.714) 1.791.409
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment (Note 9) (14.441.882) (20,595,895)
Software costs (Note 11) (1.978.734) (1.359.528)
Branch licenses (Note 1) = (310.000)
Proceeds from sale of’
Investment securilies al amortized cost (Note 7) - 183,242 93]
Investment properties (Notes 10 and 24) 35,522,799 10,259,419
Property and equipment (Note 9) 605,255 241,499
Repossessed chattels (Note 11) 3.024.337 14.500
Net cash provided by investing activilies 22.731.778 171.532.926
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payvment of principal portion of lease liability (Note 20) (16.819.337) {10.492.660)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (76.238.276) 162.831.675

fForward)

S
Years Ended December 31
2021 2020
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items P113.070,533 P72.868.361
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 444.968.492 391,666,967
Due from other banks 98.109.462 91.869.631
Securities purchased under resale agreement 129.666.175 66,578,028
PT85.814.662 P622 982 987
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items P106.648.011 P113.070533

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 400,564,592 444,968 492

Due from other banks 84,767,979 98.109.462

Secuntics purchased under resale asrecment 117.595.804 129,666,175
#709.576.386 P785.814.662

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST

Interest received P354.568.242 P336,688.052

Interest pmd P36.173.289 P37.187 Bd6

See accompanying Notes io Financial Siaiemenis.
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l.

Corporate Information

Legarp: Savings Bank, Inc. (the Bank) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Secunties
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 8, 1976. The Bank offers a wide range of financial
scrvices that includes checking, savings, special savings, time, automated teller machine (ATM)
accounts, market vendors loan, agneultural loan, salary loan for employees, real estate loan,
consumption loan, commercial loan, credit line, bills purchased line, back-to-back loan, auto loan,
housing loan, developmental loan, and other financial services.

The Bank operates and provides its services through a network of nineteen (19) banking units
including its head office and a main branch in the area of Albay.

The Bank's principal place of business i< at 738 Bldg. Rizal Sireet, Old Albay Dustrict, Legazpi City.

Fobinsons Bank Corporation (the Parent Bank) acquired effective control and management of the
Bank on December 26, 2012, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) 3,
Business Combinations.

The Parent Bank 15 60.00% and 40.00% owned by JG Summit Capital Services Corpomtion and
Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc.. respectively. The ultimate parent company of the Bank is
JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Bank have been p on a historical cost basis,
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (PHP), the Bank's functional and
presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest peso (P), unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The Bank's financial statements have been prepared in compliance with PFRSs.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Bank presents its statements of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding the recovery or settlement within twelve (12) months after the statement of financial
position date (current) and more than twelve (12) months after the statement of financial position date
(non-current) is presented in Note 16.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the stalement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the recognized amounts and
there 15 an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the hability
simultancously.

The Bank assessed that it has a currenily enforceable legal right of offset if the right is not contingent
on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, and in the event off
solvency or bankrupicy of the Bank and all of the counterparties. Income and expense are not offset
in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation,
and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following new, amendments and improvements to PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine Interpretation which became effective starting January 1. 2021, Except as otherwise
indicated, these changes in the accounting policies did not have any significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Bank:

o  Amendment to PFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021

The amendment provides relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
modifications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lessee may elect not 1o assess whether a renl concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it
meets all of the following entena

o The rent concession 1s a direct consequence of COVID-19;

o The change m lease payments results ina revised lease consideration that s substantially the
same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change:;

o  Any reduction in lease payments afTects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2022: and

o There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments

resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a
change that is not a lease modification. i.e., as a variable lease payment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler April 1, 2021.
Early adoption is permitted.

* Amendments to PFRS 9, PAS 39, PFRS 7. PFRS 4 and PFRS 16. Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting
effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free
interest rate (RFR):

o Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

o Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as
a hedge of a risk component

The Bank shall also disclose information about:

o The nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arnising from financial
mnstruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks: and

o Their progress in compleling the transition to alternative benchmark rales, and how the eatity
is managing that transition

LRI EERTNA T
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Significant Accounting Policies

Fair Value Mcasurement

For measurement and disclosure purposes. the Bank determines the fair value of an asset or a liabality
al initial measurement date or at each statement of financial position date. Fair value is the estimated
price that would be received (o sell an assel or paid to transfer a Liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place cither:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability.

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible to by the Bank.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptlions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or hability, assuming that marke! participants act in their economic
best mterest

If the asset or liability measure at fair value has a bid and ask price, the price within the bid-ask
spread that is the most representative of fair value in the circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value, regardless of where the input is categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
marke! participant that would use the assct in its highest and best use.

Fair Value Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input
that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Valuation techmques for which the lowest level of input that 1s sigmificant 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3: Valuation techmques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the measurement
1s unobservable.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropnate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimuizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include *Cash and other cash items (COCI)', *Due from Bangko Sentral ng

Pilipmas (BSP)', *Due from other banks’ and *Secunties Purchased Under Resale Agreement
(SPURAY with eniginal matunties of three (3) months or less from dates of placements and that are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Due from BSP includes statutory reserves required
by the BSP which the Bank considers as cash equivalents wherein withdrawals can be made 10 meet
the Bank’s cash requirements as allowed by the BSP.

LR RERRTTA
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Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial instruments that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.
Settlement date accounting refers to (a) recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Bank,
and (b) the derecogmtion of an asset and recognition of any gamn or loss on disposal on the day that it
is delivered by the Bank. Deposils, amounts due from banks and customers and loans are recognized
when cash is received by the Bank or advanced to the borrowers.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable cost of acquisition or issue, except in the case of financial assets and financial labilities at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

‘Day 1" difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or computed based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. the Bank recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value (a ‘Day 1 difference) in the statement of
mcome, unless it quahifies for recognition as some other type of asset or hability. In cases where fair
value is determined using data which are not observable from the market, the difference between the
transaction price and the model value is only recognized in the statement of income when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Bank
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the amount of “Day 1" difference.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assels

Financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the contractual cash flows charactenistics of
the financial assets and the Bank's business model for managing financial assets. The Bank classifies
its financial assets into the following categones: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), lnancial assets at far value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) wath recycling
of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), financial assets designated at FVOCT with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equitly mstruments) and financial assets
measured al amortized cost (AC). For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an
‘equily instrument’ if it 15 a non-denivative and meets the definition of “equity” for the 1ssuer (under
PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation), except for certain non-derivative puttable instruments
presented as equity by the issuer. All other non-denvative financial assets are “debt instruments’.

Asx of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank do not have financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI.

Contractual cash flows characteristics

If the financial asset 15 held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or within a business model whose objective 1s achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, the Bank assesses whether the cash flows from the
financial asset represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. ‘Principal” for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at
mitial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of
principal or amortization of the premium or discount). Instruments that do not pass this test are
automatically classified at FVTPL.

&
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In making this assessment, the Bank determines whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., interest includes consideration only for the time value of
moncy, credit nsk and other basic lending risks and costs associated with holding the financial asset
for a particular period of time.

Business model

The Bank's business model 1s determined at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Bank's business model does not
depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument, rather it refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows.

The Bank's business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling inancial assets or both. Relevant factors considered by the Bank in determining
the business model for a group of financial assets include how the performance of the business model
and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the Bank's key
management personnel, the nisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assels beld within that business model) and how these nsks are managed and how managers of the
business arc compensated.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenanos without taking “worst case’
or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows afler mitial recognition are realized in a way that
is different from the Bank's original expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly onginated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if (i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in onder to collect contractual cash flows and (1) the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are initially
recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method, less any impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The amortization is included in *Interest income’ in the statement of income and 15
calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of the linancial asset, except for (i)
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and (1) financial asscts that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, where, in both cases, the EIR is applied to the amontized cost
of the financial assetL

The Bank classified *Cash and other cash items’, *Due from BSP, *Due from other banks', Secunities
purchased under resale agreements’, *Investment securitics at amortized cost’, “Loans and
receivables’ and refundable secunty deposits (included under *Other assets') as financial assets at
amortized cosl.

The Bank may irrevocably elect at imtial recogmition (o classify a debt financial asset that meets the
amortized cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the debt financial asset been measured al amortized cost.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has not made such designation.
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Reclassifications of financial instrumenis

The Bank reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, there 1s a change in the business
model for managing the financial assets. Reclassifications shall be apphed prospectively by the Bank
and any previously recognized gains, losses or interest shall not be restated. The Bank does not
reclassify its financial liabilities.

The Bank is required to reclassify the following financial assets:

e from amortized cost o FVTPL if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria are no longer met:

e from FVTPL to amortized cost if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost crileria start to be met and the instrument’s contractual cash Mlows meet the
amortized cost criteria.: and

* from FVOCI to amortized cost if the objective of the business model changes so that the fair
value eritena are no longer met but the amortized cost eritenia is still met and the instrument’s
contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost critena.

Impairment of Financial Assels
The Bank records expected credit loss (ECL) for all loans and other debt financial assets not
classified as FVTPL. together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

ECL represents credit losses that reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted amount which is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. ECL allowances are messured at amounts equal to either (i) | 2-month ECL or (u)
lifetime ECL for those financial instruments which have experienced a significant mcerease in credit
nsk (SICR) since imtial recognition (General Approach). The 12-month ECL is the portion of
lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are credit losses that results from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Staging assessment
For non-credit-imparred financial instruments:

e Stage | 15 compnsed of all financial instruments which have not experienced a SICR since mmital
recognition or is considered of low credit risk as of the reporting date. In determining whether an
account should be assessed under Stage 1, the Bank considers the number of days past due as its
criteria. Loans past due up to 30 days except for microfinance loans wherein days past due for
Stage 1 accounts is 0 - 6 days are considered Stage 1. The Bank recognizes a 12-month ECL for
Stage | financial instrumenls.

e Stage 2 1s compnsed of all financial instruments which have expenienced a SICR since initial
recognition. A SICR s gencrully deemed present in accounts with more than 30 days up to 90
days past due, except for microfinance loans. The Bank recognizes a hifetime ECL for Stage 2
financial instruments.

For credit-impaired financial instruments:
& Stage 3 is compnsed of all financial assels that have objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more loss events that have occurred after imitial recognition with a negative impact on

the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Bank recogmizes a lifetime
ECL for Stage 3 financial instruments.
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Definition of “default”

The Bank classifics a financial instrument as in default when it is credit impaired, or becomes past
due on its contractual payments for more than 90 days except for microfinance loans wherein days
past due is more than 10 days. As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in defanlt,
the Bank considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events
occur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as
defaulted. An instrument is considered to be no longer in default (i.c. restored) if there is sufficient
evidence to support that full collection is probable and payvments are received for at least six months.

Credit risk at initial recognition

The Bank uses internal credit assessment and approvals at various levels to determine the credit risk
of exposures at imtial recognition.  Assessmenl can be quantitative or qualitative and depends on the
materiality of the facility or the complexity of the portfolio to be assessed.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessmenlt of whether there has been a significant increase in credit nisk is based on an increase
in the probability of a default occurnng since mitial recognition. The SICR cnitenia vary by portfolio
and include quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency. The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased
significantly since imtial recognition if, based on the Bank's internal ¢redit assessment, the borrower
or counterparty is determined to require close momitoring or with well-defined credit weaknesses.

For exposures without intemal credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 30 days (except
for microfinance loans wherein the threshold for SICR is 7 - 10 days), the credit risk is deemed to
have increased significantly since initial recognition. Days past due are determined by counting the
number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been
received. Due dates are determined without considenng any grace peniod that might be available to
the borrower. In subscquent reporting periods, if the credit nisk of the financial mstrument improves
stch that there 1s no longer a SICR since initial recognition, the Bank shall revert to recognizing a 12-
month ECL.

ECL parameters and methodologies

ECL 1s a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default
(EAD), with the timing of the loss also considered, and is estimated by incorporating forward-looking
economic information and through the use of expenienced credil judgment.

The PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a 12-month horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime
horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual instrument is modelled based on histonic data and is
estimated based on current market conditions and reasonable and supportable information about
future economic conditions. The Bank segmented its credit exposures based on homogenous nsk
charactenstics and developed a comresponding PD methodology for cach portfolio, The PD
methodology for cach relevant portfolio is determined based on the underlying nature or
charactenistic of the portfolio, behavior of the accounts and materiality of the segment as compared to
the total portfolio.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from any
collateral.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in
the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, and expected
drawdowns on commutled facilities.

Forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit
nsk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of
ECL. A broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic inputs, such as GDP
growth, exchange rate, interest rate, inflation rate and other economic indicators. The inputs and
models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all charactenistics of the market at the date
of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made
as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly matenal.

Write-offs
Financial assets are wrilten ofT either partially or in their entirety only when the Bank has stopped
pursuing the recovery.

Restructured loans

Where possible, the Bank secks to restructure past due loans rather than take possession of the related
collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated. any impairment is measured using the onginal
EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans conlinue to be subject to an mdividual or collective
impairment assessment, calculated using the loan's original EIR. The difference between the
recorded value of the onginal loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at
the oniginal EIR. is recognized as part of interest income in the statement of income.

Financial Liabililies

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial habilities. The
classification of financial habilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the

financial liabilities are incurred and their characteristics.
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank hos no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities

This pertamns to financial habilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVTPL at the
inception of the liability. Other financial liabilities are recognized imually at fair value and are
subsequently camied at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective
interest method of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

This category includes ‘Deposit habilities’, ‘Redecmable preferred shares’, and certain items under
*Accrued expenses’ and “Other liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost. except for the following:

financial Labilities measured at fair value through profit or loss;
financial liabilitics that anse when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the Bank retains continuing involvement;
e financial guarantee contracts;
commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and
* contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in accordance with PFRS 3.
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A financial Liability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it elimmates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognilion inconsistency (an accounting mismatch) or:

o i a host contract contains one or more embedded denvatives; or
if a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and liabilities 1s managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
stralegy.

Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the movement in fair
value attributable to changes in the Bank's own credit quality is calculated by determining the
changes 1n eredit spreads sbove observable markel interest rates and is presented separately in other
comprehensive income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. The Bank assess that they have currently enforceable nght of offset if the nght is not
contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankrupicy of the Bank and all of the counterparties.

Income and expenses are not offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the
Bank.

rnition of Financial Assels and Linhilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assels) 1s derecogmized when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

s the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withoul matenial delay to & third party under o
‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

e the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has netther transferred nor
retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control over the
assel.

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement. it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the assel, nor transferred control over the asset, the Bank continues 1o recognize the transferred asset
to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement. In that case, the Bank also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the assocated hability are measured on a basis that
reflects the nights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Bank could be required to repay.
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The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated o the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new asset, with the difference between its carrying amount and
the fair value of the new asset recognized as a derecognition gain or loss in profit or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative factors in assessing whether a modification of
financial asset 1s substantial or nol. When assessing whether a modification is substantial, the Bank
considers the following factors, among others:

Change in currency

Introduction of an equity feature

Change in counterparty

If the modification results in the asset no longer considered “solely payment for pnncipal and
inferest”

The Bank also performs a quantitative assessment similar to that being performed for modification of
financial liabilities. In performing the quantitative assessment, the Bank considers the new terms of o
financial asset to be substantially different if the present value of the cash lows under the new lerms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the oniginal effective interest
rate, is at least 10.00% different from the present value of the remaining cash flows of the onginal
financial asset.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are rencgotiated or otherwise modified and the
rencgotiation or modi lication does not result in the derecognition of that financial assel. the Bank
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the onginal EIR (or credit-adjusted EIR for purchased
or ongmated credit-impaired financial assets) and recognizes a modification gain or loss in the
statement of income.

When the modification of a finuncial asset results in the derecognition of the existing financial asset
and the subsequent recognition of a new financial asset, the modified asset is considered a 'new '
financial asset. Accordingly. the date of the modification shall be treated as the date of initial
recognition of that financial asset when applying the impairment requirements to the modified
financial asset. The newly recognized financial asset is classified as Stage | for ECL measurement
purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed 1o be onginated as credit impaired (POCT).

Financial liability

A financial hability 1s derecogmized when the obligation under the hability s discharped or cancelled
or has expired. Where an existing [inancial liability s replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original Lability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in statement of
INCOImE,

and ipment
Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Depreciable property and equipment are carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been pul into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged against operations in the year the costs are incurred.  In situations
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where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be oblained from the use of property and equipment beyond its
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of
propenty and equipment

Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the depreciable assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of
the covenng leases and the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment follow:

Building 25 years
Fumiture and fixtures 1 103 years
Information technology (IT) and other office equipment 1 to3 years
Transportalion equipment 1103 years
Leaschold improvements 10 years

The useful lives and the depreciation and amortization method are reviewed penodically to ensure
that the period and the method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
patiern of economic benelits from the items of property and equipment and adjusted prospectively, if

appropnale,

The carrymng values of the property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized are
reviewed for imparrment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may
nol be recoverable. 1f any such indicanion exists and where the camrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, an impainment loss is recognized in the statement of income (see accounting
policy on Impairment of Non-financial Assets).

An item of property and equipment and any significant part mitially recognized 15 derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its usc or disposal. Any gain or loss

ansing from derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s included in the statement of mcome m the year the asset 15

derccognized.

The Bank classifies nght-of-use assets as pant of property and equipment. The Bank recognizes nghi-
of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.¢., the date the underlying asset 1s available for
usc). Right-of-use assets arc initially measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilitics. The initial cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized. initial direct costs incurred, lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any less any lease incentives received and
estimate of costs 1o be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. Unless
the Bank is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on o straight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated useful life and lease term.  Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Investment Properties

Investment propertics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction cosls
represent nonrefundable taxcs such as capital gains tax and documentary stamp tax that are for the
account of the Bank. An investment property acquired through an exchange transaction is measured
at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which
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cas¢ the investment property acquired is measured at the carrying amount of asset given up.
Foreclosed properties are classified as investment propertics upon: a) entry of judgment in case of
judicial foreclosure; b) execution of the ShenifTs Centificate of Sale in case of extra-judicial
foreclosure; or ¢) notanzation of the Deed of Dacion in case of dation in payment (dacion en pago).
The difference between the fair value of the asset acquired and the carrying amount of the asset given

up is recognized as “Gain on foreclosure - net” in the statement of income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, depreciable investment propertics are carmed at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement of
income under “Profit from assets sold” in the vear of retirement or disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment propertics have been put into operations, such as repairs
and maintenance costs, are normally charged against income in the year in which the costs are
incurred.

Depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis using the remamning useful lives from the ime of
acquisition of the investmen!t propertics but not o exceed ten (10) years for buildings,

Transfers are made to investment propertics when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced
by ending of owner occupation. commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when,
there 1s a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

For a transfer from investiment property to owner-occupied property., the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the property occupied by
the Bank as an owner-occupied property becomes an mvestment property, the Bank accounts for such
property in compliance with the policy stated under propenty and equipment up to the date of change
m use.

Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale

The Bank classifies disposal group as held for sale if their carryving amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction. Such disposal groups are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale, excluding the finance costs and income tax expense.

The cniteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable

and the assct or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions
required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will
be made or that the decision 1o sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale
expected within one year from the date of the classification.

Assets and habilities of disposal group classified as held for sale are presented scparately in the
statements of financial position.

er - Re d chattel
Repossessed chattels comprise repossessed vehicles and jewelnes. Repossessed chattels are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Depreciation is calculated on a
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straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives of the vehicles from the time of acquisition. The
useful hives of repossessed chattels are estimated to be three (3) years.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

mntangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carned at cost less any accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure 15 reflected in the statement of mcome in the
vear in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed 1o be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful [ife 1s reviewed at least at cach
statement of Dinancial position date. Changes in the expected useful hife or the expected pattem of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate. and treated as change in accounting estimates. The
amortizalion expense on imlangible assets with finite lives 15 recogmzed in the statement of mcome
consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for imparment annually cither individually or
at the cash generating unit (CGU) level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment conlinues Lo be supportable. If not. the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses ansing from the derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of income when the asset 1s derecogmzod.

Branch licenses
Branch licenses anse from the acquisibon of licenses to operale new branches from the BSP. Branch
licenses have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment on an annual basis,

Software costs

Software costs are carmied at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impamrment
loss. Software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life which is three
(3) years.

Impairment of Non-financial Assels

Property and equipment, investment properties and repossessed chattels

At cach statement of financial position date, the Bank assesses whether there 15 any indication that its
non-financial assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impaimment exists or when an annual
impairmenl lesting for an asset is required, the Bank makes a formal estimale of recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of an assel’s (or CGU’s) faur value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount 15 assessed as part of the CGU 1o which it belongs.
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Where the carrying amount of an assel (or CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or CGU)
is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
CGU).

An impairment loss is charged to operations in the year in which it arises. An assessment 1s made at
<ach statement of financial posation date as o whether there 1s any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1 such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recogmized impairment loss is reversed only 1f
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recogmized. 1fthat is the case, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) s
increased Lo its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannol exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of income unless
the asset (or CGU) s carmed at 2 revalued amount, m which case the reversal 15 treated as a
revaluation increase. Afier such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization expense is adjusted in
future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amounl, less any residual value, on a systemalic
basis over its remaining hife.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the statement of
financial position date either individually or at the CGU level. as appropnate. Intangible assets with
finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may
be impaired.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Bank follows a five-step model to account for revenue ansing from contracts with customers.
The hive-step model 15 as follows:

Identfy the contraci(s) with a customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract
Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

fpanmome

The Bank exercises judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying cach step of the model to contracts with their customers. The Bank has concluded that
it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Revenues within the scope of PFRS 15

Service fees and commission income
These fees include service fees on deposit-related accounts and management fees. Fees on deposit-
related accounts are recognized only upon collection or accrued when there is reasonable degree of

certanty as toits collection.
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Income from sale of property and equipment, investment property and repossessed chatrels
Income from sale of property and equipment., investment property and repossessed chattels are
recognized upon completion of the earning process and the collectability of the sales price is
reasonably assured

Other income
Other income is recognized when carned at a point in time and is recorded under “Miscellaneous
mcome” in the statement of income.

Revenues outside the scope of PFRS 15

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments,
interest income is recorded at the EIR. which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate. to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial hability. The calculation

takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment oplions),
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an
mtegral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or fancial liability 1s adjusted if the Bank revises its
estimation of payment or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original
EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as “Interest meome’.

Once the recorded value of a financial assel or group of similar financial assets has been reduced due
to an impairmenl loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original EIR applied 1o
the new carrying amount.

Interest income - finance fease

The excess of aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated residual value over the cost of the leased
investment property constitules the unearned leace income. Residual values represent estimated
proceeds from the disposal of investment property at the time lease 15 estimated. The uncarned lease
mcome is amortized over the term of the lease, commencing on the month the lease 15 executed using

the EIR method.

Unearned lease income ceases (o be amortized when the lease contract receivables become past due
for more than three months.

Renmtal income

Rental income ansing from operating leased propertics 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease lerms on ongoing leases and 1s recorded in the statement of income under *Miscellancous
income”.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized when it is probable that decrease in future economic benefits related to the
decrease 1n assel or an increase in liability has occurred and that the decrease in economic benefits
can be measured reliably. Expenses that may anse in the course of ordinary regular activities of the
Bank include, among others, the operating expenses on the Bank's operation. Expenses are
recogmized as incurred.

=J§=

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attnibutable 1o the acquisition of a qualifying asset.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activilies to prepare the qualifying assels are
in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred.  Borrowing costs are capitalized until
the qualifying assets are substantially ready for thewr intended use. All other borrowing costs are
expensed as incurred.

Leases
The Bank determines at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains. a lease by assessing
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of ime in

exchange for consideration.

Bank as a lessor

Finance leases, where the Bank transfers substantially all the nsks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the statement of financial position under
‘Loans and receivables’ account. A lease receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the net
mvestment in the lease. All income resulting from the receivables 1s included m ‘Interest income on
loans and receivables” in the statement of mcome.

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asscts arc classified as operating leases. Imitial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrving amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are
camed.

Bank as a lessee

The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes nght-of-use asscts representing the night to
use the underlying assets and lease habilities to make lease payments.

Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, vanable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Bank exercising the option to terminate, The vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate arc recognized as expense in the period on which the event or condition that tnggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Bank uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
Afler the commencement date, the amount of lease habilities 15 increased to reflect the aceretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
1s remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment 1o purchase the underlying asset. Lease habilities are
presented under *Other habilities” in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank applies the short-lerm lease recognition exemplion to its leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option, and low-value assets
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recognition exemption o its leases of kiosk spaces on offsite locations and other equipment that are
comsiderad of low value (1.c., below P250,000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leasces of low-
value assets are recognized as expense under "Occupancy and equipment-related’ on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Retirement Cost

The Bank has noncontnbutory defined benefit plan covening substantially all its officers and regular
employees. Under this retirement plan, all covered ofTicers and regular employees are entitled to cash
benefits after satisfying certain age and service requirements.

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation al the end of the reporting peniod reduced by the fair value of plan assets (1f any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset 1o the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefil plans is actuanally determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

* Service cost
* Net interest on the net defined benefit hability or asset
e Remeasuremnents of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service cosis which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine seltlements are recognized as expense in the stalement of mcome. Past service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are caleulated peniodically
by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit Liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of ume which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined beneft lLiability or asset

Net interest on the net defined benefit liabality or asset is recognized as expense or income in the
statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuanal gains and losses. refurn on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit hability) are recognized
immediately in statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they arise.
Remeasurements are nol reclassified to the statement of income in subsequent penods.

The Bank's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a scparate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Termination benefit

Termination benefits are emplovee benefits provided in exchangpe for the termination of an
employee's employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminale an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

By =

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the carlier of when the entity can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs.
Initial recognition and subsequent changes 1o termination benefits are measured in accordance with
the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-term employee benefits,
or other long-term employee benelits.

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Bank expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the OCL, net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at o pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting
15 used, the increase in the provision due to the passapge of time is recognized as an “Interest expense’
in the statement of income.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the

possibility of an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assels are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial stalements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expecied to be
recovered from or paid to the mxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the siatement of financial position date.
Effective January 1, 2019, management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums
with respect to situations in which applicable 1ax regulations are subject to interpretations and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred ax
Deferred tax is provided, using the statement of financial position method. on temporary differences

at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and hiabalities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax Liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. except:

¢  When the deferred 1ax liability arises from the initial recognition or an assel or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combmnation and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

*  [Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianies, associales
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
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Deferred tax assets are recogmized 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the camy forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized. except:

¢  When the deferred lax assel relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recogmiion of an assel or hability in a transaction that s not a business combination and, ot the
time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of deductible tlemporary differences associated with investment in subsidiaries,
associales and interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be avalable against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The camrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date
and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient future tlaxable income will be
available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred 1ax assets
are reassessed at each statement of fmancial position date and are recognized 1o the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear
when the asset 1s realized or the hability s settles, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation 1o the underlying transactions either in OCl or
directly in equaty.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax hiabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
same taxation authonty. Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying
criteria for separale recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about
facts and circumstances change. The adjustment 1s either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as
it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement peried or recognized in profit
or loss.

Events A fier the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide addinonal mformation about the Bank’s position at the statement of

financial position date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes 1o the financial statements when
material.

Standards 1ssued but not yet effective up 1o the date of issuance of the Bank’s financial statements are
listed below. The listing consists of standards and interpretations issued, which the Bank reasonably
expects lo be applicable at a future date. The Bank intends to adop! these standards when they
become effective. Excepl as otherwise indicated, the Bank does not expect the adoption of these new
and amended PAS, PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on the financial
stalements.
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended 1o replace a reference o the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3,
Business Combinations to avoid the issuc of potential *day 2°gains or losses ansing for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions. Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Philippine-1FRIC 21, Leviex, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 (o clanfy that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

Amendments to PAS 16, Plam and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property., plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing

those items, in profit or loss.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an enlity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is oncrous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “dircctly related cost approach™.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related 1o contract activities. General and admimistrative
costs do nol relate directly 10 a contract and are excluded unless they are exphicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contracl.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

=  Amendments to PFRS |, First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards,
Subsidiory as a first-time adopter
The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 1o
measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or
joimnt venture that elects to apply paragraph D16{a) of PFRS 1.

*  Amendments to PFRS 9. Financial Insiruments, Fees in the "10 per cent” 1est for
derecognition of financial liabilities
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial hability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial babilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.
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*  Amendments o PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair value measuremenis
The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entitics exclude
cash flows for taxation when measunng the fair value of assets within the scope of
PAS 41

Effective beginning on or after January I, 2023

Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give nise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clanfy that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax
purposes, it 1s a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether
such deductions are attnbutable for tax purposes to the liability recognized in the financial
statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expense).

An enlity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
carliest comparative period presented for annual reporting periods on or after January 1, 2023,

Amendments to PAS 8. Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes i accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
crrors. Also, the amendments clanfy that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an
mput or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not
resull from the comection of prior period errors.

Amendments to PAS | and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply matenality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by:

* Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their “significant” accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their *material” accounting policies, and

*  Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of matenality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024

Amendments to PAS |, Classification of Liabilities as Curremt or Non-current

The amendments clanfy paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, to
specify the requirements for classifying habilites as current or non-current. The amendments
clanfy:

What is meant by a right 1o defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting penod

That classification is unaffected by the likelithood that an entity will exercise its defermal right
That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

42_24

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025

PFRS 17. Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracls covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts (1.¢., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entitics that issue them, as well as to centain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers, In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathening previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 is the general model. supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee

approach)
= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

On December 15, 2021, the Financial Reporting Standards Council amended the mandatory
effective date of PFRS 17 from January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with
Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by the Insurance Commussion which deferred the
implementation of IFRS 17 by two years after its effective date as decided by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed 1o an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer Lo an associate or jont
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contnbution of asscts that does not constitute a business, however, i1s recognized only to the
extent of unrelated mvestors' interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the onginal effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASB completes its broader review of
the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses
and the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent Liabilities. Future events may oceur which can
cause the assumptions used in ammiving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in
estimates are reflected in the inancial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of matenal
adjustment to the carying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year:

Judgments

a) Evaluation of business model in managing financial instruments
The Bank manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain an adequate level
of financial assets to maich its expected cash outflows, largely anising from customers®
withdrawals and continuing loan disbursements to borrowers, while maintaining a strategic
portfolio of financial assets for investment and trading activitics consistent with its nsk appetite.

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Bank developed
business models which reflect how 1t manages its portfolio of financial instruments. The Bank's
business models need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but applied at the level of a
portfolio of financial instruments (i.¢.. group of financial instruments that are managed together
by the Bank) and not on an mstrument-by-instrument basis (i.c., not based on intention or specific
charactenstics of individual financial instrument). The Bank evaluates in which business model a
financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments belong to taking into consideration the
objectives of each business model established by the Bank.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent and more than an insignificant
sale 1s made out of a portfolio of financial assets carned al amortized cost, an entity should assess
whether and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.
In making this judgment, the Bank considers certain circumstances documented in its business
model manual to assess that an increase in the frequency or value of sales of financial instruments
in a particular period is nol necessarily mconsistent with a held-to-collect business model if the
bank can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not reflect a change in the
Bank's objective for the business model.

In 2020. the Bank disposed government secunties classified as HTC secunties with cammving
amount of P180.98 million which resulted in a gain of P2.93 million recorded in the statement of
income under “Profit from assets sold". The sale was due to a change in management's intention
from holding the instrument to collect principal and interest (o realizing the gan from the
disposal of the secunties in view of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The remaming HTC
securities of the Bank will remain to be under HTC business model (see Note 7).

=M=

b Contingencies
The Bank is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable cost
for the resolution of claims has been developed in consultation with the outside legal counsel
handling the Bank's defense in this matter and is based upon an analysis of potential results.
Management does not believe that the outcome of this matter will atfect the results of operations.
It is probable, however, that future results of operations could be matenally affected by changes
in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings
(see Note 23).

¢) Classification of disposal group as held for sale
In determining the classification of disposal group as held for sale, the Bank assesses whether the
held for sale entena were met. In making this judgment, the Bank considers the following:

+ availability of the disposal group for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales: and
¢ the sale must be highly probable

For the sale to be highly probable, management must be committed to the sale, and an active
program to locate a buver and complete the plan must have been initiated.  Further, the disposal
group must be actively marketed for sale at a price that 1s reasonable in relation to its current fair
value. Inaddition, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
withm one year from the date of classification and actions required to complete the plan should
indicate that 1t is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to
sell will be withdrawn,

The management of the Bank is committed to its plan to scll and has taken sufficient steps
necessary for the disposal of the assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2021. The Board
approved the sale of selected assets and liabilities to the Parent Bank in its meeting held on
October 21, 2021. The necessary applications and documents were submitted to the regulators in
November 2021.

Management has determined that the disposal group met the critena to be classified as held for
sale as of December 31, 2021. The details of the assets and liabilities of disposal group classified
as held for sale are disclosed in Note 24.

Estimates

a) Impairment of financial assets
The measurement of impairment losses under PFRS 9 across all categorics of financial asscts
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credil nisk, These estimates are dnven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ Internal credit gnading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades
Criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime CL basis and the qualitative assessment
¢ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
Development of ECL models, including the varnious formulas and the choice of inputs
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* Determination of associations between macrocconomic scenarios and, cconomic inputs, such
as uncmployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings. 1o
derve the economic mpuls into the ECL models

The ECL models and all ECL-related policies are approved by the Risk Management Commuttee
and the Board of Directors. The Risk Management Unit calculates the ECL for all credit nsk
exposures. The total ECL that will be booked by the General Accounting Division 1s approved
by both the Chicl Operating Officer and the Chief Risk Officer.

The carrying value of and the allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables of the
Bank as of December 31, 202] and 2020 are disclosed in Notes 8 and 12, respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses impairment on property and equipment. investment properties and repossessed
chattels whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Bank considers important which could trigger
an impairment review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future opemating
resulis:

+ significant changes in the manner of use of the scquired assels or the strategy for overall
business: and

+ significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value in use approach for
property and equipment and fair value less costs to sell for investment properties and repossessed
chattels. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if 1t is nol possible, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs.

The Bank's reversal for allowance for impairment losses pertains to increase in recoverable
amount of its investment properties which has been determined based on its fair value less cost 1o
sell, using the valuation techniques as discussed in Note §.

The details of the carrying values of and the allowance for impairment losses, if any, on property
and equipment, mvestment propertics and repossessed chattels are discussed in Notes 9, 10, 11
and 12.

Branch heenses

Branch license is considered an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life and it is required to
be tested for impairment annually by companng its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
irrespective of whether there 15 any indication that it may be impaired. The recoverable amount
of the CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculations using cash flow projections
from financial budgets approve by senior management covering a five-year period. The Bank
used the cost of equity as discount rate. Key assumplions used in the value in use caleulation are
pre-tax discount rate and growth rate, which are at 10.54% and 5.00%, respectively in 2021.
Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used
would cause the carrying value of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the licensing fee for establishment of a branch and a branch-lite
unit of a thrift bank is P0.20 million and PO.01 million. respectively. The camrying values of and
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the allowance for impairment losses on branch licenses of the Bank are disclosed in Notes 11 and
12, respectively. In 2021 and 2020, the Bank has not recognized provision for impairment losses
on branch licenses (see Note 12).

Present value of retirement fiability

The cost of pension and other employee benefits as well as the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuanal valuations. The actuanal valuation involves making
various assumplions. These include the determinaton of the discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions.  All assumplions are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the present value of relirement obligation of the Bank
amounted to P28.96 million and P22.64 million, respectively (see Note 19).

In determining the appropnate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapolated maturilies corresponding Lo the expected duration of the defined benelit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and 1s
modified accondingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific country.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recogmzed for temporary differences, unused tax losses and excess of
MCIT over RCIT to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Sigmificant management judgment 1s
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogmized, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits available which is primarily derived from interest
income on loans and receivables and affected by expected future market or economic conditions
and the expected performance of the Bank together with future tax planning strategies.

The estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain temporary differences will be realized
in the future. The primary source of the income of the Bank 15 coming from interest income from
loans and receivables. The Bank is in tax mcome position and tax loss position in 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Management uses historical information and forecast of fulure economic conditions
and overall strategies of the Bank as basis of growth in projecting future taxable mcome. The
details of the temporary differences with unrecogmized deferred tax assets and recognized
deferred 1ax assets and habilities are disclosed in Note 21.

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Bank’s financial instruments are credit, market and hiquidity risks. In
gencral, the Bank's nsk management objective is to ensure that risks taken are within the Bank's nisk
appetite, which is assessed based on the Bank's capital adequacy framework. The nsk management
process involves risk identification, measurement, monitoring and control.

The Bank recognizes that risk management is the responsibility of the entire organization.
Accordingly, all employees are expected to manage risks relating to their own responsibilites. Sull,
there are specialized entities within the Bank that perform certain nsk management functions.

L3
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The Board of Directors (BOD) ultimately oversees and approves significant matters related to nisk
managemen! throughout the Bank. The BOD directly camies out its primary responsibilities as
required by law and through commitices and subcommuttees for specific areas of focus. The
Management Committee approves all major risk taking activities of the Bank, and functions as the
BOD's operating commilttee for approval of all major credit risks.

Among the Bank's committees are:

¢ the Risk Management Committee (RMC), which formulates policies and strategies to idennify,
measure, manage and limit the Bank's risks;

¢ the Audit Committee (AC), which examines the Bank's framework of risk management, control
and govemance process Lo ensure that these are adequate and functional; and

¢ the Corporate Governance Committee (CGC), which ensures the BOD's effectiveness and due
observance of the corporate govemance principles and guidelines.

The following units within the Bank jointly perform risk management functions on a daily basis:

Compliance for regulatory risk;

Treasury for funding and liquidity nisk:

Credit Cycle and Operations for credit risk:

Risk Management for vanous nisks, including market, credit and operational risks; and

Intemal Audit for the evaluation of the adequacy of internal control systems, covering operational
nisk.

- & & & @

These units submit varous nsk reports to the Management Committee, the RMC, the AC, the CGC
and the BOD, among others.

Further specific risk management disclosures, including mitigation, measurement and control, are in
the succeeding sections.

Credit Risk

Credit nsk may be defined as the possibility of loss due to the lailure of a customer/borrower or
counterparty to perform its obligation to the Bank.

The Bank has several credit sk mitigation practices:

¢ The Bank offers a varety of loan products with substantial collateral values. The latter pant of
this credit nisk section discusses collateral and other credit enhancements.

+ Limits are set on the amount of credit nsk that the Bank is willing to take for customers and
counterparties. and exposures are monitored agamst such credit limits.

¢ The Bank also observes related regulatory limits such as the single borrower's limit (SBL) and
directors, officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI) ceiling.

¢ The Bank assesses the probability of default by its borrowers using an internal loan classification
system.

¢ Past due and non-performing loan (NPL) ratios are also used to measure and monitor the quality
of the loan portfolio.
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Maximum exposure to credit risk after collateral held or other credit enhancements
The table below shows the Bank's net credit nsk exposure for some tems in loans and receivables
after considering the financial effect of collateral and other credit enhancements:

21
Financial Mavimum
Carrying Fair Value Effect of Exposure o
Amounl of Collateral Caollateral Credit Risk
SPURA P17 595 804 PLIT.610 483 117,595 %04 -
Loans and receivables®
Receivables from customers
Consumption 1598612021 X063 874 ¥.527,698 LA 084323
Real estae 141 ARR213 303,071,552 140,630,679 B48.534
Commercial 5TASL154 137734565 S5, 754389 1.697.765
Other receivables
Avcrued interest recervable 1651392 - - 2651392
Sales contract recevahle 1R 431334 03836481 18431334 -
Accounts secenvable HAES2.994 - - K.652.99
M PLY971.BR3912 P76.317.955 PA31L948.904  PLL539.935008
*Incfwde acsedy of disposal group clexcgfied av el for sole
2020
Financual Maxirmum
Carrying Far Value Efficct of Expessre o
Amioumnt of Callateral Collateral Credit Rk
SPURA P29 6661 TS P120 689 227 P129666.175 P
Loans and meceivables
Recaivables from customers
Consumption 1.332,142.72) 205513546 141,170,687 1190972034
Commiercial 97 398200 280578397 £7.114.321 40283 88K
Renl estate E3. 486396 197692425 3 456,396 -
Orther receivables
Agcrued interest reccivable 127125905 = = 22725904
Axccounts receivable B/ININ - - BN
Sales contract recavable 20208312 112.880.7T82 20508512 =
Total P1.734.154.99% PO26 354477 P4319458891 PL3I2Z2209.104

Offserting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Bank has also entered into a reverse sale and repurchase agreements with varnious counterparties
that are accounted for as a collateralized lending. These transactions are subject to a global master
repurchase agreement with a nght of set-ofT only against the collateral securitics upon default and
insolvency or bankruptcy and therefore do not meet the offsetting criteria under PAS 32,
Consequently, the related SPURA is presented separately from the collateral securities in the Bank's
statements of financial position.

The table below presents the recognized financial instruments of the Bank that are offsel, or subject to
enforceable master netting agreements or other similar arrangements but not ofTset, as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, taking into account the effects of over-collateralization.

o @ e sl Effedt af recaaining righis of
set-off |m Net ameunt st -l that do st mect
Gaross umoumts  soeordance wish prewwicd in FAS 32 offsorting crigcris
af Feoeguieed e AN 32 stutemraty of
fimanial wffwritiog fimum bul Fimsncial Finuscial
Imstrumcnis crileria i Lt iEsErumen s oo llmbe il Sl £ AT

201

Flnandtal vty

aFURA F117595804 | P17 S95.504 »- F117.595804 L

W T

TG
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Carows oo aiy Effect of remalsing rights of
sl | Nt ansunt set-afT that do st msect
Giross gmousts sccordance with prewnied ia PAS 37 affsctting erigeria
of recagulesd the PAS 32 stutements of
fnandial affsctting Fim s [l Flimandial Flnascial

lmatrmments criteria ] kmstramen iy collaterl et euposure
2020
Funancial Asseis
SPFURA 129060, T4 P~ P19 b 174 P~ Fl29066,175 -

Collateral and other credit enhancement
The amount and type of collateral required depends

on an assessment of credit nsk. Guidelines are

implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

+ Recal Estate Mortgages (REM) over real estate for housing loan, consumption, and SME loans;

and

+ Chaticls Mortgages (CM) over vehicle and inventory for auto loans, consumption loan, SME

loans, and small business loans.

* Securities for securitics lending and reverse repurchase transactions

It is the Bank's policy 1o dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. In general. the
proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding clmm. and are not occupied for business use.

Concentration of credit

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economig, political or
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank's performance to

developments affecting a particular industry.

The 1ables below show the distribution of maximum credit exposure to credit nsk by industry sector
of the Bank before taking into account collateral held and other credit enhancements:

2021
Investment
Loans and Advansces to securities at Refundable
Receivables® Banlks**  amortieed cost deposits Total

Other service activibies PL6GT 824928 = " B PLG6T R2492
Financial snd insurance

Activities 0.533 602,928,375 - - 602,948,908
Whelesale and retail trade,

repanr of motor vehicles

and motoreyeles 189252170 - 20,000,000 - 209252170
Real estatie activilies 178630414 - 2427007 181,057,521
Agrculture, forestry amd fishmg 36.667.920 - - - 36667920
Construction 15351477 - - - 15351477
Educanion 11.896.965 - - - 11,896,968
Manufacunng 5609977 - - - 5609977
Accommmodstion & fooed

SETViCeS activities L1376 - - - £1373%
Profesonal, scientific and

techaizal activilies 4.713.939 - = = 4,7239%9
Tramporiation and storage L121.519 - - - 22271519
Misung snd quamying 295,624 - - - 295,624
Farvwerd)
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2021
Invstment
Louns and Advancs o securities at Refundable
Receivables* Banks** amortizod cost deposits Total
Water supply, sewernge,
wisle manapemienl and
remedistion Bevibes P156.867 | = #- F256.867
Arts, entertasnment and
recrealion 163,532 - - - 163,538
Activities of hotseholids as
employers. and
undifferenniated goods-
and-services-producing
activities of households
for own use 157067 - - - 157.067
Human health and social work 105,656 105,656
activities
Iaforrnstion and commimmeation 105403 - - - 105, 403
Electnoty., g, steam and air,
conditioning supply 6,074 - - - 96,074
Adrmunistrative and support
service activilies 82178 - - - £278
T 1IR 531,680 02 928378 240,004 2427107 2743887162
Less allowance for credit Josses 264 243572 = 1900 - 264.245.4712
PLESLIERIORE  P6O291R.ATS P1O.978.100 FLAZTI0T PF2ATLBALG6N
*nchude axscti of dispoxal group cleuviffod ar hefd for saile
** Compyriiad of Dvwe from 85, Dwe from other bandy and SPURA
2020
Investment
Liosms and Advances to seciFlies al R efundable
Receivables Banks® ' i
Other services activiins PLA19.53969T8 - B P~ PLAI9E9G9TH
Financial and imurince
activilnes 41,046 6TL744,129 - - 673,185,175
Wholesale & retail trade,
repair of motor vehicles,
motorcycles 209277029 - 20,000, (00 - 220277029
Real estate activities 121197876 - - 1968719 123,166,504
Agriculture, forestry and Gahmg S0 _SEE 425 - - - 50 588 424
Construclion 18.129.467 - - 18,129,467
Eduwcation 14.335.454 - - - 143354584
Mapufsctuning 8678163 - - - £678.163
Accommodatson and food
SETVICE activilies 6821863 - - - 6,821 563
Professional, sewentific and
technical activities B461 810 G461 810
Transpoctation and storige 2503 627 - - - 2.4503,627
Arts. enfertmnment and
recreation 518,186 - - - 518,186
Water supply, sewerage,
waste shanagement and
remediation solivibies 489 K65 - - - 489 65
Information and conmumcaion 196,955 - - - 196,985
Mimmyg and quarrying 186,574 - - - 156,574
Electncity, gas, steam and air,
condioning supply 167 894 167894
Hurnan health and social work
activites 124 4350 — — - 124,450
fFaracerd)
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v estiment
Loans and Advanoces 1o securilics of Refundable
Recavables Banks®  amortieed cost deposits Total
Activities of households as
emplovers and
undifferentisted goods-
and-services-producmy
sctavities of households
for own use pLLLITO B - [ PILITOD
| 860,026 862 672,744,129 20,000,000 1968719 2354730710
Less allowance for credit Josses 235 5IR042 = 1.900 = 135339042
PLA2ASEEI0 PoT2.744.129 P19.995.100 PLYGE.TIY P2319.199.768

*Comprived of Oue from B3P, Due from other banks ond SPURA

Credit quality

In ensuring a quality investment portfolio, the Bank monitors credit risk from investment securitics
using credit ratings hased on Standard and Poor (S&P).

Credit quality of due from BSP and other banks and interbank loans receivable are based on available

accredited intemational and local credit raters using Fitch as standard of rating.

The Bank assigns the following credit quality groupings based on ratings:

Credit Quality Fitch Moody's S&P Stage
High Grade AAA 0 A- Aaato A3 AAA 0 A- 1
Standard Grade BEB+ 10 BB- Baal to Ba3 BBE+ 10 BB- 1
Substandard Grade B+ 1o C- Bl toCan B+t C 2
Past due and impaired D E D 3

For consumer loans (1.c., auto and housing ) that are covered by application scorecards which provide
cither a pass/fail score, the basis for credit quality rating is the BSP classification and/or the status of

the account.

Neither past due nor individually impaired

The Bank classifies those accounts under current status having the following loan grades:

 High grade

Thus pertains to accounts with a very low probability of default as demonstrated by the
borrower’s long history of stability, profitability and diversity. The borrower has the ability to
rais¢ substantial amounts of funds through the public markets. The borrower has a strong debt

service record and a moderate use of leverage.

¢ Standard grade

The borrower has no history of defaull. The borrower has sufficient liquidity to fully service its
debt over the medium term. The borrower has adequate capital to readily absorb any potential

losses from its operations and any reasonably foresecable contingencies. The borrower reported

profitable operations for at least the past three (3) years.

+ Substandard grade

The borrower is expected to be able to adjust to the cyclical downtumns in its operations. Any
prolonged adverse economic conditions would however ostensibly create profitability and

liquidity issues.

-32-

Other credit assets which cannot be classified as High, Standard or Sub-standand are tagged as

+ Unrated grade
Unrated.
Impaired

Accounts which show evidence of impairment as of statement of financial position date.

Below are the staging parameters adopted by the Bank effective January 1, 2018 in relation to its

PFRS 9 adoption.

Staging Parameter

Stage

Description

Stagmg by Days Past Due

Stagmng by Status

Staging by Matunty Date vs
Cut-ofT date

(B

Applicable to all loan products.

Accounts with 0 — 30 days past due (applicable for all loan
products except for microfinance loans wherein days past
due for Stage | accounts is 0 - 6 days).

Accounts with 31- 90 days past due (applicable for all
loan products except for microfinance loans wherein days
past due for Stage 2 accounts 15 7 - 10 days).

Accounts with days past due of 91 days and above
(applicable for all loan products except for microfinance
loans wherein days past due for Stage 3 accounts more
than 10 days).

Applicable to all loan products except for Microfinance.
Accounts tagged as Current in its Status are classified
under Stage 1.

Accounts tagged as ITL in its Status are classified under
Stage 3

Applicable to all loan products.

If Matunity Date of the accountl 1s after the cut-off date of
the ECL Calculation, and if the days leading up to the cut-
off date from the matunty date 1s less than 30 days, the
account &5 lagged under Stage | (For Microfmance loans,
il Marturity Date of the account is afier the cut-off date of
the ECL Calculation, and il the days leading up to the cut-
off date from the maturity date is less than 10 days, the
account is tagged under Stage 1).

If Matunity Date of the account 1s prior to the cut-off date
of the ECL Calculation, and 1f the days leading up to the
cut-ofl date from the matunty date is more than 30 days.
the account is tagged under Stage 3 (For Microfinance
loans, if Maturity Date of the account is prior the cut-off
date of the ECL Calculation, and if the days leading up to
the cut-off date from the matunty date 1s more than 10
days, the account is tagged under Stage 3).
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The following tables show the credit quality per class of investments and other financial assets of the
Bank:

Devember 31, 2002
Stage | Stage 2 Smige } Toml
Dhie fioin RSP
Suesdard P00 564,49 F- F- FiR 561 551
Due froum ooheey basd<®
Stamdard B4, 767497 = - B TG 7,97y
Secarityes puiicbeund mulel imwile serecmen
Stadard 117595504 - - 11757580
Invetment secaitaes ol Ematisnd ot
Lo crpimcnl setumtics
Samdand - - - -
Componie bomls
smndand 19,998, 100 - = 199700, 100
Retusduble deports
Unnuted 2427107 - - 1477107

*Inciude asvees of dovpasal group clewified ax held for sale
December 10, Hi20

Sawe | Stape 1 Stape § Total
D frowm BSP
Stsdard R L P " P S 197
Do frons oty basds
Sumedard 95, 109302 Y DR A6D
Secenties purchesd oader resale sgrocmem
Stassdared 1 29,6456, 1 75 129668174
nveitmenl sooerites of anotirod ot
o emase il secumnies
Sandand
Corponts bonds
Smadand 19,068, 100 19, 10
Reresdaile deposits
Ulninmtiesd 1.8 719 1. TS
Pesa, 710,538 - - Pl T

The following tables show the credit quality per class of loans and receivables, gross of allowance for
credit losses and uncarned interest and discount of the Bank:

Dheewmbeer 11, 2001
Stagr | Stage 1 Stagc J Twtal
Recervable from cndnemen®
Comsnampion
Mevther Past Dise nor Ladivadinlly Dipaived
High grade r- r- r- L=
Standand e grade 1ATS.601 920 - - 1573801920
Substsadand’ Low grude FEELLE S - 4B ARA AT
Pt dise bt st fimpaipead - 16 K08 182 - JE A0S 182
Pt o snad ngaaiesd - - 212219518 ILIvA IS
LAY 0RT R8T 16824 142 211 15860 208,117
Cormmeicial
Nather Pesi Dise nor ladivadiually Impaired
Hagh grade — - - =
Standanl Mo prade 45800228 - A5 00 0N
Substasdand Los goade 2074915 - - 2074915
Pt dduse et mot impaired - Dl 035 - Dl 0345
Pt o i conpaingd - = 21022981 AR 229l
47900143 96,935 51123 981 [T
Keal cuare
Mevther Pt e viod Indivadioally binpaied
Hagh grude - - - =
Standant Medwn gesde 122,799,314 - - 11279
Subetasdard Low grade [EXUIERL = - 1505424
Patt dise bt st iipeasied - 417157 - 4,317,157
Pust o sl unpaccd - - 238645 N
T35 N THN 4317157 2y edt 142 %00 5TH
(Fisrmandy
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Deeember 31, 2021
Stage | Sage 1 Suage ) Total
[hleer receivables
Merther Pt Do por Isbivadeunlly Bmpaired
Hagh grade Fi151,168 r- [ B FI5L 068
Suandand. Medmam g rmde 42280428 = 7 42289428
Subsasdand | ow grade R4 887 - - AT 487
Past duc best et umpaired - b - pE LR A
Pt Juee sid impaired - - JT. 914307 37914307
SLIIS2S P k] JTR4307 13730040
] N5, N, F34.447287 F1ax 717,091 FLIFT NI NG
*Include aweis of disposal group chacsified as Aeld for sale
December 11, 2020
Smage | Sxape 2 Stage 1 Tatsl
Recaivable from customes !
.
Neowther Pait Do por Iadivadually Empadied
High grade - r- - -
Standand Medmns grade 1220035479 120038479
Subntessdand Lo grade (RN CERT ] - iR 1
Past due bot ot inpaiied 216643, 103 20803, 100
Pt duse auned wemguaized 194 LT o) 194247 Sl
1. 336,07TK.643 21.683.103 198 347900 1533089 644
Conmumnc s wal
Nevher Paut Dee nor Isshivadually Empaired
Hagh grade
Standand Medam gode T 232807 - T 212407
Subsassdand Low grade 2297, 180 i . 2 397 180
Past e et st imysined 6,455 228 GASH TN
Pas duee and rpaised - - [ h& AN %12
THATUANT b 438 218 [T ETH 150,506,347
Real estate
Newther Pait Do o lesdivadually Empained
Hitigh grade - - - -
Stundasd Mednms gt T0.aTT A28 TO4T7. A2
Substasdand Low grade 12192 480 12092 983
Past due ot ot mpared
Pt dose sind iompuacred - - 3549 48 3043 244
REAMLLLD 204 T48 4. 723 HE
Dbt roocivaldes
Neither Past Dae nor ledivadualby Bmipained
High grade P171450 r " PI7I A
Sesadand Medams grade SOINL407 $0.255.467
Substasdand Low grede 42, 733,335 - 42 713434
Past due bt ot Unpained 2,774,469 - 1774469
Pant due and wogaired L9000 L 4N 49,001, 148
A3, 1L a0 2. 774,369 4900 1 AN 143 90Ty
PS040 M2 P30, 923800 Fi13 211331 FLYAEIT.93]
Liguidity Risk

Liquadity risk may be defined as the possibility of loss due to the Bank's inability to meet its financial
obligations when they become due. Liquidity risk is considered in the Bank’s assets and liabilities
managemenl. The Bank seeks to lengthen hability maturities, diversify existing fund sources, and
continuously develop new instruments that cater to different segments of the market.

The Bank also keeps credit lines with financial institutions, as well as a pool of liquid or highly
marketable securities. Reserves management 15 another specialized function within the Bank,
complying with BSP reserve requirements, which may be a buffer against unforeseen liquidity drains.

The liquidity or maturity gap report is another tool for measuring liquidity risk. Although available
contraciual maturity dates are generally used for putting instruments into time bands, expected
liquidation periods, often based on historical data, are used if contractual maturity dates are
unavailable. The liquidity gap per time band is computed by getting the difference between the
inflows and outflows within the time band. A positive liquidity gap is an estimate of the Bank's net
excess funds for the time band. A negative liquidity gap is an estimate of a future funding

Lt
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requirement of the Bank. Although such gaps are a normal part of the business, a significant negative
amount may bring significant liquidity nsk. Te help control hiquidity nsk ansing from negative
liquidity gaps, maximum cumulative outflow (MCO) targets are set for ime bands up to one (1) vear.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining maturities

The ble below summanzed the matunty profile of the Bank's nancial instruments based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

December 31, 2021

Lpia (her 3 ap Ower |t
e demand 3 momibs e 12 momiths 5 Y oars Ohver 5 wears Tatal
Flinsnckal Aesris
g ludhing ssets of dmposal
roap clissifled s held for salz)
Cash sad other cash iten Fl0e648.011 - r- r- - Pl
Due froim BSP* 64564 892 336035600 = - = S00.598, 192
Due from ofver basks B4, 767979 - - - - He,TeT TS
Seiarities punchaced eader esalbe
agroomest® - 117400408 = = -~ 11700 0 400
Investinemi seoanias ol Enortarnd
cou® = IEu ST E42n3% 2 256, 291 = 33 33039
Lenss and recervohles™ 245867459 bR 08T pAY el R WA 190.506.600 1570215697
Refiandable deposits® 178,650 111860 ha v ] 1.5%0. 116 2691 a0 4,677,773
FSOL027.677 PSIATIRM  FPIMGATRL4NY FI L L T A RTTR TR )
Fimancial Lissbdlizhes
e ||.I||ln]r FualyiBetnes o ok Lpd.vhul
groap chsafied s held for saleh
Diepoai liabilies® PLOWISEIO00  PIA2LENELN PFRYOSNASHS  PLLE S KND PIINRIT PFLYTI R LN
Redoamable prefomed sharcs 30,700,000 == = e = 30,700,000
Acenied evpees did othes Lubidfses -
Adcnend cxpeonscs - 20,1 e - - - 20,1836%
Onher habalines*™ 1340384 17.542211 = 3602042 = TS

FLSONZII4E  PI90IE4355 PLMSOLER  PSITA60E PILI2981T PLUMTRLIE

"l (sl Pufure InAVeTs
** L mowflsancia) labilise

December 31, 2020

I..'|'| (%] hwer [ Dhagr | b
(i demand ¥ ooy o 12 ootk 3 Yean Over 3 yoars Total
Fusanci] Avels
Caah and ogher cmb itoms Pl Res. a0 P P | = r- P28 36)
Do from RSP B1.964 202 SH30%6 600 . 444 044 a2
Drue froems oot banks 93, 109 462 - - - = 98, 109 462
Secantses purchnod waler reale
agreement® 129,000,745 135, 0, 743
Investmont woanites ot keetirad
coat® = = 21,583,023 = 21863023
Lo and receivables® 245,867,419 GESAH0LT a0, ™ LA ANE]T 190 R066I0 2500224697
Retandahle deposits® 107387 AL 1007, 2 T 264 501 9T

PMTREILTAZ  PSTETMOTTT PRIANTA G PSSO AR0.84T  PI91STRNTS R0 00 774342

Fisancusl Lisbwlitics

Deposit liabilises® FL2XT.000,450 PRAnMTaaNe PR3 ATA0RL FRLA 134 483 PLATIOI 2000 313540
Eedoemabic prefomed shares 30, 200K = - = 30, 700 000
Acconied exponses and ather lubdaies
Adcnedd cxpenics = 20631393 - = 0081391
iOher liske|ine** 14303 608 2 403 346 e ) 11 387 &03 13 A2 Al prdea T LT

FIAI2 114838  P275924 KiR T EILSST  PIENATLTTH PI3.463 701 2232 939,05

* b {ealy furure infereni
** L v il momflnancial o bilises

Market Risk
Market risk may be defined as the possibility of loss due to adverse movemenis in market factors
such as rates and prices. Market risk is present in both trading and non-trading activities.

These are the risk to carnings or capital arising from changes in the value of traded portfolios of
financial instruments. The risk anses from market-making. dealing and position-taking in quoted
debt securities and foreign exchange.
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The Bank observes market nsk limits, which are approved by the BOD and reviewed at least
annually. Limits are set in such a way as to ensure that nsks taken are based on the Bank's existing
capital adequacy framework. and corresponding monitoring reports are prepared regularly by an
independent risk management unit.

When limits are breached, approval is sought from successive levels of authority depending on the
amount of the excess, Limit breaches are peniodically presented to the BOD.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nsk anses from the possibility that changes in interest rates will aflect future cash flows
or the fir values of financial instruments.

The Bank’s ALCO surveys the interest rate environment, adjusts the interest rates for the Bank's
loans and deposits, assesses investment opportunities and reviews the structure of assets and
liabilities. The Bank uses Earmings-at-Risk (EaR) as a tool for measunng and managing interest rate
nisk in the banking book.

Earnings-at-Risk objectives and methodology

EAR is a statistical measure of the likely impact of changes in interest rates to the Bank's net interest
income (NII). To do this, repricing gaps (difference between interest rate-sensitive assets and
liabilities) are classified according to time to repricing and multiplied with applicable historical
inlerest rate volatility, although available contractual repricing dates are generally used for putting
instruments into time bands, contractual matunty dates (e.g.. for fixed rate instruments) or expected
liquidation periods often based on historical data are used alternatively. The repricing gap per time
band is computed by getting the difference between the inflows and outflows within the time band. A
positive repricing gap implies that the Bank's NII could decline if interest rates decrease upon
repricing. A negative repricing gap implies that the Bank's NII could decline il interest rales increase
upon repricing. Although such gaps are a normal part of the business, a significant change may bring
significant interest rate risk. To help control interest rate risk arising from repricing gaps. maximum
repricing gap and EaR/NII targets are set for time bands up to one year. EaR is prepared and reported
to the RMC monthly. staring December 201 5.

The change in interest rate 1s calculated using historical ssmulation. It i1s computed as the 99"
percentile rank change in rates if the gap 1s negative (liability-sensitive) or the 1st percentile rank
change m rates if the gap is positive (asset-sensitive).

The Bank's EaR figures as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows (in PHP millions):

2021

Average Highest Lowest December 31

Instruments sensitive to local intcrest rates #-0.06 B#5.51 #2.78 #0.11
2020

Average ng,lm Lowest December 31

Instruments scnsitive to local nterest rates £0.54 P42 (RF7.38) P0O.00

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Bank's policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within
acceptable limits.
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Changes in foreign exchange rates have no significant impact on the Banks's foreign exchange gain
or loss on *Due from other banks" as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Fair Value Measurement

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of the Bank's financial instruments are
reasonable approximations of fair values except for investment secunties at amortized cost, loans and
receivables, refundable deposits and deposit liabilities with terms of more than one (1) year.

The methods and assumplions used by the Bank in estimating the fair value of the financial
instruments are as follows:

Investment securities at amortized cost - Debt securities

Fair values are genenally based on quoted market prices. I the market prices are not readily
available, lar values are esimated using adjusted quoted market prices of comparable investments or
using the discounted cash flow methodology.

Receivables from customers, sales contract recetvable, finance lease receivable and refundable
deposits

Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology. using the average market price
of savings banks for similar types of receivables with maturities consistent to the receivable being
valued. Where the instruments reprice on a short-term basis or have a relatively short maturnty, the
carrying amounts approximate fair values.

Time and special savings deposits

Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology using the Bank's current
incremental borrowing rates for similar borrowings with matunities consistent with those remaining
for the hability being valued

Investment properties

Fair value of investment properties arc based on market data (or direet sales comparison) approach.
Thas approach rclies on the comparison of recent sale transactions or offenings of ssimlar properties
which have occurred and/or offered with close proximity to the subject property.

The fair values of the Bank's investment properties have been determined by appraisers, including
independent eXtemal appraisers, in the basis of the recent sales of similar properties in the same areas
as the investment properties and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time of
the valuations are made. The Bank has determined that the highest and best use of the property used
for the land and building is its current use.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost except time and special savings deposits
Carrying amounts approXimate fair values due 1o either the demand nature or the relatively
short-term maturities of these labilities.

-3%.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of loans and receivables and
deposit liabilities for which carrying amounts do not approximate fair values:

2021
Carrying
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Financial Assets
Investment secuniics af armormized cost P19.995 100  P19.785.450 P~ P~ 19785450
Loans and recevables:
Recevables from customers.
Consurmplion 1.598,612,021 - = 1625665320 16256653529
Commercial STASLIM - E8.7T15501 EB.715.500
Rzl estane 141488213 - 141,766,120  141.766.120
Onheer receivables
Sales contradt receivable PIR A3 - B- PLARTIO0N  PL3RTIOMN
Refundable deposits 427007 - - 2063460 2063460
Non-financial Asets
Investment properties 96. 715942 - = 196386264 196386264
Financial Linbilities
Deposat liabilities
Time IR2 528914 - = IRIRROSRY IRARR9SRI
Savings 1,673.983,657 - = 1LAT6IILYTS 1676130975
2020
Carrymg
Value Level 1 Leved 2 Level 3 Fair Valise
Finamcial Assets
Invesiment secunlies o arnormired cost FI9995 100 PI9.442468 P P~ P19.442.468
Loans and neceivables:
Recevables from customen
Constirmpinon 1,332, 142,721 - = 1548530996 | S48 530996
Commercial 97398209 = = 151820361 151.820.361
Real estate 83,486,196 - §4.389.009 84389009
Other recevablis
Sales contract rectvable 20,508,312 - - 17016087 170168087
Refundable deposits 1965719 - = 1.92.579 1.792.579
Mon- frnsricial Assets
Investment propertics 105815713 = = 20386136 210.886.136
Financial Liabalities
Depoat liabilities
Trme 162276750 = = R64021 487 I64.021 487
Savings 432.047.648 = 452628300 452628300

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Bank determines

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole at the end of each

statemenl of financial position).

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and there were no

transfers into and out of the Level 2 category in 2021 and 2020.
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Description of significant unobservable mputs to valuation:

Accoumnts Valustion Technigue Significant Unobservable lnputs

Lovans snd receivables Discounted cash Now method £.13% - 12.25% nak premium rate
Investment propertics

Land Market data spprosch Price per square meter, size, shape, location,

tune element and disount

Buitlding Cost approsch Cost per square meter, sure, slepe, location,

and tme element

Depost labilities Discounted cash Aow method (.25 -3.50% Risk Premmm Rate

Refundabe deposits Discounted cash Now method T.67% - | 1.00% Risk Premiuem Rate

Significant mereases (decreases) in pnce per square meter and size of investment properties would
result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of the propertics. Significant increases (decreases) in
discount would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the propertics.

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Size Size of lot in terms of arca. Ewvaluate if the lot size of property or
comparable conforms to the average cut of the lots in the area and
estimate the impact of the lot size differences on land value.

Shape Particular form or configuration of the lot. A highly irregular shape
limits the usable area whereas an ideal lot configuration maximizes the
usable arca of the lot which 1s associated in designing an improvement
which conforms with the highest and best use of the property.

Location Location of comparative properties whether on a main road, or
secondary road. Road width could also be a consideration if data is
available. As a rule, properties located along a main road are supernior
to properties located along a secondary road.

Time Element An adjustment for market conditions is made if general property values
have appreciated or depreciated since the transaction dates due to
inflation or deflation or a change in investor's perceptions of the market
over time. In which case, the current data is superior to historic data.

Discount Generally, asking prices in ads posted for sale are negotisble. Discount

is the amount the seller or developer is willing to deduct from the posted
selling price if the transaction will be in cash or equivalent.

7.

Investment Securities at Amortized Cost

This account consists of

2021 2020

Corporate bond P 20,000,000 P20,000,000
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 12) {1.900) {1.900)
P19.998.100 P19.998.100

In 2021 and 2020, investment secuntics at amortized cost were carned at Stage | and there were no

transfers into and out of Stage 1.

[n 2020, the Bank disposed government secunties classified as HTC securities with carrying amount
of P180.98 million which resulted in a gain of P2.93 million recorded in the statement of income
under ‘Profit from assets sold”. The sale was due to a change in the Bank's intention on the
instruments from holding to collect principal and interest to realizing the gains from the disposal of

the secunities in view of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The remaining HTC secunitics of the

Bank will remain to be under HTC business model.

The Bank's investmenis in corporate bonds classified as investment securities at amortized cost bears

effective interest rates of 4.52%.

In 2021 and 2020, interest income on investment securities at amortized cost follow:

6. Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreement

SPURA pertains to lending to BSP and have a remaining maturity of three (3) days. Asof
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair value of the related collateral of SPURA amounted o
P117.59 million and P129.67 million, respectively.

SPURA eams annual interest ranging from 2.00% in 2021 and 4.00% to 4.75% in 2020. The interest
income of the Bank from SPURA amounted to P2.16 million and P4.0] million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

2021 2020
Govemment securilies P- Pl BRI 464
Corporate bonds 894,834 1.710.875
PE94.834 P1.594339
8. Loans and Receivables
This account consists of:

2021 2020

Receivables from customers:
Consumption P1,774.564,.246 P1.553,089,649
Commercial 49.371.385 151.836.347
Real estate 6.473.191 84,722 858
1.830,408,822 1.789,648,854
Less: Unecarned interest and discount 71,884,075 50,193,981
Discount on loan modification 6.657.591 24.397.000
1.751.867.156 1.715.057.873

Other receivables:

Accrued interest receivable 48340615 76,603,136
Accounts receivable (Note 22) 16,980,148 46,554,431
Sales contract receivable 18.554.616 21,811,512
1.835.742.535 1,860,026,862
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 12) 262,843,309 235,518,042
P1.572.899.226 P1.624.488.820

17
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding allowance for credit
losses in relation to consumption loans follow:

pL M|
Stage | Stage} Staged Towl

Gaross cATTYIRE ameEnt
Beginning balmnce PLAMOTR G4 PRIGED 103 PL9E347 903 PLLEL 08D 649
New mssets onginated or purchassed 1952 459.9T0 - - 1952459970
Assets derecognired of nopasd

{exchadmg write offs) (1619452981 (3.739.809) 120,148, 710) (1644340 802)
Tramsfers 10 Stage | 11325914 (M TEA3T) (147.577) =
Teznsfers to Stage 2 (22184 828) el T 1] (412 278) -
Transfers 1o Stage 3 {36, 168.912) (LA87.309) IR6S56.221 -
Amobunts writice off - - - -
Ending balance befire effect of disposal group 1622 KT i JaE2E 152 2295159 1861208117
Effect of disposal group clewsifed

s held for sale (Note 24) 866 16,055 = (27816) (6. 643871)
Ending balance F1A35.471.751 FloALS 152 FI12267.043 F1.774.564.246
Allowance for credit lowes
Beginning balmnce P126KR 444 P17 L000 PLISRTI T PLERT3ATTY
Provisions for {reoovery of) crodit bosses® 19032, 1% (199.616) 173994678 232201
Tramsfers to Stage | 272 (TT.06%) (15.603) =
Teansfen o Siage 2 (138.312) pULE L i67.246) -
Tramsders 1o Swage 3 (M I15321) (3n401) 10340723 =
Amdninds wrdties off - - - -
Ending balance before cffect of disposal group 11,359,733 65950 173537276 154,95, 958
Effocts of desposal group classified

as beld for sale (Note 24) (596 10§ - {5 ATE) (601 552 )
Endme balsnoe P10 763 629 i, TR0 #17. 1,798 P84
*The mer affect o alivwance of rrangiers denweon Stage I oo Jare rgffecied iy provician for frecoveny off oredin locies

010
Stage | Stage 2 Stape 3 Total

Ciross camymg amsount
Begmming balance P1365.071.080 P22923.501 PI06.159.217 P15 540098
New macts ongimated of purchased 185,346,170 - LRSS 346,070
Assets derseamired or repasd

{exchudmg wiite offs) (L1281 82.550) (22 030,678) (43.336,256) (L193549 48 7)
Transders 1o Stage | Gy, 750 (814321} [U2A2T)
Toamsfers o Siage 2 (23,530, 985) 23530959 -
Teamufers to Stage 3 (61,531.81%5) [ 65,478,501 ~
Amunts writien ofl N - - {12.K61.132) (32.861.132)
Lrdug balaus Pl330.0TE M3 P21.663, 103 PL95347.503 P 353,059 649
Allpwance for cnedit losses
Beginning balnoe P13.203.767 P227 861 PLLLRTS 9IS P35 307 345
Provisions for (recovery of) crodit losses® 16629241 (223.013) 988134 26,287 S04
Tramifers o Suage | 37230 {1.002) 56.21%) -
Trensfers to Stage 2 (195.851) 195851
Transfers to Stage 3 {17.005.933) (37 %00 17033 535
Amduints writies off - {I2861.133) {32.E61.132)
Ending balance FI:’,MJ‘_E;M PIT Lo Pl 353?:}_,_?_14 PIEY.T3TTT

*The mer cffecy on allfowance of rangiers benoeos Stage [ oo 3 urr:l.;ll'rﬂnl’ i prrrrdan for oredin koxses

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding allowance for credit
losses in relation to commeraial loans follow;

2071

Stage | Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amewnt
Beginning balance FIRA29.4557 PO ASE 2N PubRIBA32 PISI 36347
New asscts onginated or purchased S350 10.8M - - 5 0105M
Assets derecogmized or repasd

{exchoding write offs) 184.6%9,753) 15,209,607 {14.950.316) (104, Bal, 1 7R}

Tesnsfen to Stage | - = - o

Transfers 1o Stage 2

fFarwerd)

-3F =
Pk
Simpe | Stnge 1 Stage 3 Total
Tramsters 1o Stage 3 (PO3T ST} P17 086 PI2%8 248 -
Amouiis writien off = = = =
Ending balance before cffect of disposal group R ENTE] [T 3,022 981 101 987 649
Effacts of disposal group classifisd
as held for sals (Notc 24) (47,903,143} s (4,712,531} {E1.615.674)
Ending balance P- P, 938 PAR. 410420 493713858
Allow ance for eredit losses
Beginning balance P3N PLEIZA00 PS0432.022 F52L457.714
Provisions for (necovery of) crodie losscs® 3T e {1 33 S (TH¥R.717) (4,950, 32%)
Tramfers to Stage | - - - -
Transfors o Stage 2 (15) 18 — -
Transfer 1o Stage 3 [ERER R0 - 434 030 -
Amounts writicn of - - - -
Ending balance before effect of disposal group 620 L] 43371238 41,207 486
Effioces of disposal group classified
as held for sale (Nowe 24) (236.213) - {15,695 [RESR T
Ending balance P- Pig P43 285 L0 P41 248 878
*The wet affect on allvwasce of ranglers hetween Stage | 1o 3 are reflechad in recovery af credil fonie
020
Suge 1 Stage 1 Stmge 3 Toul
Gross camymy smount
Heginning halmee P57.998.243 P13.3 34,989 P104,59% 498 PI75.931.730
Mew ausdts originated or purchaned 81930509 - #1930 6450
Assets derecognzred ar repaisd
{exclodng wiite offs) {19,027 221) {14,654 690) (27319471} (61,001 382)
Trasufers to Stape | 1588371 (31.588.377) -
Transfers 1 Suage 2 (12,447 404) 12447 4009
Transfers to Stage 3 {32 513,068} {1.050.107) 14554178
Amounts writton off = - (45.024.670) (45.024.670)
Ending balance PTE_329 557 PhdRR I POh RTINS PILSLERG 347
Ablowance for credat losses
Reginning balance 179,508 961 P93 211,752 B93,392.021
Provisions for crodi losses® 2265148 - - 2265148
Trmnsfers to Stage 1 - - -
Transfiers to Stage 2 (1632, S0y 1632500
Tranadfers to Suagpe 3 (518.964) (6l 519935 -
Amounts wrighen off - . (45,024,670} (45,024,670
Ending balsnos P293.192 Pl.6d2 500 P50.532.002 P31.457.714

*The met gffect on alfowasce of ransfers berween Stage | o 3are reflecied iw provecion for frecovery aff oredis dosies

An analysis of changes in the gross camrying amount and the corresponding allowance for credit
losses in relation to real estate loans follow:

2021
Saage | Stage 1 Stage 3 Toel

Corow earryimg amount
Begmnning balmnce PR2AT0010 P- FLO5LT48 P34,722 85K
New asets originated of purchaed 112,670,200 - - 112,670,200
Asscts derecognired or repaxd

(exchodmg write offs) (#9437 .542) aMas Ay 897 (LSRR T
Tramsfers 1o Stape | - - - -
Transfers fo Stage 1 - - - -
Traaifer 1o Stage 3 - - - -
Amounts writion of -~ s
Puiling Sahence hefomi offect cF disgaml ploup 135,502,768 4317457 2384645 142504570
Effects of disposal group classified

a5 beld for sale | Nose 24) (1M 389 379) - 164 2 (Wb} (136,031 379
Endug balanc: [SIEE ] [TETEN LT P1.T42645 Po.4T73.091
fForward)

PRI A
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11|
Stpge | Stage I Stage } Jotal

Allowsnce for credit losses
Beginning balsnce PI57214 P- P17 PRIN A
Provision for (rcovery of) orodit losses® 4M2TH - 141,M7) 29315
Transders 1o Stage | - - - -
Transfer o Swage 2 (9.417) 2417 - -
Transdors 1o Stage } (180,556 = 180,55 =
Amounts writies off o= = = .
Ending balance belore cffoc of disposal group TN 2417 T21.2% L132.218
Effects of dexposal group classified

as held for sabe (Nose 24) (401.511) = (71.959) (473.470)
Ending balanoe P- PALT Pid9.331 T48
*Tie met effect on allowonce of rransfers between Stage I to 3 are reflected in recovery of credis loises

iR
Stage | Stage 1 Stuge 3 Total

Giross cammymy amount
Beginning halsnoe Paf. 693 108 PiLLLs P5ARTIN4 P52 313437
MNew assets onginaed or purchased SH. 256, 000 - - 58,256,000
Assets derocognined or repaid

{excludme wte offs) {20,624 25T) (53.11%5) (153,680 (20.831,052)
Transfers 1o Stage | = = = >
Transiem (o Stage 1 = = -
Tramsfers to Stage 3 (1604, 740) 1694741
Amounts writlen off - - (5075627 {S075.62T)
Ending balance PE2.670.110 - 2052748 PRA.T11ESE
Allowance for credin losses
Beginnmg balance | P- P5ART 04 P5.629975
Provision for credit losscs® 116,15 - |68 418 184607
Tramsfers to Stage |
Tramafers to Stage 3
Tramsfers wo Stage 3 { 1.636) - LA36 -
Amotinti wishien off - = (3 075627) {3 075.62T)
hnd'mE balance PIST 24 P- PeR1. 751 PEAE 965

—y

*The met offect on allowonce of rrangerx bevween Stape 1 o 3 are refiectad tn provivios for frecovery of) creadlt lowtes

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding allowance for credit
losses in relation to other receivables follow:

2021 ~
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Girow carryimg amanni
Beginnang balanos PR3 1462 2774468 400004149 PLALDES 0TS
New asscts origimated or purchased 204070425 - - 20070525
Assens devecopnived or repaid

{enchedmg wiite offs) (9T.964.475) (1.307.314) 23505, TH3 (TR, 76004 )
Transfers to Stage | AR, 188,740 (6TLT9) {47.513.949) -
Tramsfen o Stage 1 (PER1.6T1) F1L195.458 iP1.403,787) r-
Traasfers w Sage 1 (11L.5T8330) (743,779 12322110 =
Amounts writien off = - — =
Ending balanoe before cffect of disposal group SLU5150 L4041 3014008 1371800
Effects of desposal group classified

as beld for sake (Noae 24) iT419.0613) - [TH.LOE) (TAYE221)
Ending balance P8 09E 617 3344043 37818, 700 FRIATE ST
Allpwvance lor credit loses
Beginning balanoe PRILTSY PLG6. 158 PRI AL9.668 P13 597 4R%
Provisions for {recevery of) crodit losses® (4, 109, 0465) (135,00 6554380 10130295
Tranufers 1o Stage | £ 130, T8 (5.042) (5, 128.717) -
Transfers w Sage 2 (A151) 1395 06 {1 3B7 RE5) =
Transfers o Stage 1 (4T, 0 5%) (2R818) 49577 -
Amounts wrines off - = = _ m
Ending balance before effect of disposal group 1261172 FLTT 13140440 34637 580
Effects of dxposal group clesified

ax held for sake (Note 24) (52611} - (20,692} (13.303)
Ending balance P1.204 561 P23 208 P13.119.731 FJIM_

*The met effect on allowoance of trangfers bepween Sioge | o 3 are reffeciad in provivioa for ored it Loves

-44 .
Mo
Stage | Stage ] Stae 3 Towml

o cammymg amount
Begnning balsnce P54 918 934 Pe 854 512 P26 745,799 PER 519 855
New asscts enginated or purchased 92,999,456 - - L9456
Asaets derecognared or repaid

(exchadasg write offs) (X2A437451) (5,855 _56T) (962.0012) (29 2ER.0010)
Tranafors to Stage | S R55 (194, |82} (630,673) =
Tremafers 1o Stage 1 (1143 580 2 IR0 736 11,136.K36)
Tranafors o Stage 3 (3,991 .462) (278.4350) 32169912 -
Ainoinds writien off - - (7283 (03} {7282 0X7)
Ending balanoc P93, 1 90,362 2,774,469 49,004, 1458 Flad 969079
Allowance for credin Josaes
Beginning balance P&TL O Pei® ol PlO.109a2Y 20,392 406
Provisions for {recovery of) credit losses® 165363517 (454 K1) 418R512 20,397 201
Tramafers 1o Stage | L0044 {196} (S0 448)
Tranifers 1o Stage 2 (160,733} 160,731 - -
Transfen lo Stage 3 (16235462) (148541 ) 16.384.003 -
Ainoiints wiitien off - - (7. 382 (1) {7,282 033)
Ending balance PFR9L 759 PLG6. 155 Pila49 568 F33.507 585
*The met affect on aliowence of ransfers bevwesw Stage § 0o § are reffecied i provvision Jor recovery of ) credlis losses
Sales contract receivable eams interest at annual fixed rates ranging from 10.00% to 14.00%
in 2021 and 2020.
Interest income on loans and receivables consists of:

2021 2020

Recervables from customers:

Consumption B290,082.687 PF285.126.789
Commercial 4801412 18,244,709
Real estate 8477536 6,498 957
Accretion of interest on the modified loans 17.739.500 55.441.023
Sales contract receivable 2.867.637 2432144

P323.968.772 P367.743.622

On March 25, 2020, Republic Act No. | 1469, otherwise known as the Bayanihan to Heal as One Act
{(“Bayanihan | Act™) was enacted. Bayanthan 1 Act provides that all covered institutions shall
implement a 30-day grace penod for all loans with principal and/or interest and lease amortization
falling due within the ECQ Period without incuming interest on interest, penalties, fees and other
charges. Subsequently, on September 11, 2020, Republic Act No. | 1494 otherwise known as the
Bayanthan to Recover as One Act (“Bayanihan 2 Aet”), was enacted. Under Bayanthan 2 Act,

a one-lime sixty (60)-day grace period is granted for the payment of all existing, current and
outstanding loans falling due, or any part thereof, on or before December 31, 2020, without incurming
inferest on interests, penalties, fees, or other charges and thercby extending the matunty of the said
loans. Furthermore, a minimum 30-day grace period shall also be granted by covered institutions to
all payments due within the period of community quarantine on rent and utility-related expenditures
withoul incurnng penalties, interest and other charges.

Based on the Bank's assessment, the modifications in the contractual cash flows as a result of the
above reliefs are not substantial and therefore do not result in the derecognition of the affected
financial assets. Total modification losses resulting from Bayanihan | Act and Bayanihan 2 Act
amounted to £79.84 million. Accretion of interest on the receivables from customers amounted to
P17.74 rullion and P55.44 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

13
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9. Property and Equipment 10. Investment Properties
The composition of and movements in this account follow: The composition of and movements in this account follow:
2 2021
Farailure, Hight af- m—
Famsressnd Trassportation  Lemsebold pran: Land Building Total
Laad Buildisy  Fquipmaont Egquipmacal Lnpres aaeats (e 20} Tatal Cost
sl . ’ <
Balasoes i begsmng of yor PIAISASIT  WINITETRZ  FIILSOSIE O IRANAOZ0  PEOSELOI4  PTLOMSHEL  PABATIMS Balances at beginming of year B123.977.054 BIS101,720  BLITITH
Addbiticsiss = 65421 9849 568 304,734 411987 TN 25 455,584 Additions 9. 118,000 5882 857 15,000,857
Dusposals ModiBaton . . (SM22mw (1122288 - LI (1372
Rcchams fications (Mol 1) - 5 205550 1455000 (K24,128) - LABRTZE Dispasals (26.217.687) (9.098.500) _ (35.316.187)
Effect of disposal g claifind Balances ol end of year 106877367 21987077 12856444
s bt for salc (Voo 24 DI (IAMSIE) (4939215 (ALIS4506)  (4SMIZSI0)  (ILSSHEM)  (1OIT5I9T P
Tilaces wontof TSI 58 e !J-_lI!!I! T E"b—l' i 3,170 TR TS Accumulated qcpl_'mt_mn
Acvumalsted deprecintin Balances ot beginning of year - 19.642.354 19642354
sl s tiratin iation = 5 5
B;l—-m?'l:-;-:m:_uf_\m - 9006826 18O 11AT5840 8360016 N F00M JRI ARG 12D g (Nole " "5?',,“ A
Dcpecciton md otz . INTIIF LIPS 153707 11,033,742 13843575 4l402997 Disposals - (2.193.773) (2.193.773)
Dsposal Moo - - (U255, (1314231 - 1580400 (AT SRI) Balances ot end of vear - 18.374.151 18374.151
Rechamsificatans (Noks 11} - - E 97,778 {6127 - 591,455 S
Effect of disposal growy clesafind (K241.32) (I5783831)  (IMLIASTY Allowance for impairment losses
s vt S il (Mo 70 = (ABEAL LAY {IIMGNMG g3 1E3NEN) iNote 12)
Balesvs ut ool uf yow - 1452248 TLEGTIS 5399484 18 L TEI IRTALSES 120 1MS@0) L ® o
ey i Halapqcs at beginning of year 23324276 399,411 13.713.707
Rowses (Mot 123 Provision for the vear 6,221 - 6,221
Halemwy ol bepmainy of yo PILINSASE  PLISSST " ' - (S ST LT Disposals (9.,654,255) (301.322) (9,955,577)
ot of dlpossl goewp classitiad x = 2 s = " i Balances at end of year 13.676.242 98.109 13.774.351
i laghd S waly (N 13 el 1555 = = = = 2741911 Net book value at end of vear P93.201.125 PI514.817 PO6.715.942
Balsscc ol ond off vom AT 16 Y82 = A7 S0 = = 3425 160
Nt howk valae ul cnd of year PeilTAT)  PLIGNSSK  PILMALGL  PLS5T79  PIS9TA5  POLIIRSA)  PALIBLASH
2020
piri Land Building Toial
Fusrefiee. Rughi-uline
Fusturcs s Trosspuatataon Lescladd A Cost
. Land Badding Equesmnt Egupnanl  Impeos concuits ot 200 Tiital Balances at beginning of year #130.275.862 28.771.720 BI159.047.582
sy Additnons 720,000 596,000 1.3 16,000
Balsscri o B sy of PSS IT P I TRE P29 747 FI7TAZ 6T TZ.363. 190 FS.550.460 301769693
rrv ek TUpon 10912471 1161860 BMSAM  13IS4AGE 32580799 Disposals (7018808)  (4.165.0000  (11.183.808)
Pispos s . (LIFLMT) (1751947} Balances at end of vear 123.977.054 25.202.720 149.179.774
Reuaslficstasts (Note 11) 1,458 000 1453 000 :
Blalmnces of orad of vese 20,348 77 1017802 131 aeln 1880 200 a0 %90 1114 TLOMCHES 314 347 M8 Accumulated depreciation
PARRNE it Balances at beginming of year - 18,995,783 15995 743
Balmirs ot bogmaung of yoe RH2T 299 35,955 621 L0080 22 9,362, |53 FIAITIE  146ITTASH Depreciation (Note 9) 1,275,066 1,275,066
Deperation an amsetitan 1279327 1200677 1373333 [EEIEE 1IWI 55,677 Disposals - (628.495) (628.495)
ﬂupu mali 1 Ta0 | TRy - /
Revhasaific atusns (Note 11} r r ¥ P433 0086 ] r P433.0%6 Balsnces st end of year 19,642,334 19,542,354
Blalsse s of el of vew 0§ il 5265 L, T2 A0 11T 0% 9 a s 31500 oy 1 B3 456 121 Cost
AL s fo e . z . r
| T lm:;‘:' 11385054 1184 537 12570 55] h“ﬂ“ _nee I'ot I.I"I'qﬁml‘l'['lﬂl"lt ID‘SS-I:&
et Buck velc oo ul yow PR 9413 PRITIIF P21, 71740 PFTAGI571 P4l 2009 PElnii.si0  PIAEASLI3] (Note 12)
Balances at beginming of year 21 EK2 611 279,109 24.161.720
Gain on sale of items of property and equipment reported under *Profit from assets sold' amounted to E"‘-""‘Fﬂt“ for the year iﬁ;g:’: 1'1::':":: ;;I‘:i;
P0.40 million and P0.20 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. ) : {30F.0°3) (£3.°20) (591140}
Balances at end of year 231324276 3431 23723707
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the cost of fully depreciated 1tems of property and equipment Net book value at end of vear PI00,652.778 B5.160935  PRIOSR13T13
still in use amounted to P119.27 milhion and P91. 14 million, respectively.
Rental income on investment properties included in other income under “Miscellaneous income”
The details of depreciation and amortization follow: amounted to PO.07million and nil in 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 18).
2021 2020 Direct operating expenses on investment properties included in ‘Litigation and other expense on
Property and equipment P42,402,597 P38,346,773 assets acquired’ under *Miscellaneous expense’ amounted to P2.07 million and P2.66 million in 2021
Repossessed chattels (Note 11) 2,051,282 1,490,198 and 2020, respectively (see Note 18).
Software costs (Note 11) 1,927,038 -
Investment propeties (Note 10) 925.570 1.275.066 Net gain from sale of investment properties reported under “Profit from assets sold” amounted to
P47.306.487 P41.112.037 P16.18 million and P1.63 million n 2021 and 2020, respectively.
& B PERIEERT R LT RPRIEEEETERY
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Gain on foreclosure of investment properties reported under *Gain on foreclosure - net” inthe

statermnents of mcome amounted P6.00 million and P0.76 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

. Dther Assets

This account consists of;

2021 2020

Branch licenses P16.810,000 P16,810,000
Prepad expenses 4,601,000 4331356
Repossessed chattels - net 593.093 3.811.148
Refundable deposits 2427.107 1.968.719
Software costs - net 1.259.378 1.207.683
Documentary stamps 591,680 514414
Others 150,334,357 151,658,463
176,616,615 180,301,783
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 12) {162,054,000) { 162,054,000)
P14.562,61S P18 247783

‘Others” mainly represent miscellaneous assets in process of reconciliation which have been fully
provided for as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The allowance for impairment losses periains to
branch licenses and other assets amounting to P15.90 million and P146.15 million, respectively

{see Note 12),

Movements in ‘Repossessed chattels” follow:

-48 .-

Gain on foreclosure of repossessed chattels reported under *Gamn on foreclosure - net” in the

statement of income amounted to P6.00 million and P0.40 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, .

Movements in “Software costs” follow:

2021 2020
Cost
Balances at beginning of year P5.453.4%0 P2,732.490
Additions 2,393,000 4,260,000
Disposals (4,337.000) (84.,000)
Reclassifications (Note 9) (1.655.000) {1.455.000)
Balances al end of vear 1,854,490 5.453.490
Accumulated depreciation
Balances at beginning of year 1415435 442,291
Depreciation (Note 9) 2,051,282 1,490,198
Disposals (1.638.287) (83,998)
Reclassifications (Note 9) (597.778) (433.056)
Balances al end of vear 1.230,652 1415435
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 12)
Balances at beginning of year 226,97 3,883
Provisions for the vear - 223,024
Disposals (108,662) -
Reclossifications (87.500)
Balances at end of year 30,745 226,907
Net book value at end of year £593,093 P18I11.148

Net gain from sale of repossessed chattel reported under *Profit from assets sold” amounted 1o
P0.01 mullion and P0O.01 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

RLL TR L

2021 2020
Cost
Balances at beginning of year P20,603.802 P19.244 274
Additons 1.978.734 1,359,528
Balances at end of veur 22582.536 20.603.802
Accumulated amortization
Balances at beginning of year 19.396.119 17,794,208
Amoritzation (Note 9) 1,927,038 1,601.911
Reclissification 1 -
Balances at end of vear 21,323,158 19.396.119
Net book value at end of year P1.259.378 P1,207,683
12. Allowance for Credit and Impairment Losses
Changes in the allowance for credil and imparment losses follow:
2021 2020
Balances at beginning of year
[Investment at amortized cost (Note 7) B1.900 P56, 722
Loans and receivables (Nole 8) 2315.538.042 274.721.947
Property and equipment (Note 9) 12,579,591 12,579,591
Investment properties (Note 10) 23,723,707 24,161,720
Branch licenses (Note 11) 15.900.000 15,900,000
Repossessed chattels (Note 11) 226,907 3,883
Other assets (Note 11) 146,154,000 146,154,000
434,124,147 473,527,863
Provisions for the year (Notes 8 and 10) 28.7T11.751 51.435.707
Reversal of allowance on asscts sold
{(Notes 10 and 11) (10,064.239) (595.972)
Effect of disposal group classified as held for sale
{Notes 8 and 9) (4,142,174) -
Accounts written-ofl - (90.243.451)
Balances at end of year
Invesiment securities al amortized cost (Note 7) 1,900 1.900
Loans and receivables (Note 8) 261,843.309 235,538,042
Property and equipment (Note 9) 9,925,180 12,579,591
[nvestment properties (Note 10) 13,774,351 23,723,707
Branch licenses (Note 11) 15,900,000 15,900,000
Repossessed chattels (Note 11) 30,745 226,907
Other assets (Note 11) 146,154,000 146,154,000
P448.629.485 P434.124.147
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A reconciliation of the allowance for credit losses by class of loans and receivables in 2021 and 2020

follows:
021
Comumplion Commercinl Renl estale (Mhers Tolal
Balsnees at begmning of year  PI4E 733,777 SLASTTIS PR3IR 965 FIIS0TS585 PLISS3IR042
Provisions 36869935 (9.186.442) {108.258) 1,130,295 28.705.530
Balances af end of year PIRS603.TI2 P43 27127 P730.707  PMG3THES0 P264.243572
200
Consumplicn Commiercial Resl estate hers Tonsl
Balsnees at begmning of year P135307.345 93392 22] P5,629975 P02 406  PXT4T20947
Provistors { reversals) 26257564 4,090,163 284,617 20,397.202 £1.059.546
Accounts willen-off (31867.612)  (45,024.670) ($.075,627) (1282022}  (90,240.931)
Balances ot end of vear P148. 733,777 P52457.71% PE3E 963 PI3207585 PSS S3R.042
Below is the breakdown of provision for credit and impairment losses:
2021 2020
Loans and receivables (Note 8) P28.705.530 P51.059.546
Investment secunties at amortized cost (Note 7) 6,221 10
Repossessed chattels (Note 11) - 223,024
Investment propertics (Note 10) - 153,127
P28.711.751 P51.435.707

33,

Deposit Liabilities

Of the total deposit liabilities of the Bank as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 47.07% and 48.10%,
respectively. ane subject to penodic interest repricing. Remaining deposit Liabilities bear annual fixed

interest rates ranging from 3.50% in 2021 and 3.00% 10 4.50% in 2020.

The required reserves shall be kept in the form of deposits maintained in the Demand Deposit
Accounts (DDA) with the BSP and any government secunities which are previously used as
compliance until they mature. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank was in compliance with

such regulations.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank's liquidity and statutory reserves as reported to the BSP
amounting to P64.69 million and P61.97 million, respectively, are in¢luded under *Due from BSP’.

Interest expense on deposit linbilities consists of:

2021 2020

Time P15,065.09 P14.677.654
Savings 15265351 17.040.014
P30.330.447 P31.717.668

14. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses account consists of!

2021 2020

Accrued expenses P17.971.024 P17.187.077
Accrued intenest pavable 2.212.666 3464516
P20.183.690 P20.651.593

Accrued expenses consist of accruals for professional fees and other admimistrative expenses.

Accrued interest payable pertains to accruals of inlerest expense on deposit habilities (see Note 13}

Other hiabilities account consists of:

2021 2020

Lease hability (Note 20) P38.119.662 P57.850.651
Accounts payable (Note 22) 17,552,222 13,163,808
Retirement hability (Note 19) 28957526 22.642.535
Income tax payable 357,523 BOL3IR
Withholding taxes and other taxes payable 1,062,104 1,339,200
Oihers 1340334 1,240,094
P87.389371 P97.037.615

Interest expense on lease lability amounted to P4.59 million and P4.78 million in 2021 and 2020,

respectively (see Note 20).

Accounts payable consist of payables to service providers and advance payments from customers.

Others consist mainly of payables to agencaies servicing employee welfare such as Social Securnity

System, Home Development Mutual Fund and Medicare.

15

Redeemable Preferred Shares

The details of the Bank's redeemable preferred shares follow:

Shares Amount
Prefarred stock - P1,000 par value
Authonzed 50.000 P50.000.000
Issued and oulstanding
Balances at beginning and end of vear 30,700 P30,700.000

The preferred stock has the following features:

a. The minimum subscription is 100 shares and payable in cash;

or as often as the BOD may determine;

b. The shares shall earn a monthly interest at a rate to be fixed by the BOD, but such interest shall
nol be less than the prevailing market interest rates and said shares shall not be trealed as ime
deposit, deposil substitute or as other form of borrowings:

¢. The interest shall be paid in the form of dividends cumulatively, which may be declared annually
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d. The shares shall have preference in the distnibution of dividends and in the distribution of assets
in case of ligudation or dissolution, provided. however that no dividend shall be declared or paid
on redeemable shares in the absence of sufficient undivided profits. free surplus and approval of
the BSP:

¢. The shares are non-voling on matters provided for in the last paragraph of Section 6 of the
Corporation Code;

f. Pre-emptive nghts arc not available on preferred shares nor shall they be subject 1o one and the
shares shall be held for five (5) years with a nght of alienation or encumbrance of the same to any
third person within the period of five (3) years from the original date of subscription, provided,
however. that on the 5th year the holder shall be obliged to surrender the same to the corporation
and upon prior approval of the BSP and in compliance with the provisions of the Manual of
Regulations for Banks (MORB) and the BSP's circulars regarding this matter, the corporation
shall be obliged to take up the subscription at the price when the preferred shares of stock were
onginally subscribed. Provided that shares redeemed are replaced with at least an equivalent
amount of newly paid-m shares so that the total paid-in capital stock 1s mamntaned at the same
level immediately prior to redemption and provided further, that the corporation is not insolvent
or il such redemption will not cause insolvency, impairment of capital or inability of the
corpomtion 10 meel its debis as they mature; and

g.  Asof December 31, 2021, the Bank has not yet created a sinking fund pending request from the
BSP to redeem and retire the prefemred shares. The fund that will be used to redeem the preferred
shares will be taken from the equity infused by the Parent Bank.

The shares may again be disposed of by the Bank for a price fixed by the BOD. Based on the

BOD resolution on March 6, 2013, the entire redeemable preferred shares of the Bank will be

retired afier its redemption subject to BSP's approval. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the
entire redeemable preferred shares are still subject 1o BSP's approval.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Parent Bank owns 30,200 shares or P30.20 million of the
outstanding redeemable preferred shares of the Bank.

16. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of assels and liabilities analyzed according to whether they are
expected 1o be recoverad or settled within one year and beyond one year from statements of financial
position date (amounts in millions):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 202
Duee Within  Due Beyond Doe Within -~ Due Beyond
One Year One Year Total One Year One Year Total
Financial asscis
Cash and other cash iiems P17 P- BLOT Blll B PlLI3
Due from RSP 401 - 401 45 445
Due from other banks 85 - =] 98 98
Securities purchased under resale
agrecment 118 - 118 129 129
lnvestment socuritses at amortcsed
cosl - 20 0 bl 20
Loans and receivables 698 1.499 LI97 540 1.395 1.935
Oiher asscis - 1 F 2 2
1489 1521 1930 1325 1417 2742
{Fiarvierd)

LRI

_52.
December 31, 2021 December 31, 20M)
Due Within = Due Beyvand e Within  Due Beyond
One Year One Year Total One Yiear One Yiear Towm!
Non- fmancial nvsets
Property and equipment 49 3o 59 EES) 154
Investment properies = 129 119 149 149
Deelerred tax asset - 143 143 128 128
(her assetx 196 1 197 156 43 19y
245 553 El8 156 654 Ell
PL6S4 PL104 P3.758 Pl.431 #2071 3.552
Less:
Uneamned interest and disorunt B [ TS F ] 201
Drizcoiunt oa loan modificmson - 24
Accumulated deprecaation and
amoriizaten 2éd bl
Allowance for eredit and impmrment
lossgs 433 a434
L] 156 P2.9%2 & b P2E2]
Financial liabilitics
Dieposst liahilities PL754 P42 PL1IKG P17 #ila P2OST
Fedocmable prefermed shares k]| - K] | i1 L]
Lease labality b - =6 =9
Accrued expenses mn - 10 X 0
Onher Linbalitiex 19 . 19 24 47 71
1526 4589 1315 1.822 357 2179
Non-financinl Eabilities
(Onher linbehties 2 i) E] | k] 23 26
PLEIE =1 ki P13d6 P1.R25 P3R0 P2.205
17. Equity
CgEilnI Stock
Details of the Bank's capital stock as of December 21, 2021 and 2020 follow:
Sharcs Amount
Common stock - #100.00 par valuc
Authorized 20,000,000 P2.000,000,000
lssued and outstanding
Balances at bem and end of vear 12,459 600 #1.245.960.000
Surplus Reserve

The Bank's accumulated reserves amounting to P6.45 million was appropriated under the old
management and BOD in previous years, prior to the acquisition by the Parent Bank.

As provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Bank shall accumulate and maintain a surplus

reserve of not less than 5.00% of its total assets and shall be available for meeting losses incurred by
the Bank. Upon the required amount thereof being reached. a sinking fund pursuant to the BSP rules
and regulations shall be set aside in the amount necessary for the redemption of redeemable preferred

shares. The BOD may, atits discretion, provide for such other reserves as it may seem necessary.

The appointment of net camings for such reserves shall be made before effecting the distnbution of

net camings.

The Bank is presently reviewing the propriety of this provision. Any required revision will be
recommended for approval to the Bank's BOD and stockholders. No additional appropriation has
been made as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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Under BSP Circular No. 1011, the Bank shall treat Stage | provisions for loan accounts as General
Provisions (GP) while Stage 2 and 3 provisions shall be treated as Specific Provisions (SP). The
Bank shall set up GLLP equivalent to 1.00% of all outstanding on-balance sheet loan accounts, except
for accounts considered as credit rnisk-free under existing regulations. In cases when the computed
allowance for credit losses on Stage | accounts is less than the 1.00% required GP, the deficiency
shall be recognized by appropnating the *Surplus Reserve’ account. GP recognized in profit or loss
as allowance for credit losses for Stage | accounts and the amount appropriated in surplus shall be
considered as Tier 2 capital subject to the limit provided under the CAR framework.

In 2021 and 2020, the Bank s allowance for credit losses 1s less than the required GP of 1.00% for
Stage 1 accounts smounting to P11.63 million and P10.43 million. respectively. There were no
retained earnings appropriations in 2021 and 2020 since the Bank is in a deficit position.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank comphies with
extemally imposed capital requirements, as mandated by the BSP, and that the Bank maintains
healthy capital ratios in order 1o support its business and 1o maximize shareholder’s value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the nsk characlenstics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders, retum capital
to sharcholders or issue capital securitics. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and
processes from the previous years.

Regulato lifving Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory
requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank's “unimpaired capital” (regulalory net
worth) as reported to the BSP, which is determined on the basis of regulatory accounting practices
which differ from PFRS in some respects.

In addition, the risk-based capital ratio of a bank or Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), expressed as a
percentage of qualifving capital to risk-weighted assets. should not be less than 10.00% for both solo
basis and consolidated basis. Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets are computed based on BSP
regulations. Risk-weighted assels consist of total assels less cash on hand, due from BSP, loans
covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans or acceplances under letters of credit to the
extent covered by margin deposits and other non-nisk items determined by the Monetary Board of the
BSP.

On January 15, 2013, the BSP issued Circular No. 781, Basel 111 Implementing Guidelines on
Minimum Capilal Requirements, which provides the implementing puidelines on the revised risk-
based capital adequacy framework particularly on the minimum capital and disclosure requirements
for universal banks and commercial banks, as well as their subsidiary banks and quasi-banks, in
accordance with the Basel 1 standards. The Circular is effective on January 1, 2014, Eifective
January 1, 2014, the Bank followed the same risk-based capital adequacy framework adopted by its
Parent Bank.

The Circular sets out a minimum Commeon Equity Tier | (CET1) ratio of 6.00% and Tier | capital
ratio of 7.50%. It also introduces a capital conservation buffer of 2.50% comprised of CET1 capital.
The BSP’s existing requirement for total CAR remains unchanged at 10.00% and these ratios shall be
maintained at all imes.
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The table below shows the Bank's CAR as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 as reported to the BSP

{amounts in millions).

2021 2020
Tier | capital B477 P571
Tier 2 capital 21 22
Giross qualifying capital 498 593
Less required deductions - -
Total quulifyinE capital F498 P593
Risk weighted assets P2.607 P2.590
Tier | capital mtio 18.27% 22.05%
Tier 2 capital ratio 0.79% 0.85%
Risk-based capital adequacy ratio 19.06% 22.90%

The computed CAR of 19.06% and 22.90% as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as
reported to the BSP, were based on the commeraal bank's CAR template as requured by the BSP
since the Parent Bank is a commercial bank.

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises paid-up common stock, surplus, surplus
reserves including current year profit, less required deductions total cutstanding unsecured credit
accommaodations, both direct and indirect, to DOSRL

The other component of regulatory capital 1s Tier 2 capital, which represents the general loan loss
provisions capped at a maximum of 1.00% of gross nsk weighted assets. The general loan loss
provisions are based on regulatory accounting principle.

On May 22, 2014, the MB of the BSP approved the adoption of a prudential Real Estate Stress
Testing (REST) limut for universal/commercial banks and thnft banks on a solo and consolidated
basis on their aggregate real estate exposures, as provided under BSP Circular No. 839, Real Estate
Stress Test Limit for Real Estate Exposures, dated June 27, 2014. The REST limit combines a macro
prudential overlay of a severe stress test scenano, the pnnciple of loss absorbency through mmimum
capital ratio thresholds and heightened supervisory response. The Circular sets out a minimum REST
limit of 6.00% CETI capital ratio and 10.00% risk-based capital adequacy ratio, on a solo and
consolidated basis, under a prescribed write-olT rale of 25.00% on the Bank’s real estate exposure.
These limits shall be complied with at all times.

On October 29, 2014, the BSP issued amendments to Circular No. 854 which requires a new
mimmum capitalization for Banks. The Bank, as a thnift bank with 11 to 100 branches. was required
to increase its capitalization to P400.00 million. The Bank has complied with this requirement.

On June 9, 2015, the BSP issued Circular No. 881, Implementing Guidelines on the Basel 111
Leverage Ratio Framework, which provides implementing guidelines for universal, commercial, and
their subsidiary banks/quasi banks, The circular sets out a minimum leverage ratio of 5.00%.

The Bank has complied with this requirement.

Leverage Ratio

On June 9, 2015, BSP issued circular No. 881, which approved the guidelines for the implementation
of the Basel Il Leverage Ratio in the Philippines. The Basel 11 Leverage Ratio 1s designed to act as
a supplementary measure to the nsk-based capital requirements. The leverage ratio intends to restrict
the build-up of leverage in the banking sector to avoild destabilizing deleveraging processes which can
damage the broader financial system and the cconomy. Likewise, it reinforces the risk-based
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requirements with a simple, non-nsk based “backstop™ measure, The Basel 111 leverage ratio 1s
defined as the capital measure (the numenator) divided by the exposure measure (the denominator).
The monitoring of the leverage ratio was implemented as a Pillar | minimum requirement effective
on | July 2018.

The BLR of the Bank as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 as reported 1o the BSP are shown in the
table below (amounts i millions).

2021 2020
Tier | capital B477 P37l
Exposure measure 2.947 2.947
Leverage ratio 19.38% 19.38%

Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

BSP Circular No. 905 provides the implementing guidelines on LCR and disclosure standards that are
consistent with the Basel Il framework. The LCR is the ratio of high-quality liquid assets to 1otal net
cash outflows which should not be lower than 100.00%.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the LCR as reported 1o the BSP is 318.86% and 1307.51%,
respectively.

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)

On June 6, 2018, the BSP 1ssued BSP Circular No. 1007 covering the implementing gudelines on the
adoption of the Basel 111 Framework on Liguidity Standards NSFR. The NSFR 1s aimed to promote
long term resilience against liquidity nsk by requining banks to maintain a stable funding profile in
relation to the composition of its assets and off-balance sheet activities. It complements the LCR,
which promotes short term resilience of a bank's liquidity profile. Banks shall maintain an NSFR of
at least 100 percent (10075) at all umes. The implementation of the mimimum NSFR shall be phased
in to help ensure that covered banks can meet the standard through reasonable measures without
disrupting credit extension and financial market activities. An observation period was set from July |
to December 31, 2018. Effective, January |, 2019, banks shall comply with the prescribed minimum
ratio of 100%.

As ol December 31, 2021 and 2020, the NSFR as reported 1o the BSP 1s 116.86% and 123.67%,
respectively.
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Miscellaneous income conststs of:

2021 2020
ATM transaction fees P7.689.587 P1.576.935
Penalties 5961.773 5,796.360
Recovery on charged-ofT assels 1.290305 187,130
Income on sale of checkbook 335,232 261.401
Lease concessions - 624,879
Others (Note 10) 4.199.469 7.150.677
P19476.366 P17.597382

Others include rental income from investment properties, other loan fees and surcharges.

Miscellaneous expenses consist of:

2021 2020
Stationery and supplics 3,630,093 P1.318,070
Litigation and other expense on assets acquired
(Note 10) 2,489,527 2,656,890
Fines, penalties and other charges 1.386.807 1.129.010
Advertismg 468.608 1,148,633
Membership fees and dues 411,165 414,649
Documentary stamp used 158,472 475,932
Others 3.069.024 3,911,035
P11.613.696 P13.054.219

Other expenses include sponsorship expenses. appraisal fees, donations, periodicals and magazines.

1%.

Income and Expenses

Service fees and commussion income consists of:

2021 2020

Service lees and commission income:
Deposit-related P1,532867 P1,357.858
Commissions 44,002 23,715
1.576.869 1.381.573

Service fees and commission expense:
Banking fees (9.184.494) (4.568.001)
(P7.607,625) (P3.186,428)

19.

Related Party Transactions

Parties arc considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 10 control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions or if they are subjected to common control of common significant influence such as
subsidiaries and associates of subsidiaries or other related parties. Related parties may be individuals
or corporate enlilies.

The Bank has several business relationships with related partics. Transactions with such parties are
made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially same terms. including interest and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time of comparable transactions with other partics. These
transactions also did not mvolve more than the normal nsk of collectability or present other
unfavorable conditions.
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Details on significant related party transactions of the Bank follow:
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. Retirement Liability

The Bank has noncontributory defined benefit plan covering all its regular and permanent employees.
Under the retirement plan. all employees are entitled to cash benefits afier satisfying certain age and

SErvice requirements.

The existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA) 7641, An Act Amen

ding Article 257 of

Presidential Decree No. 442, as Amended, otherwise known as the Labor Code of the Philippines,

requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector employee

s in the absence of any

retirement plan in the entity, provided however that the employee's retirement benefits under any
collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.

The law does not require mmimum funding of the plan.

The latest actuarial valuation of the retirement plan of the Bank was made as of December 31, 2021

The status and amounts recognized in the statement of financial position for retirement liability are as

follows:
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year P12.642.535 P16.563.457
Net benefit cost in statement of income®*
Current service cost 4317078 3646310
Net interest cost 926,709 826,517
5,243,787 4472827

Forward)
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2021 2020
Contribution P- P-
Benefits paid directly from Bank's
operalional assels (123.572)
5120215 4472827
Remeasurements in OCI
Actuarial changes ansing from:
Changes in financial assumptions (7.395,852) 2877216
Experience adjustments (328.412) (1.259.985)
Changes in demographic assumptions 10,692,265 -
Actual return on plan assets (1.773.225) {10,980}
1,194,776 1.606.251
Balance at end of year P28.957.526 P22,642.535

* The ner beneflt cosi is recorded under ‘Compensation and fringe benefiis ' in the statements of income

Movements in ‘Remcasurement losses on retirement liability” in OCl follows:

2021 2020

Balance al beginning of vear (P5,090.784) {P3.966.408)
Remeasurement guin (loss) on retirement lability

Due to changes in financial assumptions 7395852 (2.877.216)

Due to changes in experience adjustments 328412 1,259.985

Due to changes in demographic assumptions (10.692.265) -

Actual return on plan assets 1.773.225 10980
Remeasurement loss duning the year (1,194.776) (1.606.251)
Tax effect 298.694 451,875
Remeasurement losses on retirement hability duning

the year, net of 1ax (896.082) (1,124,376)
Impact of CREATE (363.627) =
Total remcasurement losses, net of Lax (1,259.709) (1,124.376)
Balance at end of vear. net of (ax {PH. 350.493) (P3.090.784)

The principal actuanal assumptions used in determining the retirement liability of the Bank as of

December 31, 2021 and 2020 are shown below:

2021 2020

Duscount rate 5.20% LM%
Salary moreases £70% 5.0
Maortality rate 2017 Philippine lntercompany The 2001 CS0 Table - Generational
Mortality Table (Scale AA, Socsety of Actusnies)

Dasability rate The Disability Study, Period 2 The Dusabduy Study, Penod 2 Benelit
Benefit 5 (Sochety of Actuaries) 5 (Socety of Actsanes)

Tumower rate A scale ranging from 4% at age 18 A scale ranging from 16% at age 18
decreasing to 0% a1 age 60 decremsing 1o 0% ol age 60
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of cach
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting penod,
assuming 1 all other assumptions were held constant:

Impact to DBO
Increase (Decrease) 2021 2020
Discount rate L.00% (P4.554,963) (P2.751.976)
(1.00%%) 5,690,156 3.301,599
Salary increase rale 1.00%% 5.600,835 3208176
{1.00%) (4,574,445) (2.733,704)

Shown below 15 the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2021 2020
Less than | vear P195.896 P~
More than | vear 1o 5 years 3.523.086 6.477.695
More than § years to 10 years 18,571,370 19,429,378
More than 10 years to 15 years 32,659 448 27,969,877
More than |5 years to 20 years 50.335.699 35,086,281
More than 20 years 382.696.218 95.730.462

The Bank's weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is equivalent to 16.8 years
and 12.6 years in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Lease Liabilities
As of December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of lcase hiabihities follow:
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year P57.850.651 P52,431,767
Additions 10,847,282 11,757,495
Interest expense (Note 14) 4.590,992 4.778.928
Modifications/Lease concessions 2,132,464 (624.879)
Payments (16,819337) (10,492.660)
Effect of Disposal Group Classified as
Held for Sale (Note 24) (20.482.390) -

P38,119,662 P57,850,651

21.

Leases

Bank as a Lessee

The Bank leases its head office and branch premuses for periods ranging from five (2) to filleen (15)
years, renewable upon mutual agreement of both partics. Various lease contracts include cscalation
clauses. most of which bear annual rent increase ranging from 5.00% o 10.00%.

The Bank also has certain leases of building and branch premises with remaining lease terms of 12
months or less and leases with low value assets. The Bank applies the recognition exemptions for
these types of leases. Rent expense charged against current operations (included in *Occupancy and
equipment-related’ expenses in the statements of income) amounted to P6.97 million and P7.99
million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. Rent expense in 2021 pertains to expenses from short-term
leases and leases of low-value assels.

The estimated minimum fulure annual rentals payable under non-cancellable leases follow:

2021 2020
Within one vear P2438434 P14.855.408
Beyvond one year but not more than five years 31.616.663 42 564995
More than live vears 35.561.465 14,895,633

#70.616.562 P72.316.036

Details of the carrying amounts of nght-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the year
ended December 31, 2021 are disclosed in Note 9.

22, Income and Other Taxes

Under Plulippine tax laws, the Bank s subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as “Taxes and
licenses™ in the statement of income) as well as income taxes. Percentage and other taxes paid consist
principally of gross receipts 1ax (GRT) and documentary stamp faxes.

Current tax regulations provide that the RCIT rate shall be 25.00% and interest allowed as a
deductible expense shall be reduced by an amount of 20.00% of interest income subjected to final tax.

The optional standard deduction (OSD) equivalent to 40.00% of gross income may be claimed as an
alternative deduction m computing for the RCIT. In 2021 and 2020, the Bank elected to claim
itemized expense deductions instead of the OSD in the RCIT computation.

The regulations also provide for a Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) of 1.00% on modified
gross income and allow a NOLCO. The MCIT is imposed on the fourth taxable year from
commencement of the business operations, The MCIT may be applied against the Bank's income tax
liability and taxable income over a three-year peniod from the year of inception

Current tax regulations also provide for the ceiling on the amount of entertainment, amusement and
recreation (EAR) expense that can be claimed as a deduction agminst taxable meome. Under the
regulation, EAR expense allowed as a deductible expense for a service bank 1s limited to the actual
EAR paid or incurred but nol to exceed 1.00% of net revenue. EAR expenses of the Bank amounted
1o #1.47 mullion and P1.84 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The lollowing are the key changes 1o the Philippine tax law pursuant 1o the CREATE Act which have
an impact to the Bank:

+ Effective July 1. 2020, regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate is reduced from 30.00% 10
25.00"% for domestic and resident foreign corporations. For domestic corporations with net
taxable income not exceeding P5.00 million and with total assets not exceeding P100.00 million
(excluding land on which the business entity's office, plant and equipment are situated) during
the taxable year, the RCIT rate is reduced to 20.00%.

*  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2.00% to 1.00% of gross income
effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023.
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Based on the provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 5-2021 dated Apnil 8, 2021 issued by the
Burcau of Internal Revenue (BIR), the prorated MCIT rate of the Bank for CY2020 is 1.50%. This
resulted in a lower provision for current income tax of PO.89 million for the vear ended

December 31, 2020. The reduced amounts were reflected in the Bank's 2020 annual income tax
return. However. for financial reporting purposes. the changes are recognized in the 2021 financial

stalements.

This also resulted to a write-down of the deferred tax assels of the Bank recognized as of

December 31, 2020 by P21.43 million. of which P21.07 million was recognized as provision for
deferred tax and P0.36 million in other comprehensive income in the 2021 financial stalements.

Benelit from income lax consists ol

2021 2020
Current;
MCIT P2.092.556 P3.570911
Final 1.966.368 3469308
Impact of CREATE Act in CY2020 (892,728}
3,166,196 7040219
Deferred:
Deferred income tax (35.227.808) (14.739,675)
Impact of CREATE Act in CY2020 21.069.472 -
(14.158,336) (14,739,675)
(P10.992,140) (P7.699,456)
The components of the Bank's net deferred tax asset follow:
2021 2020
Deferred 1ax assets on:
Allowance for credit and impairment losses P113.192.440 P120,965.867
NOLCO 14,346,283 -
Retirement liability 7,139,382 6,792,761
Accumulated depreciation on imvestment
propertics and repossessed chattels 4,901,201 6.317.337
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 4,770,739 -
Unamortized modification loss 1.664 398 -
Lease liability 2,221,905 2,165,016
Rent pavable - ~
148,336,348 136,240,981
Deferred tax Liabilities on:
Unrealized gain on foreclosure of investment
Properiics 5644349 7.642.385
5.644.349 7.642.385
P142.691.999 P128.598.59%%

¥

Movements in deferred tax assets compnse of:

2021 2020

Al beginning of the year P118,598,59% P113,377,046

Amounis credited to stalement of income 14.158.336 14.739.675
Amounts charged aganst statements of

comprehensive income (Note 19) {64.933) 481,875

At end of the year P142,691.999 P128,598.596

As of December 31, 2021, there are no unrecognized deferred tax assets since management believes
that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against which these can be utilized.

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank did not sel up any deferred tax assets on the following temporary
differences since management believes that it is not highly probable that the related future benefits
will be realized in the future.

2020

Allowance for credit and impoirment losses P30,904,588
Loan moedification 24,397,090
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 3.570911
NOLCO 79,783,402
P138.655,991

Omn Seplember 30, 2020, the BIR has issued Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 25-2020 to implement
Section 4 (bbbb) of Republic Act No. 11494, otherwise known as “Bayanihan to Recover as One
Act”, allowing qualified businesses or enterprises which incurred net operating loss for taxable years
2020 and 2021 1o carry over the same as a deduction from its gross income for the next five (5)
conseculive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

As of December 31, 2021, the Bank has incurred NOLCO 1n taxable year 2020 which can be claimed
as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years pursuant
to Bayanihan 2, as follows:

Inception Year Amount Used Expired Balance Expiry Year
2020 P79,783.402 P22398272 P- P57,385,130 2025

Details of the Bank's excess MCIT over RCIT follow:

lnception Year Amount Used Expired Balance Expiry Year
2020 P2.678.183 P P~ P2678,183 2023
2021 2,092,556 - - 2.092. 556 2024

A reconciliation of statutory income tax to the effective income tax is as follows:

2021 2020
Stalutory income [ax (P1.248.236) (P17.620,045)
Tax effect of:
Impact of CREATE Act 20,176,744 -
Movements in unrecognized deferred lax assets (30.391.043) 8,393,564
Nondeductible expenses 1.962,820 31,233,052
Tax-paid and nontaxable income (492,425) (1.706,027)
EfMective income 1ax 10,992,140 (P7.699. 456)
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23.

Contingencies

The Bank is also involved in a number of legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for
the resolutions of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsel handling the
Bank's defense and 1s based on an analysis of potential results. The Bank does not believe that these

proceedings will have a matenal adverse effect on the financial statements.

Following is a summary of the Bank's commitments and contingent liabilities at their equivalent peso
contractual amounts:

2021 2020
Late deposit/payment received PS5,000 P644,091
Items held for safekecping 15,134 15,491
Other contingent account 5.574 6.098
Total P75.708 P6635.680

Other contingent account includes post-dated checks and items held as collaterul valued at
Pl peritem.
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Loans and Receivables P2R], 388,882
Property and Equipment 40,464,114
Assets of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale P75T.487.726
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilitics
Demand P186.118.626
Savines 631.299 |86
817417812
Other Liabilities 20.482.390
Liabilities of Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale PR37.900,202

. Assets and Liabilities of Disposal Group Classificd as Held for Sale

In 2021, the Bank made a strategic decision 1o sell selected assets and liabilities to the Parent Bank as
part of the overall strategies of the Bank to focus in growing DepEd Automatic Payroll Deduction
System (APDS) loans. Relative to this, the Bank will transfer to the Parent Bank selected portfolios
of consumption, commercial and real estate loans, and branch licenses of ten (10) regular branches
and two (2) branch-lite units, including the related assets and habilities of the branches and branch-
lite units.

The Board approved such plan on October 21, 2021, The completion of this transaction will be
subject to regulatory approvals.

The sale of the selected assets and habilities to the Parent Bank 1s expected to be completed by fourth
quarter of 2022, As of December 31, 2021, these assets and liabilities were classified as disposal
group held for sale.

PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, requires assets and
habilities for disposal, to be classified separately from other assets and habilities. As a result, the
Bank reclassified all the asscts and habilities for disposal to *Assets of disposal group classified as
held for sale’ and “Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale’, respectively. in the
statement of financial position.

The major classes of assets and habilines classilied as disposal group held for sale to the Parent Bank
as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Assets

Cash and Other Cash ltems P47.233.144
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 359,495,106
Due from Other Banks 28,906,280
(Forward)

25.

Note to the Statement of Cash Flows

Non-cash investing and financing activities that relate to the analysis of the statement of cash flows of
the Bank are as follows:

2021 2020

Increase in repossessed chattels due to foreclosure P3.097.165 P4.664.015

Sale of investmen! properties on account 8527818 1,292,000
Increase in property equipment due to

reclassifications from investment property 1,862,563 1,021,944

Increase in mvestment propertics due to foreclosure 8300.701 553,808

Effect of PFRS 16
Increase (decrease) in property and equipment (919.499) 12,384,404
Increase in lease liability 751,401 12382374
Lease concessions - 624,879

26.

Events after the Reporting Period

On January 20, 2022, the BOD of the Bank approved the sale of selected portfolio of microfinance
loans including the related deposit liabilities with net asset value amounting to P69.07 milliontoa
third-party bank in line with the overall strategies of the Bank to focus in growing DepEd APDS
loans. The sale is expected 1o be completed on Apnl 30, 2022

. Approval of the Release of the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Bank were approved and authorized for issue by the
BOD on March 25, 2022.

. Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR 1ssued RR No. 15-2010 prescnbing the manner of comphance in
connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements accompanying the tax returns.
It includes provisions for additional disclosure requirements in the notes o the financial statements,
particularly on taxes, dutics and licenses paid or accrued duning the year.

1a?
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The Bank reported and/or paid the following types of taxes for the year:

Taxes and Licenses
In 202 1. taxes and licenses of the Bank consist of;

Gross receipts tax PI8.851 306
License. permits and others 2,868,436
P21.719.742

- ' S s
In 2021, the Bank has paid documentary stamps tax amounting to P2, 583 517.

Withholding Taxes
The following table shows the breakdown of taxes withheld and remitted in 2021:

Total
Amount Remittances Balance
Withholding taxes on
compensation and benefits P2.191.656 P2.119.903 P71.753
Withholding tax on deposits 2,682,385 2,500,208 182,177
Expanded withholding taxes 1.883.020 1.726.489 156,531
P6,757.061 P6.346,600 P410,461

As of December 31, 2021, there are no outstanding tax cases under investigation, litigation or
prosecution in courts or bodies outside BIR.

Lt

. Supplementary Information Required under BSP Circular No. 1074

On February 7. 2020, the BSP issued Circular No. 1074 to amend certain provisions of the MORB
and Manual of Regulations for Foraign Exchange Transactions (MORFXT). The Circular provides
for new and amended disclosure requirements to the audited financial statements, which are to be
presented either (i) on specific notes to the financial statements, or (i) in a separate note containing
supplementary information as required by the BSP. This supplementary information is not a required
disclosure under PFRS.

In compliance with the requirements set forth by Circular No. 1074, hereunder are the supplementary
information:

The following basic ratios measure the Ninancial performance of the Bank:

2021 2020
Retum on average equity 0.31% -7.95%
Return on average assets 0.07% -1.82%
Nel interest margin on average camnings asscls 12.47% 15.00%

{1 TR

The following formulas were used to compute the indicators:

Performance Indicator BSP Prescribed Formula

Net Income (or Loss) after Income Tax x 100
Avcrage Total Capital Accounts*

Retum on Average Equity

Retum on Average Asscls Met Income (or Loss) a Income Tax x 100
Average Total Asscts®

Net Interest Income x 100
Avcrage Interest Eaming Asscts®

Met Interest Margin

*Average amouni i cafvslared baved on currn'.fu_‘wrnc.'w’ ard pmfuu:_tw.w-end balarres

Capital instruments
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has oulstanding capital stock as shown below:

Sharcs Amount
Common stock - #10(0.00 par valoe
Authorized 20.000.000 2. 000000000
lssued and outstanding
Balances at beginning and end of vear 12459 600 P _235 960 000

Breakdown of total loans as (o securnity and siatus

The following table shows the breakdown of receivable from customers as (o secured and unsecured
and the breakdown of secured recaivables from customers as to the type of secunty as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Amount % Amount %
Secured by:

Real estate P228,029.232 10.83 P174,089.430 973
Chattel 97,047,682  4.61 129,001,546 1.21
Deposit hold-outs 1,030,618 005 927.764  0.05
Jewelry 7858.019 047 20,277,723 1.13
333965551 15.86 324.296.463  18.12
Unsecured 1.771.734.195  84.14 1.465,352.39]1  BI1.88

P2.105.699.746 100.00  P1.789,648.854 100.00

As of December 21, 2021 and 2020, details of status of loans follow:

Performing Non-Performing

2021 2020 2021 2020
Consumption PL.648912,958 PL353T.741.746 #212,295,159 P195.347.903
Commercial 48,864,078 85,017,815 £3.122.981 Hh.518,532
Rcal estate 140,119,925 82.670,110 2,384,645 2,052,748

F1E37.896,961  P1.525420.671 P267.802.785 P264.219,183
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Under banking regulations, financial institutions shall adopt the ECL model in measuring credit
impairment, in accordance with the provisions of PFRS 9. With the issuance of BSP Circular 941,
Amendments to the Regulations on Past Due and Non-Performing foans. loans and lease receivables,
or any financial asset shall be considered non-performing. even without any missed contractual
payments, when it is considered impaired under existing accounting standards, classified as doubtful
or loss, in litigation, and/or there 1s evidence that full repayment of principal and/or interest is
unlikely without foreclosure of collateral, if any.

All other loans, even if not considered impaired. shall be considered non-performing if any principal

and/or mterest are:

. Unpaid for more than ninety (90) days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more
than ninety (90) days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement.

2. Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit charactenstics shall be considered non-
performing after contractual due date or after it has become past due for more than 7-10 days.

3. Restructured loans shall be considered non-performing. However, if prior to restructuring, the
loans were categonzed as performing, such classification shall be retained.

Restructured receivables which do not meel the requirements to be treated as performing receivables
shall also be considered as NPLs, Restructured receivables as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to P51.57 million and P60.03 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020. details of gross NPLs follow:

2021 2020
Secured P45.926,465 P48,666,699
Unsecured 221876320 215,552,484

P267.802,785  P264.219.183

The NPLs of the Bank not fully covered by allowance for credit losses as reported to BSP follow:

2021 2020
Total NPLs P267.802,785 P264.219.183
Allowance for credit losses* 216480809 159,009 408

P51.321.976  P105,209.775

*Allowance for credin lasses per BSP

Significant credil sires as o industrveconomic seclor
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, information on the concentration of credit as to industry, net of
uneamed interest and discount. follows:

2021 2020

Amount e Amount a
Other Services Activitics BLOIDM3L,244 T944 B1324331305 7722
Wholesale and netail trade, repair of motor vehicles 4.88 11.01

and motorcveles 179.941.297 188,761,076

Real cstate activitics 157953929 1.79 08008208 571
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 34005924 168 47,446,788 177
Construction 14,886,018 0.73 17579317 102
Education 11,856,105  0.58 13,965,208  0.81

fFarward)

+ﬁE+

2021 2020
Amount % Amount %
Manufactunng B3.364976 026 BRI78.140 048
Accommodanon & food services activities 4854516 024 6300992 037
Professional, scientific and technical activities 4607521 023 6292244 037
Transporiation and storage 2213584 0. 2323822 0.4
Mining and quarrving 291,774 0. 176,077 0.01
Water supply. sewerage, waste management and 24819 0.0 461,511 003
remediation activities
Activities of households as employers and IST.06T  0.01 - 0.00
undifferentiated goods-and-services-producing
activities of households for own use
Human health and social work activitics 91,927 0.0 76,053  0.00
Electricity. gas. steam and air. 87951 0.0 147972 001
conditioning supply
Ars, entertainment and recreation 79440 0.0 461,500 003
Informanon and communication 783589 0.0 153.669 001
Admumstrative and Support Service Activitics 251 0.0 - D00
Financial and Insurance Activitics = W 393.901 0.02

#£2.027.155.080 100.00 P1.715.057.783 100.00

The BSP considers that concentration nisk exists when the total loan exposure to a particular industry
or economic sector exceeds 30.00% of the total loan portfolio.

Information on related party loans

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loan transactions with affiliates and with certain
DOSRI. Existing banking regulations limit the amount of individual loans to DOSRI, 70.00% of
which must be secured, 1o the total of their respective deposits and book value of their respective
investments in the Bank. In the aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally should not exceed the Bank's
total regulatory capital or 15.00% of total loan portfolio, whichever 1s lower.

On January 31. 2007, BSP Circular No. 560 was issued providing the rules and regulations that
govern loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees granted to subsidianes and affiliates of
banks and quasi-banks. Under the said circular, the total outstanding exposures to cach of a bank's
subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 10.00% of bank's net worth, the unsecured portion of
which shall not exceed 5.00%6 of such net worth.

Further, the total outstanding exposures to subsidianes and affiliates shall not exceed 20.00% of the
net worth ol the lending bank. BSP Circular No. 560 is effective on February 15, 2007.

The following table shows information relating to DOSRI accounts of the Bank:

2021 2020

Total outstanding DOSR1 accounts P 5,041,667 P 4869293
Total outstanding DOSRI accounts prior to

effectivity of BSP Circular No. 423 5041667 4,869,293
Percent of DOSRI accounts fo total loans 0.24% 0.27%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI accounts to total

DOSRI accounts 64.67% 51.98%
Percent of nonperforming DOSRI accounts to total

DOSRI accounts 0.93% 0.96%
Percent of past due DOSRI accounts to total

DOSRI accounts 0.93% 0.96%

LR RIREERD L
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As of Decepber 31, 2021 and 2070, DOERI loans include real sstate loans to bank officers which
were gimnted under the Bank's Financial Asistance Program, as appooved by the BSP, arnounling fo
P4.35 maillion and PO.50 million, respectively.

Lormmitments mod comtinesnt abilies

Following is 2 suowoary of the Bank's commitiments and contingent labilities ax their equivalent peso
conirmciual srmounis:
2021 2020
Lais deposit/paymeni recetyed F55,000 644,091
liezns held for salfekesping 15,134 15,491
Cither continrent accouni 8,574 5,098
Total s, 708 £665.680

W L HTTRIDER R
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